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FAREHAM & GOSPORT ANNUAL REPORT 
ACCESSIBILITY AND CONTACT INFORMATION 

 
This document is available in Braille, large print, other languages or audio format on 
request. To request an alternative format, please contact us: 
 
By email fgccg.enquiries@nhs.net  
 
Telephone 023 9228 2063 
 
Write to: 
 
NHS Fareham and Gosport Clinical Commissioning Group 
CommCen Building 
Fort Southwick 
James Callaghan Drive 
Fareham 
Hampshire  
PO17 6AR 
 
Website: https://www.farehamandgosportccg.nhs.uk/  
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Foreword 
 

As a partnership of clinical commissioning groups, the spirit of co-operation and 

togetherness is at the heart of everything we do, not least as we focus on our 

primary aim of developing the right models of care to help people stay out of 

hospital. 

At no time has this been more important than now, as we work through the impact 

and consequences of the Covid-19 coronavirus pandemic, which has occupied so 

much of our collective focus over the latter months of this reporting year. 

While we would all have preferred not to have been in this situation, there is no 

doubt that something like this brings out the very best in those who deliver frontline 

health and care services. Their dedication to duty, in the most challenging of 

circumstances, is an example to us all and shines a spotlight on what makes the 

NHS the envy of so many across the world.  

Their response brings to mind, coincidentally in the 200th anniversary of her birth, the 

work of Florence Nightingale, who not only continued to deliver care in the most 

challenging of circumstances but who, in later life, became a champion of reform and 

better healthcare for all and an advocate for care for people in their own homes. 

Working with others was at the heart of her approach and we know that this is the 

best approach we have in tackling the challenges we face today, whether thatôs 

mitigating as best we can the impact of coronavirus or ensuring that people who 

continue to need routine and more specialised health and care services can still be 

assured of the best possible outcomes. 

The pages of this annual report reveal the story of our year and the progress we 

have continued to make in many areas as we work more closely together to 

transform local healthcare and respond to the ongoing challenges we face: around 

money, around demand for services in primary care and urgent care, in particular, 

and in improving mental health services across the area, to name just a few. 

And it is encouraging for us to be able to report that that we have made considerable 

progress in all of these areas over the past 12 months.  

Our urgent care programme, particularly over winter, and our approach to the 

coronavirus pandemic are both examples of where working together has already 

had, and will continue to have, significant benefit. It is that spirit of cooperation that 

we need to embrace in future, too, as we continue to focus our efforts and energies 

on our primary aim ï improving the way that care out of hospital is delivered. 
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One of the most rewarding things about working as a partnership is the opportunity it 

continually affords us to bring people together. This remains absolutely vital if we are 

to ensure that health and care services can continue to be delivered effectively over 

the next few years, encouraging peopleôs imagination, innovation and courage in the 

way we transform care. 

For some this may come through working óat scaleô across Hampshire and Isle of 

Wight, or in local health and care partnerships like ours in Fareham and Gosport.  

The work that has been undertaken in delivering coordinated mental health 

psychiatric liaison in all acute hospitals in the county over the past year is an 

example of what can be achieved by working together at this level. 

For others it may be in developing primary care networks to try and build resilience 

and innovation in our GP practices, where already there is encouraging progress in 

terms of all patients now having access to more appointments out of hours, including 

in the evenings and at weekends, or being able to contact their practice online for 

consultations, appointment booking and repeat medication ordering.  

 

We work very closely with our voluntary sector partners and they have played a key 

role in supporting the development of some of our models of care. As a Partnership 

Board we agreed in November to formalise the way in which we work with the 

voluntary, community and social enterprise sector to enable them to be true partners 

in a fully integrated health and social care system to improve and extend provision 

for people locally.  

 

We view this as a really positive step forward as it enables us to work together to 

develop a plan that helps us tackle a number of priorities, including improving 

support for people with mental health concerns and improving hospital to home 

services to reduce delayed discharge and the likelihood of readmission. 

 

As we move further into 2020 it is even clearer now that the year ahead will continue 

to be a busy time for us, requiring an even greater emphasis on working together.  

The long term impact of the pandemic will take some time to understand and absorb, 

but we remain hopeful that some of the initiatives we have introduced in its wake will 

be a legacy we can build from in a positive way.  

At the same time we fully intend to deliver the next phase in our development as we 

aim to come together as one commissioning organisation for Hampshire and the Isle 

of Wight by September 2020. Over the past 12 months we have seen a stronger 

bond develop between the Partnership and West Hampshire and Southampton City 

CCGs, a precursor to formalising our joint working arrangements by next April.  
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There will continue to be challenges as well as opportunities ahead. Demand on 

urgent care services will still need to be managed, not just during winter but 

throughout the year, and the impact that the emergence of coronavirus will have on 

us will only be ascertained as the year progresses but in all the challenges we face, 

finding an effective solution is inevitably dependent on working together and pooling 

our knowledge, skills, commitment and resources.  

 

                                           

Maggie MacIsaac     Dr David Chilvers 

Accountable Officer    Clinical Chair 
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SECTION 1 PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
Performance Overview 
 
The Performance Overview section of this Annual Report is designed to provide a 
short summary about NHS Fareham and Gosport Clinical Commissioning Group (the 
CCG), including our purpose, key objectives and achievements. 
 

1.1 Introduction and Overview 

 
NHS Fareham and Gosport Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) was formally 
established on April 1, 2013. Over the past year we have continued to work with 
NHS North Hampshire, NHS South Eastern Hampshire and NHS Isle of Wight CCGs 
in a collaborative partnership. 
 
One of the main aims of this has been to give us greater influence on key strategic 
and operational areas such as managing contracts with our joint providers, 
developing patient pathways and closely working with Hampshire County Council. 
This enables us to better lead the transformation of services for local people as it 
affords us greater capacity and capability so that we can reduce duplication where 
necessary and also share best practice and effective approaches where appropriate. 
 
One of the benefits of working within the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership is 
the opportunity it affords to operate at scale, while enabling each constituent 
member CCG to draw on wider support in working in its local area as and when it 
needs to. 
 
Local health and care leaders recognise that services need to be planned and 

delivered at a number of different levels and Fareham and Gosport CCG, whilst a 

member of the broader CCG partnership, is committed to working as part of the 

more local Portsmouth and South Eastern Hampshire Integrated Care Partnership 

which will drive the transformation and change articulated in the NHS Long Term 

Plan. 

 

This helps us to build, too, on the close working relationship we have always had 

with Portsmouth CCG and our local provider trusts, and our intention is to continue, 

and further strengthen, these relationships as part of the integrated care partnership 

model, working alongside our local authority partners at Hampshire County Council, 

Havant Borough Council and East Hampshire District Council. 

 

We also work closely with a wide range of voluntary and non-statutory services 

locally with many of these assuming an increasingly prominent and important role, in 

the provision of local health and care services. To this end we agreed as a 

Partnership Board to formalise our joint working with the voluntary sector at our 
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meeting in November. We are currently working with the sector to develop a plan in 

support of this, built around four important shared priorities. 

 

Our Purpose 

We serve a population of 204,715 people registered at 17 GP practices in Fareham, 

Portchester, Stubbington, Titchfield, the 

Western Wards, Gosport, Bridgemary, Elson 

and Lee-on-the-Solent.  

The majority of our services are provided by: 

¶ Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

¶ Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust 

¶ Solent NHS Trust 

¶ South Central Ambulance Service NHS 

Foundation Trust 

¶ University Hospitals Southampton NHS 

Foundation Trust 

 

The CCG has delegated responsibility from 

NHS England for commissioning sustainable 

primary care services and all the GP practices within our CCG area form part of our 

membership organisation, responsible for making sure that local people get the 

health services they need. 

Our Activities 

The CCG is responsible for commissioning safe and effective healthcare services for 
local people, including: 
 

¶ Primary care services (GPs) 

¶ Urgent and emergency care, including NHS 111, Accident and Emergency 
(A&E) and ambulance services 

¶ Out of hourôs primary care services 

¶ Elective (planned) hospital care, such as hip replacement surgery, and day 
surgery 

¶ Community health services, such as community nursing, physiotherapy, 
podiatry, speech and language therapy and continence services 

¶ Rehabilitation services 

¶ Maternity and new-born services (excluding neonatal intensive care) 

¶ Children and young people's health services, such as community child health, 
therapists, acute care, child and adolescent emotional health and wellbeing 

¶ Services for people with learning disabilities 

¶ Mental health services (including psychological therapies) 

¶ NHS continuing healthcare for people with ongoing healthcare needs 
 

The CCGôs Quality Team works with providers of services to ensure these are safe, 
effective and provide a good patient experience.   
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Please see the Quality Report for more detailed information about the teamôs work. 
The CCG involves stakeholders in discussions about commissioning decisions and 
any proposed changes to services and we continue to listen to local people to help 
improve local healthcare services. We value their contribution whether it is 
responding to one of our surveys, being a member of one of our engagement 
committees or engaging with us in other ways. 
 
Please see our Patient and Public Involvement Report for more information about 
our engagement activities. 
 
Our Organisational Structure 
 
NHS Fareham and Gosport CCG is part of the Hampshire and Isle of Wight 
Partnership of Clinical Commissioning Groups, which is led by Chief Executive 
Maggie MacIsaac. Our CCG is headed by the Managing Director Sara Tiller and 
Clinical Chair Dr David Chilvers. 
 
At Partnership meetings, Fareham and Gosport CCG, South Eastern Hampshire 
CCG, North Hampshire CCG and the Isle of Wight CCG undertake their assurance 
and other Governing Body business together. The CCG remains a clinically-led 
organisation with strong member practice involvement. 
 
Changing the way we work has helped us make the best possible use of this and 
other clinical expertise from across the Partnership, to deliver improvements in 
patient care. 
 
It also enables us to lead effective transformation of services for local people by 
providing us with greater capacity and capability, sharing best practice and reducing 
duplication. 
 
Please see our Governance report for details of our committee membership. 
 
Our Business Model and Environment 
 
The CCG works with other NHS partners to share some services and to commission 
health care services together. We do this through a variety of formal and informal 
arrangements. 
 
In-House Staff 
  
The majority of CCG staff work at Fort Southwick, near Fareham. The local 
Leadership Team includes GPs from the area, ensuring strong clinical leadership 
and focus in all decision making.  
 
Executive Directors who have roles that span all four CCGs also support the work of 
the Local Leadership Team. Managers from their teams, including people with 
expertise in service improvement, quality, nursing, finance, planning and 
communications are aligned to Local Leadership Teams and work as a core member 
of those local teams. 
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Shared Support Services 
 

These are provided by NHS South, Central and West Commissioning Support Unit 
(CSU), which plays a key role in supporting the CCG by providing expertise in a 
range of management areas such as information governance, IT, finance and 
contracting. 
 
The CSU also manages the individual funding requests (where a patient has an 
exceptional clinical need) on our behalf. 
 
Shared Commissioning Expertise 
 

The CCG continues to share expertise for services that need a high level of 
collaborative commissioning, for example: 
 

¶ NHS West Hampshire CCG leads on NHS Continuing Healthcare and 
Funded Nursing Care, Safeguarding for adults and children, Mental Health 
and Learning Disability Services 

¶ NHS North Hampshire CCG leads on Maternity and Childrenôs Health 
Services 

¶ NHS Fareham and Gosport CCG leads on commissioning services from 
NHS South Central Ambulance Service NHS Trust. 
 

Primary Care Networks 
 

The CCG is building on its achievements to support the development of Primary 
Care Networks which will continue the work already based around our local GP 
practices. The goal is to provide access to both primary and community health and 
social care for the local population to deliver the personal care valued by both 
patients and GPs. Networks will also be large enough to have impact through better 
collaboration between practices and other services in health and social care. 
 
Other Partners 
 

We work closely with a wide range of voluntary and non-statutory services locally 
and with our local authority partners at Hampshire County Council, Fareham 
Borough Council and Gosport Borough Council.  
 
We also liaise closely with colleagues from Public Health Hampshire who provide 
details about the health needs of our local population based on information from the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNDA), which informs our local planning 
decisions. 
 
The CCG is a key partner in the local Health and Wellbeing Board. You can read 
more about our contribution to the work of the Hampshire Health and Wellbeing 
Board in section 1.10.  
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1.2 The Context in Which We Operate 

 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Sustainability and Transformation Partnership 
(STP) 
 

The CCG plays a key role in the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Sustainability and 

Transformation Partnership. The 21 health and care organisations across Hampshire 

and the Isle of Wight continue to work together to address the many opportunities 

and challenges facing us. We have been developing ways by which local people 

know how to stay well whilst making sure we provide safe, high quality, consistent 

and affordable health and care for our population. 

 

Portsmouth and South East Hampshire Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) 
 
Over the past 12 monthôs work has continued to further develop an Integrated Care 

Partnership for Portsmouth and South East Hampshire, which brings together NHS 

commissioners and providers with local authorities to pool our efforts to transform 

local health care in a coordinated, joined up way. 

This helps us to build on the close working relationship we have always had with 

Portsmouth CCG and our local provider trusts, and our intention is to continue, and 

further strengthen, these relationships as part of the integrated care partnership 

model. 

It is evident, and beneficial, that the CCG Partnership and the Portsmouth and South 

East Hampshire Integrated Care Partnership share similar aims and objectives, 

placing an emphasis on care out of hospital, integrated approaches to urgent, 

primary, community and social care and the need to adopt common and coordinated 

approaches where it makes sense to do so.  

Our Objectives and Strategies 
 
As part of the Partnership of CCGs, we have identified three priorities to help us 
meet our objectives and focus on the areas which we, and our partners, believe 
need most attention locally. 
 

 

We will ensure that local people 
have consistent access to timely 
high quality care, in line with the 
NHS constitution. 
 
We will improve efficiency and 
value for money so that we 
manage within the available 
budget. 
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We will achieve this by fully 
implementing models of care in all 
localities, working with patients 
and partners in order to improve 
outcomes and experience, and to 
make services sustainable. 
 

 

We will succeed by supporting the 
development of our workforce and 
member practices.  
 
We will reform the way we and the 
commissioning system work, 
planning and delivering care with 
our partners ï locally, in integrated 
health and care systems, and at 
scale across the Partnership 
 

These priorities reflect the work we need to do to deal with the challenges that we 
are seeking to resolve around urgent and primary care and establish new ways of 
providing out of hospital care and support that will mean people spend less time in 
hospital settings. 
 
They include redesigning urgent care services, and looking at how we can redesign 
certain elective care pathways through our work with our local partners. We want to 
be able to offer more support for people closer to home through the development of 
primary care community care (as described by the NHS Long Term Plan) with the 
overall aim of reducing unnecessary admission to hospital and ensuring timely 
discharge. 
 
We will also seek to improve the resilience of general practice, again through the 
development of primary care networks and our local GP alliance. And, of course, we 
will ensure we have robust plans in place to manage our financial position in 
accordance with the requirements set for us by NHS England. 
 
Looking Ahead 
 
The CCGs within the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership are changing the way 
we work so that we can better support the health and care system in to improve 
services, improve outcomes and improve performance, enabling people to be as 
healthy and independent as possible.  
 
The Governing Bodies of Southampton City CCG, West Hampshire CCG and the 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs met together in 2019 to start to 
look at closer working. The preference of the Governing Bodies was to set a course 
towards a single CCG for Hampshire and the Isle of Wight by April 2021, to focus 
effort on how we make this work ï locally and at scale ï and to use our collective 
skills and resources to deliver tangible improvements for residents. 
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Over the next six months, and in preparation for being designated as an Integrated 
Care System (ICS) from September 1st 2020, we are embarking on a series of 
changes designed to simplify and improve commissioning in the area. We are not 
just changing what we do, we want to change how we work too, with a different 
mind-set, culture and behaviours, emphasising a relationship-based approach to 
planning services.  
 
We see commissioning as a joint endeavour and collaborative activity, requiring the 
combined skills, experience, perspective and expertise of NHS providers, CCGs and 
local government, and the input of local people. Through collective leadership, we 
will make more effective choices about how to improve population health and health 
services within the available resources. 
 
Together with Southampton City CCG and West Hampshire CCG we are looking at 
future ways of working, setting up systems and processes which will better enable 
shared decision making and will help move us towards this end goal. To this end we 
have set up a future ways of working steering group, who are looking at the action 
plan to move us into new ways of commissioning care.  
 
The Partnership Leadership Team is actively involved in the development of the 
emerging ICS for Hampshire and the Isle of Wight. In addition to the work that is 
taking place across the Sustainability and Transformation Partnership footprint, close 
working with our local authority partners continues to be a priority for the Partnership. 
We are working closely with Hampshire County Council and have identified four joint 
commissioning priorities to improve outcomes for the local population. We have 
developed a shared ambition for change to push further and faster towards the aim 
of transforming the delivery of health and social care so that it is better integrated, 
delivered as locally as possible, person centred with an emphasis on prevention and 
intervening early to prevent escalation 
 
The Partnership has been working with key stakeholders and the main voluntary 
sector organisations to think about how they might work together at scale across the 
Hampshire and the Isle of Wight through a new model that ensures that the sector 
can support partnership priorities. This could include a whole new way of contracting 
with the sector as well as reviewing how the sector is sustainably supported by 
commissioners in the future.  Specifically the Partnership has asked the sector to 
focus on the following four priority areas: 
 

1. Increasing support for people on mental health waiting lists, together with 
mental health óstep-downô services, to reduce overall demand for statutory 
services 

2. Boosting Hospital to home services for patients in acute and community 
hospitals, to reduce delayed discharges and the likelihood for readmission 

3. Developing existing signposting and connector models to all GP practices or 
Primary Care Networks to reduce pressures on statutory services and the 
burden of care for individuals 

4. Developing preventative activities and services to which people could be 
referred through social prescribing. 

 



 

16 
 

Voluntary sector commissioners in CCGs and local authorities are meeting to share 
best practice and consider pooling resources. 
 

1.3 Performance Overview  

 

Primary Care Networks 

 

All of our practices signed up to be part of a primary care network by the national 

deadline in July 2019. These networks enable them to build resilience and work 

together to develop a range of innovative services, including the development of 

multi-disciplinary teams to support patient care. 

Primary care networks encourage GP surgeries to work together to serve patient 

populations of between 30,000 - 50,000 people, in return for additional funding. By 

working together, practices will have scope to offer a wider range of services to 

patients than would be possible for individual practices. This would include services 

such as physiotherapy, extended access or social prescribing. A network of practices 

will not only help individual surgeries to become more resilient but will enable them 

to offer a wider choice of appointments to patients. The CCG has allocated a locality 

director to support the development of each network. 

Primary care networks can work more closely with integrated care teams to meet the 

needs of their local population and clinical directors (GP leads) of the networks have 

already started to work together and with partners. 

One of the initial areas the networks are concentrating on is the further development 

of social prescribing, and each has recruited to additional link worker roles in the 

past year. Social prescribing involves helping patients to improve their health, well-

being and social welfare by connecting them to community services which might be 

run by the council or a local charity through a link worker. A high number of patients 

(as many as one in four) see their doctor because of social problems and for welfare 

advice. For this group of patients, social prescribing has been shown to improve 

quality of life and emotional, mental and general well-being and also to improve 

levels of depression and anxiety.  

The CCGs also secured some funding to set up a local Social Prescribing 

Community of Practice.  A Community of Practice is about bringing people together 

with a shared interest to learn how to do something better through closer joint 

working, so this is being aimed at the new social prescribing link workers and others 

whose core role is social prescribing.  

The initial focus will be on joint workforce development to reinforce core 

competencies and provide further skill development beyond this.  Community First 

has been commissioned to lead this for us.  We will aim for it to be become self-

facilitated and to build on these closer joint working arrangements to develop further 

local collaboration. 
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Meanwhile a network in Fareham has focused on care homes, aligning an individual 

practice to homes in the area to provide a consistent offer of care and effective care 

planning. A similar approach is being developed in Waterlooville and one of the 

advantages of primary care networks is the opportunity they afford to test 

approaches to services locally and share successful ones as they evolve. 

Integrated Intermediate Care  

The CCG is working with, and supporting, a new way of working in the provision of 

intermediate care services. Intermediate care helps individuals to be as independent 

as possible using a blended approach where health and social care work without 

traditional organisational boundaries to ensure individuals receive the most effective 

support they require where and when they need it, and ideally in their own homes or 

through supported living. It encompasses the provision of rehabilitation, reablement 

and recovery services for individuals at risk of hospital admission or who have been 

in hospital.  

For instance, it may help people: 

¶ remain at home when they start to find things more difficult 

¶ recover after a fall, an acute illness or an operation 

¶ avoid going into hospital unnecessarily 

¶ return home more quickly after a hospital stay.  

 

At the moment Southern Health Foundation Trust and Hampshire County Council 

have been working towards the full integration of their respective reablement, 

rehabilitation and recovery teams by April 2020, with both organisations committed 

to creating a safe and effective integrated intermediate care service for Hampshire.  

This will enable us to make the best possible use of our combined health and social 

care skills and resources so that we can provide a joined up, positive experience for 

individuals in need of support to enable them to remain as independent as possible. 

The creation of a Hampshire-wide intermediate care service will bring together the 

Councilôs Reablement services and the Trustôs bed and community-based 

rehabilitation services. 

Antibiotic Prescriptions 

We have seen another encouraging fall in the number of patient prescriptions for 

antibiotics this year. This is important because the more we use antibiotics the more 

we can become resistant to them and without effective antibiotics, the risk will 

increase for many routine treatments - setting broken bones, basic operations, even 

chemotherapy all rely on access to effective antibiotics 

According to figures released in June 2019, in Fareham and Gosport the number fell 

from 9,044 to 7,439 (18%). 
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Our medicines management team has been supporting audits in practices around 

antimicrobial use and GPs and practice nurses are taking a pro-active role in 

promoting alternative treatments where appropriate. Patients are also helping 

clinicians to spread the word with an active network of óAntibiotic Guardiansô 

championing the calls for the drugs to be prescribed only when absolutely 

necessary.  

In the Fareham and Gosport and South Eastern Hampshire areas alone, the number 

of guardians has shot up from 17 to 276 in a twelve-month period.  

Improving access to primary care with online support 

 

GP practices have been aligning themselves with the new NHS app programme over 

the past year. Patients using the app can access information about conditions and 

treatments, book and manage appointments, order a repeat prescription, check if 

they need urgent help and view their medical record.   

 

It has benefits which mean that people can get 24 hour access from anywhere, they 

do not have to spend long periods of time on the phone and they have more control 

over appointments. It works for practices too, in that it means staff can spend less 

time dealing with requests to book appointments and order repeat prescriptions. It 

also means that instances of patients not attending for appointments are reduced as 

it is easier for them to cancel appointments if they need to.  

 

Meanwhile, the implementation and wider use of eConsult, continues. This is an 

online function that involves the practice responding to enquiries from patients 

through their website, usually within 48 hours, often saving patients the need to book 

routine appointments.  

 

People often have simple questions that can be answered by email ï giving patients 

reassuring and faster advice than waiting for an appointment.  

 

eConsult is making a big difference to patients ï by giving them the chance to have a 

consultation from the comfort of their home and saving them having to phone or 

come to the surgery. They can also be directed to the most appropriate service for 

them at the first point of contact ï rather than attending an appointment only to be 

told they need to go somewhere else.  

 

Using eConsult also frees up doctorsô time to see those patients who most need an 

appointment. 
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75,000 Milestone for Fareham Primary Care Service 

Our GP scheme to help patients in Fareham access same-day appointments 

continues to be well regarded and reached a milestone seeing its 75,000th patient ï 

less than a fortnight before its second anniversary in September. 

The service is seeing more than 3000 patients a month, on average, and its regular 

patient surveys record very positive experiences from those who use it with 92% of 

respondents extremely likely or likely to recommend the service to friends or family. 

The Fareham Primary Care Service (FPCS) brings together GPs from three 

practices to offer same-day appointments in Fareham Community Hospital for their 

registered patients. It also provides a home visiting service. A big benefit is that 

colleague GPs back in the individual practices have more time to focus on complex 

issues and ongoing problems, sometimes offering patients longer appointments, 

which can in turn improve health outcomes. 

The hub is also staffed by advanced nurse practitioners, a musculoskeletal specialist 

and a health care assistant from Jubilee Surgery (Titchfield), The Highlands Practice 

(Fareham) and the Whiteley Surgery. 

Managing demand for urgent care services 

 

There continues to be a high degree of co-ordination and cooperation between all 

parts of the Portsmouth and south east Hampshire health and care system.  

 

There have been several areas of focus ï seeking to reduce the number of 

óinappropriateô attendances at the Emergency Department, increasing the óflowô of 

patients through the acute hospital system, ensuring safe and timely discharges from 

hospital, and strengthening out of hours primary care provision. 

 

Whilst much of the focus remains on managing urgent care demand over the winter 

months in particular pressures on service provision are significant throughout the 

year.  

 

A range of schemes are being developed, tested and implemented to support 

admissions avoidance work, manage demand on the Emergency Department and 

speed up discharges from hospital, where appropriate to free up bed capacity. These 

have included: 

¶ A direct access/advice and guidance pathway commenced in September 

2019 enabling South Central Ambulance Service to convey patients directly 

into the Ambulatory Medical Unit (AMU). This effectively bypasses ED and 

reduces pressure on the service.  

¶ A number of schemes have been run to manage ófront doorô and ówalk-inô 

demand a the ED as well, including Emergency Nurse Practitioners providing 
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a ñsee and treatò service at the front door for patients presenting with minor 

injuries/illness; increased primary care capacity and hours, providing up to 48 

appointments each day ï for patients whose needs can be served by seeing a 

GP and a redirection project that advises patients with minor injuries or 

illnesses who attend the Emergency Department to seek help and advice from 

other services including primary care or an urgent treatment centre. 

¶ An enhanced model of Frailty Assessment to pull appropriate patients from 

the main ED in to a dedicated Frailty assessment unit, improving experience 

and outcomes for frail older patients and reducing pressure on the main ED 

¶ Work has also continued in providing extra support, advice and generally 

closer working with care homes in order to reduce the need for residents to be 

admitted urgently to hospital.  

 

Comprehensive work is being undertaken with system partners to ensure patients 

are discharged from hospital to other care settings in a more timely way once they 

have received all of the acute care they need. This is part of ongoing work to 

improve flow throughout the hospital to support ED capacity and additional 

community beds have been funded to support this. A Home First project in the lead 

up to Christmas was also implemented to ensure that as many patients as possible 

could be supported in returning home ahead of the festive season if they were able 

to. 

 

Transformation Funding Enhances Psychiatric Liaison in Mental Health 

Money from a national NHS transformation fund for mental health liaison is enabling 

mental health and acute trusts and commissioners across Hampshire to work 

together to increase and better coordinate the provision of psychiatric liaison in 

Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust and other acute hospitals across the county. 

The scheme will see four psychiatric liaison teams, based on-site at each hospital 

operating 24 hours a day, seven days a week and aiming to see adults requiring 

mental health support within one hour of an emergency department referral. 

A liaison mental health service already exists at Queen Alexandra hospital, with the 

new funding allowing the service to develop in a more coordinated way (to reduce 

variation across Hampshire) by having similar models and recruiting additional staff 

to expand the assessment and care offered to patients. 

Additional specialist staff will mean that patients in A&E and on wards wonôt have to 

wait as long for a mental health assessment. This will mean less time spent in 

hospital and will significantly improve the quality of holistic health care while in an 

acute hospital setting.  
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In addition to the funding for improved psychiatric liaison services, Southern Health 

has also worked with partners to secure a further £1.1 million to invest in community-

based crisis mental health services. 

The Trust linked with local commissioners across Southampton, Portsmouth and 

Hampshire, plus the Isle of Wight NHS Trust, Solent NHS Trust, and several local 

charities - Solent Mind, Havant Mind and Two Saints on the Isle of Wight. 

The new money will see greater investment in peer support workers (people who 

have themselves experienced mental health problems) as well as nurses and 

medical staff in community teams. It will also enable more joined up services so that 

operating hours can be increased. 

Digital First Transformation Project 

As part of our transformation programme for elective care the CCGs have been 

working together as an integrated care partnership with Portsmouth Hospitals Trust 

to find ways of streamlining access to care for patients. Previously patients have had 

to have multiple attendances at hospitals that have not always added value for either 

the patient or the clinician.  

Using the e-referrals platform we have worked with four key specialties (Urology, 

Cardiology, Gastroenterology and Ophthalmology) to enable GPs to virtually access 

specialist advice and allowing primary care to manage their patients more efficiently 

reducing the need for face to face contacts. Where possible this digital first approach 

includes a diagnostic first to enable specialists to assess patients in a holistic way 

without the need for repeat attendances.  

Whilst this directly improves the patient experience it also has the knock-on impact of 

reducing demand into hospitals and will in time improve waiting times for those 

patients who still require face to face appointments. 

Maternity and Childrenôs Health 

Portsmouth Maternity department continues to work with commissioners and the 

local maternity system working forwards the Better Birth recommendations. The 

Governmentôs national ambitions for transforming maternity services, aimed at 

improving outcomes for women, their babies and families, were set out via the Better 

Births Programme which started in 2016. NHS England/Improvement advised last 

year that the Local Maternity Systems have been instrumental in the national 

success of achieving measurable improvements in safety outcomes for women, their 

babies and families in maternity and neonatal services. 

In October 2019 Fareham and Gosport CCG received non-recurrent funding from 

NHS England/Improvement (relating to 2019/20) to be spent on improving local 

quality of care for adults and children and young peopleôs hospice and palliative care 

services. The CCG used this funding to improve services at two local hospices. 
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Following on from a successful pilot the newly commissioned Acute Paediatric 

Mental Health Service will commence from the 1st April 2020.The service will be 

provided by Solent NHS Trust and will offer psychiatric assessment and support to 

children and young people up to the age of 18 presenting at the Paediatric 

Emergency Department, whilst also offering ward based support. The service will be 

in operation Mon-Fri 9am-midnight and from 4pm-midnight at weekends. 

It is widely acknowledged that the demand for complex care is growing year on year. 

This is due to advancements in medical technology ensuring longer lives for children 

with the most complex physical needs and changes to the framework for Continuing 

Care to recognise the health needs of children with challenging behaviours.  The 

Continuing Care team has successfully recruited to ensure capacity and expertise.  

The Childrenôs Continuing Care team has established a joint Multi-Agency Resource 

Panel this year with Hampshire County Council colleagues in Social Care and 

Special education to discuss and agree provision for all children with Continuing 

Care to ensure that there is a reduction in inequalities in resource provision and 

accessibility across Hampshire. This is supporting tripartite oversight of all packages 

of care and provision. 

New Wheelchair Services Contract 

The CCG, working with NHS Portsmouth CCG and NHS South Eastern Hampshire 

CCG, have invested further funding and capacity into the current wheelchair service 

to help the provider manage and capacity and meet demand.  We also successfully 

tendered, after a procurement process and engagement with service users, for a 

new wheelchair provider ï AJ Mobility ï who will begin providing the service from the 

1st April 2020.  Through the further investment we delivered an additional 250 

assessments to those waiting and through the new provider we will continue to 

improve outcomes and experience for local patients, along with offering increased 

access to Personal Wheelchair Budgets. 

 

 

 

 

 

1.4 Performance Analysis  
 

2018/19 Integrated Assurance Framework 
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The table below shows the published Integrated Assurance Framework outcomes for 

2018/19 for the CCGs in the Partnership.   

 
NHS Fareham & 

Gosport CCG 
 

 
NHS Isle of Wight 

CCG 

 
NHS North 

Hampshire CCG 

 
NHS South 

Eastern 
Hampshire CGG 

 
Requires 

Improvement 

 
Requires 

Improvement 

 
Good 

 
Requires 

Improvement 
 

 

The NHS Oversight Framework for 2019/20 has replaced the CCG Improvement and 

Assessment Framework (IAF) and the provider Single Oversight Framework, and will 

inform assessment of CCGs in 2019/20, the results of which are expected to be 

published in July 2020 and therefore not available at the time of writing this report. 

Performance  

This section of the Annual Report sets out the Partnership of CCGs performance 

against key targets, best practice and benchmarking which comprise: 

¶ Targets set out in the NHS Constitution 

¶ Local Partnership priorities and, 

¶ National priorities (other than in the NHS Constitution). 

The Partnership has a shared set of 3 overarching aims and 6 objectives for 

2019/20, underpinned by 26 Priorities for delivery, aiming to improve health and care 

services; delivering the right care, in the right place at the right time for local people. 

The targets and performance reporting ensures that the Partnership has an overview 

of performance to enable action to be taken to secure improvements where 

necessary.   

The report summarises the performance as at the end of March 2020 unless 

otherwise stated. The COVID-19 pandemic reached the UK in early March 2020 and 

therefore the impact of the early stages are present in the March 2020 data.   

Achievements in 2019/20- HIOW Partnership of CCGs 

Cancer care access targets and waiting times  

The Partnership has met five of the eight constitutional metrics for cancer for the 

year. 

Adult Mental Health: Early intervention in psychosis waiting times, dementia 

diagnosis rates and improving access to psychological therapies 
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The importance of mental health is well recognised across the Partnership and the 

adult mental health standards continue to be successfully delivered in 2019/20. 

Mental Health:  Children and Young People Accessing Mental Health Services 

The importance of mental health is well recognised across the Partnership and the 

impact of mental ill health can start in childhood, adolescence and young adulthood.  

The CCGs within the Partnership are all exceeding this ambition. 

Performance challenges and risks in 2019/20- HIOW Partnership of 

CCGs 

Elective Care: Referral to Treatment (RTT) and Diagnostic Waiting Times 

Delivery of the Referral to Treatment (RTT- also known as 18-weeks) and diagnostic 

waiting timeôs targets has been challenging across the Partnership. The CCGs have 

continued to work in close collaboration with local providers across Hampshire and 

the Isle of Wight.   

Non- Elective Care: A&E Waiting Times and Ambulance Response Times 

Treating patients within four hours in Accident and Emergency departments has 

been a national challenge through 2019/20.  Across the Partnership, two of the four 

ambulance targets were achieved.  The Partnership is supporting a number of 

different programmes to reduce A&E demand and non-elective admissions.  

Mental Health: Children and Young People Eating Disorder Services and 

Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services 

Demand for our Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services providers has 

meant that it has been challenging to achieve and sustain good waiting times for 

patients. 

Achievements in 2019/20- Fareham and Gosport CCG  

Fareham and Gosport CCG has performed strongly against a number of key 

constitutional standards and operating plan commitments in 2019/20. 

Cancer Care Access Targets and Waiting Times  

The CCG achieved six of the eight constitutional metrics for cancer in 2019/20. The 

62 Wait for First Treatment following a GP referral was achieved in the last 3 

quarters but was missed overall. 

 

Elective Care: Referral to Treatment (RTT) 
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Despite a challenging start to the year, there has been a steady and sustained 

improvement (reduction) in the overall incomplete waiting list size with the CCG 

achieving the RTT waiting list size target for 2019/20. 

Adult Mental Health:  Early Intervention in Psychosis waiting times and 

Improving Access to Psychological Therapies 

The CCG is on target to achieve the Early Intervention in Psychosis waiting time 

standard and 3 of the 4 Improving Access to Psychological Therapies standards in 

2019/20. 

Performance challenges and risks in 2019/20 for Fareham and 

Gosport CCG 

Diagnostic Waiting Times 

Delivery of the Diagnostic Waiting Time standard in 2019/20 has been a challenge 

for the CCG. We continue to work with system partners to improve and sustain 

performance. 

Mental Health: Dementia Diagnosis Rate 

Although performance has steadily improved throughout the year, the CCG failed to 

achieve the Dementia Diagnosis Standard in 2019/20. 

Elective Care 

Referral to Treatment (RTT) and Diagnostic Waiting Times 

Delivery of the Referral to Treatment (RTT also known as 18-weeks) and diagnostic 

waiting timeôs targets has been challenging across the Partnership.   The CCGs 

have continued to work in close collaboration with local Providers across Hampshire 

and the Isle of Wight to reduce waiting list size and improve performance.   

Indicators 

¶ Percentage of Patients waiting greater than 6 weeks for a diagnostic test X 

¶ Patients on incomplete non-emergency pathways (yet to start treatment) 

should have been waiting no more than 18 weeks from referral  X 

Some of the initiatives include; 

¶ Focused programmes of work across local hospitals to treat those patients 

waiting the longest with greater than 52 week waiting times. With 33 patients 

waiting over 52 weeks at the end of March 2020.   
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The Portsmouth and South East region of the Partnership has joint outpatient 

modernisation programmes across many specialties which has included; extending 

tele-dermatology programme and exploring further opportunities as part of the NHSE 

national programme and implementing advice and guidance common conditions 

pathways across Ear Nose and Throat. 

Hampshire Hospitals had specific challenges for Urology waiting times and have an 

extensive improvement plan that includes additional theatre lists, implementing the 

local anaesthetic prostate biopsy service, medical recruitment programme and 

clinical educational events.  Hampshire Hospitals introduced the Rezum procedure 

for Urology patients and were initially one of few hospitals offering this procedure 

and this impacted on their waiting times. Rezum is a new minimally invasive or 

endoscopic surgical procedure that involves using water vapour (steam) to remove 

obstructing prostate tissue, with reduced patient side effects. 

Hampshire Hospitals have introduced an outpatient transformation program, which 

includes non face-to-face appointments, patient initiated follow-up appointments and 

MyMedicalRecord for breast surgery patients, increasing clinical capacity to see and 

treat patients.  

Diagnostic Test Waiting Time  

Delivery of the Diagnostic Waiting Time standard in 2019/20 has been a challenge 

for the CCG. 

¶ As at the end of 2019/20, 95.3% of patients were reported as waiting less 

than 6 weeks for their diagnostic test at the end of each month against a 

target of 99%. X 

We continue to work closely with our main acute provider, Portsmouth Hospitals 

Trust, and other local providers to create a sustainable diagnostics service, 

supporting early diagnosis and access to rapid diagnostics for suspected cancer 

patients.  

Referral to Treatment (RTT) 

The 2019/20 NHS Operating Planning Guidance requires CCGs to ensure their 

Referral to Treatment (RTT) Incomplete waiting list size at the end of the financial 

year is no larger than the March 2019 out turn position; 
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¶ The CCGôs Referral to Treatment RTT Incomplete waiting list size at the end of 

March 2020 was 11,779 pathways against a year-end threshold of 11,900 

pathways. Ṋ 

¶ For the same period, there was one patient reported as waiting in excess of 52 

weeks for treatment against a zero tolerance. X 

¶ In 2019/20, the CCG and wider system initiated a priority programme working 

with acute and community providers to transform end-to-end pathways and 

reduce attendances in favour of management within community services, primary 

care or patient self-management as appropriate. 

Cancer Care ï HIOW Partnership of CCGs 

Cancer Care Access Targets and Waiting Times 

The Partnership has met five of the eight constitutional metrics for cancer for the 

year. 

Indicators 

¶ Maximum 2-week wait for first outpatient appointment for patients referred 

urgently with suspected cancer by a GP Ṋ 

¶ Maximum two-week wait for first outpatient appointment for patients referred 

urgently with breast symptoms (where cancer was not initially suspected) Ṋ 

¶ Maximum one month (31-day) wait from diagnosis to first definitive treatment 

for all cancers Ṋ 

¶ Maximum 31-day wait for a subsequent treatment where the treatment is 

surgery X 

¶ Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent treatment where that treatment is an 

anti-cancer drug regime Ṋ 

¶ Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent treatment where the treatment is a 

course of radiotherapy X 

¶ Maximum two month (62-days) wait from urgent GP referral to first definitive 

treatment for cancer X 

¶ Maximum 62-day wait from referral from an NHS screening service to first 

definitive treatment for all cancers Ṋ 

Across the Partnership significant improvements have been achieved including: 

¶ Hampshire Hospitals are part of the national 28-day faster diagnosis pilot.   

¶ The Isle of Wight NHS has made a number of improvements to the patient 

pathway including; working with the Wessex Cancer Alliance to develop a 

Rapid Diagnostic Service. As part of the Wessex Cancer Alliance Inter-
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Provider Transfer group have published the policy to regulate waiting times for 

investigations and treatments at tertiary centres. 

¶ Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust have put into place a revised cancer 

assurance cycle that facilitates timely treatment for patients.  

Cancer Care- Fareham and Gosport CCG 

The CCG achieved 6 of the 8 national cancer standards in 2019/20; 

¶ 96.4% of patients waited no more than 2 weeks to see a specialist following a 

referral for suspected cancer against a target of 93%. Ṋ 

¶ 96.2% of patients referred for investigation of breast symptoms were seen within 

2 weeks against target of 93%. Ṋ 

¶ 96.9% of patients waited 31 days or less from the date a decision to treat was 

made to their first definitive treatment. Ṋ 

¶ 91.2% of cancer patients waited no more than 31 days for subsequent treatment 

where the treatment was surgery against a standard of 94%. X 

¶ 99.3% of patients waited no more than 31 days wait for subsequent treatment 

where the treatment was an anti-cancer drug against a target of 98%. Ṋ 

¶ 96.5% of patients waited no more than 31 days for subsequent treatment where 

the treatment was Radiotherapy against a target of 94%. Ṋ 

¶ 84.3% of patients received their first treatment within 62 days following a GP 

referral against a target of 85%.X 

¶ 97.1% of patients waited no more than 62 days for their first treatment following a 

referral from a screening service against a target of 90%. Ṋ 

 

The CCGôs performance is closely linked with that of our main acute provider, 

Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust.  

 

The Trustôs Cancer Performance benchmarks well when compared nationally but 

consistent delivery of the 62 Day Wait for First Treatment Following a GP Referral 

has remained a challenge. The CCG and the Trust continue to work on streamlining 

Cancer pathways to reduce waiting times, sustain and improve performance. 

 

Non- Elective Care 

A&E Waiting Times and Ambulance Response Times- HIOW Partnership of 

CCGs 

Treating patients within four hours in Accident and Emergency departments has 

been a national challenge through 2019/20. The Partnership is supporting a number 

of different programmes to reduce A&E demand and non-elective admissions.  
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Across the Partnership, two of the four ambulance targets were achieved.  These are 

calls that are classified as immediately life threatening and require an emergency 

response (with blue lights). There are different targets dependent on the scale of the 

emergency. South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust with the 

exception of the Isle of Wight where the local NHS Trust is responsible for delivering 

ambulance services provides the majority of ambulance services across the 

Partnership to the CCG.  

Indicators 

¶ Patients should be admitted, transferred or discharged within 4 hours of their 
arrival at an A&E department (CCG) X 

¶ Category 1 is for calls about people with life-threatening injuries and illnesses, 
resulting in an emergency response arriving within 7 minutes (Cat 1) X 

¶ Category 2 is for emergency calls, resulting in an emergency response 
arriving within 18 minutes (Cat 2) X 

¶ Category 3 is for urgent calls, resulting in a response within 120 minutes (Cat 

3) Ṋ 

¶ Category 4 is for less urgent calls, resulting in a response within 180 minutes 

(Cat 4) Ṋ 

 

There is particular pressure across the Isle of Wight that is comparatively small-scale 

service compared to other ambulance trusts.  The geography of the Isle of Wight 

gives rise to unique challenges that also support patient transfers to and from the 

mainland UK.   The CCGs across the Partnership are working collaboratively with 

local ambulance services and commissioners, national bodies, and system partners 

to support the ambulance trusts to improve performance against their core targets.  

On the Isle of Wight, the Urgent Treatment Centre (UTC) opened in November 2019 

to see and treat some of the less complex patients. 

A&E Waiting Times ï Fareham and Gosport CCG 

The CCGôs main provider, Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust continues to take part in 

the national pilot of the new national urgent and emergency care access standard. 

Consequently, the Trust is not reporting their A&E 4 hour performance during the 

period of the pilot in line with national directive.  

Ambulance Response Time- Fareham and Gosport CCG 

Locally ambulance response times were in part affected by extended handover 

delays at Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust reflecting the challenges associated with 

patient flow across the system. In response, the Trust and System have worked to 

increase patient flow by improving patient pathways, reducing unnecessary delayed 

transfers of care and increasing out of hospital capacity. 
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Are patients rights under the NHS 
Constitution being promoted? 

  

  
F&G
CCG   

IOW
CCG   

NHC
CG   

SEH
CCG 

Red - Target missed;  Amber - within 5% of target; Green - Target 
met Targe

t  
2019/

20  
2019/

20  
2019
/20  

2019/
20 NHS Constitution Measures 

    Referral to Treatment waiting times for non-urgent 
consultant-led treatment 

  
                

Patients on incomplete non-emergency pathways (yet to 
start treatment) should have been waiting no more than 18 
weeks from referral 

92.0
0% 

 

81.77
% 

 

72.65
% 

 

84.30
% 

 

82.94
% 

Diagnostic test waiting times                   

Patients waiting for a diagnostic test should have been 
waiting less than 6 weeks from referral 

>99.
00% 

 

98.13
% 

 

96.79
% 

 

98.06
% 

 

95.97
% 

A&E waits                   

Patients should be admitted, transferred or discharged 
within 4 hours of their arrival at an A&E department (CCG) 

95.00
% 

 

96.17% 

 

75.12
% 

 

79.96
% 

 

95.69% 

Cancer waits - 2 week wait                   

Maximum 2-week wait for first outpatient appointment for 
patients referred urgently with suspected cancer by a GP 

93.00
% 

 

96.48% 

 

94.41
% 

 

92.61
% 

 

95.83% 

Maximum two-week wait for first outpatient appointment for 
patients referred urgently with breast symptoms (where 
cancer was not initially suspected) 

93.00
% 

 

95.91% 

 

95.19
% 

 

93.41
% 

 

93.48% 

Cancer waits 31 days:                                                                

Maximum one month (31-day) wait from diagnosis to first 
definitive trreatment for all cancers 

96.00
%  

97.15% 
 

95.66
%  

96.26
%  

97.49% 

Maximum 31-day wait for a subsequent treatment where 
the treatment is surgery 

94.00
%  

91.11% 
 

91.01
%  

89.43
%  

96.48% 

Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent treatment where that 
treatment is an anti-cancer drug regime 

98.00
% 

 

99.57% 

 

100.00
% 

 

99.57
% 

 

99.21% 

Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent treatment where the 
treatment is a course of radiotherapy 

94.00
% 

 

96.53% 

 

96.24
% 

 

87.73
% 

 

95.93% 

Cancer Waits 62 days:                                                               

Maximum two month (62-days) wait from urgent GP 
referral to first definitive treatment for cancer 

85.00
% 

 

85.02% 

 

69.97
% 

 

79.80
% 

 

84.58% 

Maximum 62-day wait from referral from an NHS screening 
service to first definitive treatment for all cancers 

90.00
% 

 

97.06% 

 

88.50
% 

 

95.70
% 

 

95.88% 

Maximum 62-day wait for first definitive treatment following 
a consultants decision to upgrade the priority of the patient 
(all cancers) 

86.00
% 

 

66.67% 

 

94.12
% 

 

86.67
% 

 

56.82% 

Category 1-4 Ambulance calls:                                                     

Category 1 is for calls about people with life-threatening 
injuries and illnesses, resulting in an emergency response 
arriving within 7 minutes (Cat 1) 

00:07:
00  

00:07:
16  

00:11:
16  

00:07:
16  

00:07:
16 

Category 2 is for emergency calls, resulting in an 
emergency response arriving within 18 minutes (Cat 2) 

00:18:
00  

00:17:
45  

00:25:
54  

00:17:
45  

00:17:
45 

Category 3 is for urgent calls, resulting in a response within 
120 minutes (Cat 3) 

02:00:
00  

02:09:
36  

02:57:
58  

02:09:
36  

02:09:
36 

Category 4 is for less urgent calls, resulting in a response 
within 180 minutes (Cat 4) 

03:00:
00 

  
02:57:

32 
  

04:17:
26 

  
02:57:

32 
  

02:57:
32 
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Mental Health 

Early Intervention in Psychosis waiting times- HIOW Partnership of CCGs 

The CCGs across the Partnership continue to ensure patients experiencing a first 

episode psychosis receive treatment within two weeks of referral. 

Indicator 

¶ Patients experiencing first episode psychosis will be treated with a NICE 

approved care package within two weeks of referral Ṋ 

Early Intervention in Psychosis waiting times- Fareham and Gosport CCG 

Fareham and Gosport CCG continues to provide Early Intervention in Psychosis 

(EIP); 

¶ September 2019 year to date (latest data) 93.3% of patients experiencing a 

first episode of psychosis were treated with a NICE approved care package 

within two weeks of referral against a target of 56%.Ṋ 

Mental Health 

Dementia Diagnosis Rate 

Across the Partnership, the rate of dementia diagnosis has continued to improve.   

Indicator 

¶ Patients aged 65+ with dementia should be formally diagnosed.Ṋ 

 

Dementia Diagnosis Rate 

Despite improvements in performance throughout the year, the CCG missed the 

Dementia Diagnosis Standard in 2019/20 with; 

¶ 65.2% of over 65ôs in the CCGs population thought to have Dementia formally 

diagnosed against a target of 66.7%. X 
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Increases in the estimated dementia prevalence rate across the CCGs local 

population resulted in the CCG narrowly missing our 2019/20 operating plan 

trajectory. The CCG continues to work in conjunction with local GP practices to 

improve the Dementia Diagnosis Rate. 

Mental Health 

Improving Access to Psychological Therapies- HIOW Partnership of CCGs 

The partnership continues to deliver the targets associated with improving access to 

Psychological Therapies. 

Indicators 

¶ Services should be providing timely access to treatment for at least 22% of 

those who could benefit (people with anxiety disorders and depression) X 

¶ Patients referred to this service should start treatment within 6 weeks of 

referral Ṋ 

¶ Patients referred to this service should start treatment within 18 weeks of 

referral Ṋ 

¶ Patients who complete treatment should recover Ṋ 

Improving Access to Psychological Therapies- Fareham and Gosport CCG 

As at the end of February 2020 (latest published data), the CCG is on target to 

achieve 3 of the 4 Improving Access to Psychological Therapy standards; 

¶ 15.4% of people entered treatment (access) against a 2019/20 Operating 

Plan target of 19%. X 

¶ 54.6% Patients who complete treatment should recovered (moving to 

recovery) against a target of 50%Ṋ  

¶ 94.5% of patients referred to IAPT service started treatment within 6 weeks of 

referral against a target of 75% Ṋ 

¶ 99.7% of patients referred to IAPT service start treatment within 18 weeks of 

referral against a target of 95% Ṋ 

The CCG made an investment during 2019/20 to achieve an access rate of 4.75% 

per quarter totalling 19.0% for the year. For 2020/21, the CCG is aiming to achieve 

22% by the end of the 2020/21 financial year. 

Mental Health 

Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services- HIOW Partnership of CCGs 

Demand for our Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services providers has 

meant that it has been challenging to achieve and sustain good waiting times for 

patients.  The importance of mental health is well recognised across the Partnership 
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and the impact of mental ill health can start in childhood, adolescence and young 

adulthood.   

Indicators 

¶ Patients referred to this service should receive an assessment within 8 weeks 

of referral X 

¶ Patients referred to this service should receive a treatment within 18 weeks of 

referral X 

Over the winter months, there has been an increase in referrals and a slight increase 

in Children and Young People (CYP) waiting for assessment and a slight 

improvement in waiting times for CYP waiting to be treated. There has been a 

significant reduction in waiting times for óvulnerableô children demonstrating 

responsiveness of the service.  An internal risk panel has been established, 

focussed on optimising pathway flows and eliminating delays.  

The Trust continues to recruit against additional investment and is sharing learning 

of different ways of providing service across area teams e.g. groups / closer liaison 

with General Practice.  

Childrenôs Psychological Health and Wellbeing Transformation Board met on 11th 

March and will be producing a programme plan by May that will include as a priority 

waiting times for CAMHS. 

Mental Health 

Children and Young People Accessing Mental Health Services- HIOW 

Partnership of CCGs 

The importance of mental health is well recognised across the Partnership and the 

impact of mental ill health can start in childhood, adolescence and young adulthood.  

The CCGs within the Partnership are all exceeding this ambition. 

Indicator 

¶ Child & Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS): 34% of Children and 

Young People Receiving Second Contact with Service by the end of March 

2020 Ṋ 

Children and Young People Accessing Mental Health Services- Fareham and 

Gosport CCG 

¶ The CCG continues to meet the national target of 34% with 40.3% of Children 

and Young People Receiving Second Contact following referral. 
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Mental Health 

Children and Young People Eating Disorder Services- HIOW Partnership of 

CCGs 

Demand for our Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services providers has 

meant that it has been challenging to achieve and sustain good waiting times for 

patients. The importance of mental health is well recognised across the Partnership 

and the impact of mental ill health can start in childhood, adolescence and young 

adulthood.   

Indicator 

¶ Patients referred to these services as an urgent referral should be seen within 

1 week X 

¶ Patients referred to these services as a routine referral should be seen within 

4 weeks X 

Are patients rights under the 
NHS Mental Health measures 
being promoted? 

  

  
F&GC

CG   
IOWC

CG   
NHC
CG   

SEHC
CG   

Red - Target missed;  Amber - within 5% of target; 
Green - Target met 

Target  
2019/2

0  
2019/2

0  
2019/

20  
2019/2

0 

  

NHS Mental Health Measures 

    
  

Early Intervention in Psychosis waiting 
times (Data Apr-Sep 19) 

  
                  

Patients experiencing first episode psychosis 
will be treated with a NICE-approved care 
package within two weeks of referral 

56.00% 

 

93.33% 

 

55.17% 

 

83.33
% 

 

100.00
% 

  

Dementia Diagnosis Rate (Mar-20)                     

Patients aged 65+ with dementia should be 
formally diagnosed 

66.70% 

 

65.60% 

 

64.50% 

 

66.30
% 

 

71.80% 
  

Improving Access to Psychological Therapies   (Data 
Apr 19 - Feb 20)                   
Services should be providing timely access to 
treatment for at least 22% of those who could 
benefit (people with anxiety disorders and 
depression) 

22.00% 

 

16.04% 

 

15.87% 

 

17.05
% 

 

14.87% 

  

Patients referred to this service should start 
treatment within 6 weeks of referral 

75.00% 

 

95.02% 

 

69.90% 

 

93.00
% 

 

93.70% 
  

Patients referred to this service should start 
treatment within 18 weeks of referral 

95.00% 
 

100.00
%  

98.71% 
 

99.59
%  

99.58%   

Patients who complete treatment should 
recover 

50.00% 
 

53.81% 
 

48.20% 
 

51.64
%  

53.37%   

Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services   
(Data Apr 19 - Mar 20)                   

Patients referred to this service should receive 
an assessment within 4 weeks of referral 

95.00% 

 

24.62% 

 

46.20% 

 

51.67
% 

 

19.64% 
  

Patients referred to this service should receive 
a treatment within 18 weeks of referral 

95.00% 

 

36.55% 

 

90.00% 

 

55.30
% 

 

29.90% 
  

Children and Young People Accessing Mental Health Services   (Data Apr 19 - 
Mar 20)           
Services should be providing a minimum of 2 
contacts including treatment for at least 34% of 
those who could benefit (children and young 

34.00% 

 

40.77% 

 

36.45% 

 

34.79
% 

 

38.96% 
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people with a mental health diagnosis) 

Children and Young People Eating Disorder Services   (Data Apr 19 - Mar 20)           

Patients referred to these services as an urgent 
referral should be seen within 1 week 

95.00% 

 

66.67% 

 

25.00% 

 

0.00% 

 

0.00% 
  

Patients referred to these services as a routine 
referral should be seen within 4 weeks 

95.00%   73.33%   71.43%   
63.64

% 
  65.71%   

 

1.5 How we Manage Contracts  

The performance of our providers is managed in a variety of ways, including: 

¶ Contract review meetings 

¶ Board to board meetings 

¶ Chair to Chair/ Managing Director to Chief Executive meetings on specific 

delivery failure points 

¶ Wider system discussions as part of the Integrated Care Partnerships (ICPs). 

¶ Joint analytics discussions evaluating current performance, emerging trends 

and risks. 

A variety of intelligence tools are used across the Partnership to provide us with an 

oversight on performance and to give early warning of any issues that may impact on 

future performance. System-wide trend data is analysed and reviewed to understand 

cause and effect and is a starting point for conversations with provider colleagues to 

understand and address any potential issues before they are realised. 

We work collaboratively with our providers to resolve any performance issues as 

they arise. In addition, we work closely with our colleagues in the Commissioning 

Support Unit to ensure robust contract management processes where necessary. 

Contract review meetings are held locally with key providers, wherever possible 

using providersô own data and existing meetings to encourage a sense of joint 

working and collective resolution of issues. 

1.6 Sustainable Development  
 

Our People 

The CCG encourages staff to use public transport or cycle to work where possible 

and to car share when attending meetings off-site. We have introduced e-

conferencing solutions to encourage the reduction of travel and where possible to 

support clinically led multi-disciplinary team meetings and case conferences in 

primary care. 

 

We recognise that keeping people healthy and reducing the need to travel to hospital 

is essential for the delivery of sustainable healthcare. The CCG continues to design 

and implement new initiatives that support care delivery closer to home and reduce 

travel requirements. We also continually monitor patient transport contracts to 
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ensure that the service provided to patients is of high quality and is environmentally 

sound.  

 

In addition, the CCG seeks to re-deploy durable goods such as IT equipment when 

staff members leave or start with the organisation. Whilst we are a small organisation 

we still have a responsibility to ensure we behave in a responsible, ethical and 

sustainable manner.  

 

As a commissioner of health care services we manage a commissioning budget in 

excess of £300m and with these funds we need to ensure we are taking a 

sustainable approach.  

 

We are committed to acting in a responsible way to become a more efficient 

organisation and thereby consider the impact on sustainability of our actions:  

 

¶ in our commissioning of health care services ï ensuring we support 

environmental and social sustainability in our processes and approaches; 

¶ as an organisation ï taking actions to be a responsible organisation in respect 

of environmental and social sustainability; 

¶ in our relationship with our member practices ï to promote sustainable 

development across all our member practices. 

 

Our Integrated Approach 

 

The move towards delivering a more integrated approach to the provision and 

delivery of services will, we anticipate, have a beneficial effect on the delivery of a 

more efficient local health system through greater sharing of resources, including 

estate and infrastructure, that will lead to greater efficiencies over time. With more 

patients being cared for closer to home it may provide an opportunity to review our 

use of estate further and ensure that we are getting the maximum benefit from it. 

 

Our shared management structure with NHS South Eastern Hampshire CCG means 

that we are able to benefit from economies of scale in certain areas. This has been 

further enhanced through our partnership working arrangements with North 

Hampshire and the Isle of Wight CCGs.  

   

Although we do not own any property we still have a responsibility to ensure we 

behave in a responsible, ethical and sustainable manner where it comes to estates 

matters. 

We acknowledge our responsibility and the contribution we need to make towards 

creating a sustainable future for our patients, local communities and the environment 

by working hard to minimise our footprint. 
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We currently lease our headquarters and associated costs for energy and water 

usage is now managed by our landlord. It has not been possible to obtain a detailed 

breakdown of our energy consumption for 2019/20. NHS Property Services manage 

the contracts for our Facilities Management Services which includes waste removal 

services. 

Paper 

Paper and print costs are traditionally a significant consumable for us but we are 

minimising cost and wastage by using centralised printing facilities and encouraging 

staff to print only when absolutely necessary.  With the now widespread use of 

technology and social media we are continuing to seek ways to reduce our spending 

on printing and paper, we use the app Boardpacks for our large internal and external 

meetings.  We also continue to send our communications publications to staff, 

members and stakeholders by email rather than printed and posted. We no longer 

print significant numbers of this annual report either. 

Waste 

Our in-house shared Medicines Management team continues to keep medicine 

waste high on the agenda for local GP practices and patients too. The cost of wasted 

medicines within our health system is significant so we regularly undertake campaign 

work and support awareness sessions to remind patients, GPs and pharmacists of 

the importance of reducing this figure, by checking that prescriptions are still needed 

and only ordering whatôs needed.  
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1.7 Improving Quality 

Continual improvement in the quality of services we commission is one of our key 

ambitions. We believe that local people in receipt of health and care services have a 

right to high quality care, and in 2019/20 we have continued to work with our 

partners to turn ambition to reality.  

Throughout 2019/20 we have worked with our public, partner CCGs and health and 

care providers to agree a clear definition of quality for health and care services. This 

is based on a definition of quality defined by Don Berwick, former President & CEO 

of the Institute for Healthcare Improvement, which includes 6 domains: 

 

Domain Definition 

Safe 
Avoiding harm to people from the care that is intended to help them 

and safeguard them. 

Effective 

Providing services based on best practice standards to all who could 

benefit, and refraining from providing services to those not likely to 

benefit (avoiding underuse and misuse, respectively). 

Person-

centred 

Providing care that is respectful of and responsive to individual 

peopleôs preferences, needs, and values and ensuring that their values 

guide all clinical and social care decisions. 

Timely 
Reducing waits and sometimes harmful delays for both those who 

receive and those who give care. 

Efficient 
Avoiding waste, including waste of equipment, supplies, ideas, and 

energy. 

Equitable 

Providing care that does not vary in quality because of personal 

characteristics such as gender, ethnicity, disability, geographic 

location, and socioeconomic status, but reflects and respects the 

differing needs of members of our society. 

 

Our CCG uses an established approach to ensuring the requirements for quality are 

met in the services we commission, including:  

¶ Working with providers to agree clear expectations for quality, which are then 

set out in annual contract schedules 

¶ Agreeing quality indicators, with thresholds set for levels of care and working 

with providers to monitor these.  

¶ Use of established quality assurance systems which provide early warning of 

any concerns in care delivery. This includes feedback from patients and staff.  

¶ Working with providers to agree how we will address quality concerns to drive 

improvement.  
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¶ Collation and triangulation of a wide range of data and intelligence gathered 

from quality indicator monitoring, regular inspections and quality visits from 

within the system and by external bodies such as; Care Quality Commission, 

NHS England and NHS Improvement.   

¶ Contractual incentives are used e.g. the CQUIN scheme (Commissioning for 

Quality and Innovation) which enables improvements in local services 

according to national quality priorities.  

¶ The CCG contributes to provider quality priority setting and annual accounts.   

 

Our CCG Quality Assurance Processes 
 

Stage 1: Quality team members and clinicians work in partnership with providers 

on the approach set out above. This includes convening review meetings, 

undertaking clinical visits, attending key provider meetings, supporting provider 

internal peer review processes, undertaking deep dives into speciality areas or those 

of concern, and reviewing provider reports 

 

Stage 2: The CCG holds a monthly Quality Operational meeting where CCG 

quality managers and clinicians consider current provider quality risks and issues, 

and identify actions to take in response to any concerns.  

 

Stage 3: A monthly quality report, including high level risks and exceptions is taken 

to the CCGôs Clinical Delivery Group meeting for consideration. This enables 

ongoing monitoring of the CCGôs quality duty and provider quality risk registers and 

any other issues of importance.  

 

Stage 4: A quality exception report is presented for assurance to lay and other key 

board members at the Partnership Quality, Performance and Finance 

committee. This committee is chaired by a lay member.  

 

Stage 5: The quality exception report and items for escalation from stage 4 are 

considered by the CCG Partnership Board.  

 

Putting Things Right 
 

The CCG is committed to learning and improvement when services donôt get quality 

right for patients. Providers make us aware when things have gone wrong by 

reporting to the national Serious Incident database. The CCG supports providers 

early on in the process of investigation by joining early internal meetings.  

 

Once investigations are completed, the CCG convenes Serious Incident Learning 

and Review Panels.  These panels provide opportunities for provider organisations 

and representatives from the CCG to learn from investigations. Serious incidents are 
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triangulated with other data such as complaints and soft intelligence, which helps to 

ensure learning for sustainable quality improvements, take place.  The CCG works in 

their local system and across a wider footprint to ensure learning is shared.  

 

Safeguarding 
 
Accountability for ensuring effective safeguarding processes are in place rests with 

the CCGôs accountable officer, and these responsibilities are delivered through the 

CCGôs director of nursing and quality.  

 

CCG designated safeguarding and looked after children nurses and doctors work in 

partnership with all key agencies across Hampshire and the Isle of Wight to set out a 

wide range of safeguarding strategies and policies, covering children and adults. 

They ensure these are monitored and reported on every year via the publication of 

respective annual reports. The CCG is represented on the safeguarding adult and 

children boards in Hampshire and the Health and Wellbeing Board.  

 

CCGs host designated healthcare professions who work with and support provider 

named professionals and support safeguarding alert, investigation and learning 

processes. The CCGs provide a key safeguarding link form NHS providers to 

primary and independent sector organisations. CCG safeguarding, look after children 

and child death professionals also ensure a range of multiagency training and 

development opportunities are made available across all sectors.  

In 2019-20 we have had a number of specific campaigns including:  

¶ Supported learning processes from domestic homicide reviews 

¶ Launched a public and staff awareness campaign to prevent harm form head 

trauma (ICON) 

¶ Launched a new campaign to promote safe sleep 

 

Care Quality Commission Inspection Outcomes 

In 2019-20, we saw all of our main health and care providers either improve their 

CQC quality rating, or maintain their ñgoodò rating.  Key providers also saw 

longstanding CQC section 29a or section 31 warning notices lifted or downgraded.  

 

Organisation Previous 
Rating 

2019/20 
Rating 

Improvement 

Portsmouth Hospitals NHS 
Trust 

Requires 
Improvement 

Good ŷ 

Southern Health NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Requires 
Improvement 

Good ŷ 
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Hampshire and Isle of Wight Primary Care Practices CQC Outcomes 

Inadequate Requires Improvement Good 

1 13 144 

 

The CCG actively supports any provider who is required to make improvements by 

the CQC. We have undertaken clinical reviews, mock visits, support for developing 

appropriate improvement actions, training for staff and have developed a range of 

template policies and operating procedures that providers can use to support their 

practice.  

Our Quality Work in 2019/20 

We have continued to deliver a strong and effective quality function which, in 

increasing measures, sees our teams working more closely with patients, carers, 

voluntary groups, our communities and strategic health and social care 

commissioners and providers to deliver effective care and treatment and to minimise 

variation in the quality of services.   

Primary Care 

 

¶ Established professional networking meetings for practice 

nurses and allied health professionals and GP CQC leads. 

¶ Set up non-medical prescribing fora, with CCG medicines 

management teams.  

South Central Ambulance 
Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Good Good  
(Under 

inspection) 

ź 

University Hospitals 
Southampton NHS Foundation 
Trust 

Good Good  
(Under 

Inspection) 

ź 

Solent NHS Trust Good Good  
(Under 

Inspection) 

ź 

Isle of Wight NHS Trust Inadequate Requires 
Improvement 

ŷ 

Hampshire Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Good Requires 
Improvement 

(Under 
Inspection) 

ź 

Sussex Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Good Good ź 

Hospice Care 2 Outstanding 1 Good 1 Good  
(awaiting 

inspection) 
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¶ Supported the development of Primary Care Networks and 

advised our partner Primary Care Alliances on quality 

requirements, including the set-up of the Gosport leg centre 

and complex diabetes clinic. 

¶ Undertaken quality supportive visits in general practice in 

response to pre and post CQC and also at the individual 

request of practices. 

¶ Undertaken infection prevention and control audits in 

primary care and supported practices to investigate critical 

infections in the community, e.g. with methicillin-resistant 

Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) and Clostridium difficile 

(CDI) post infection reporting.  

¶ Provided urgent infection prevention and control advice 

throughout the COVID-19 pandemic and supported the rapid 

establishment of ñhotò primary care sites.  

Care Homes 

 

¶ RESTORE2 ï we have continued to implement our locally 

designed physical deterioration and escalation tool and are 

helping homes feel more confident to manage and escalate 

patients who require rapid medical intervention.  

¶ Developed multi agency quality monitoring systems 

¶ Undertaken frequent visits to all care homes and domiciliary 

providers and made links for safeguarding where 

appropriate. 

¶ Supported improvements with providers through contract 

meetings and signposting to various quality improvement 

programs e.g. falls, end of life and nutrition and hydration. 

¶ Implemented a variety of strategies to improvement 

medicines management in residential and nursing home 

settings.  

¶ We were proud of the NHCCG nursing home team who 

were finalists in the Nursing Times Awards 2019 in the care 

of older people category for the innovative Enhanced Health 

in Care Homes work undertaken with nursing and care 

homes. This including working with primary care to align GP 

surgeries to a single care/nursing home. This project has: 

V Supported people with pro-active and re-active care 

in their normal place of residence 

V Reduced the number of avoidable non-elective 

admissions of residents into an acute setting by 

providing a dedicated multidisciplinary team 

delivering an enhanced care service for nursing and 

residential home.  

V Encouraged greater self-care and identify and 
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undertake preventative measures which will reduce 

the chances of health deterioration 

V Supported advanced care planning for end of life and 

palliative care in conjunction with residents, families 

and carers. 

V Improved compliance and review of medication 

(including nutrition supplements and dressings) and 

using the CCG approved formulary. 

¶ Established networking and training forums across the 

care/nursing home sector supported by the care home 

quality leads to support information exchange, education 

and training in key areas  

¶ Worked with local authority colleagues to deliver Leadership 

development to care home managers.   

¶ Delivered a range of dementia friendly initiatives:  

Acute Care 

 

¶ Supported emergency department safety improvements for 

patients with extended waiting times.  

¶ Supported a range of mental health/mental capacity: 

improvements for care and treatment of patients with mental 

health issues who present in acute care hospitals, including 

increasing access to specialist psychiatry on site, improving 

restraint practice and redesigning crisis pathways and 

community drop in venues.  

¶ Ensured serious incident framework pathway improvements 

resulting in improvement investigations and timeliness. Early 

implementer for the new Patient Safety Incident Response 

Framework in one provider.  

Community 

 

¶ Worked with partners to developing cohesive discharge, 

rehabilitation and reablement services in community based 

beds. 

¶ Facilitated patient pathway improvements across 

organisational boundaries e.g. Heart Failure.  

Mental Health 

 

¶ Established community mental health and well-being 

services 

¶ Strategies to support people living with dementia 

¶ Developed a new approach to supporting people in mental 

health crisis but setting up integrated mental health crisis 

facilities in the community.  

¶ Worked with providers to safely manage waiting times for 

children in mental health crisis.  

¶ Undertaken Mental Capacity Act Training in primary care, 

with case examples being considered in relation to people 

who have a learning disability. 
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¶ Introduced a mental capacity champions forum for care 

homes. 

¶ Undertaken a diligent approach to investigating deaths of all 

people with learning disabilities.  

 

Ambulance ¶ The Integrated Urgency Care/111 pathway transformation 

procurement has developed strong quality requirements 

across complex landscape of commissioners and providers.  

¶ Supported improvements in safeguarding training 

compliance for paramedics.  

All Settings 
 

¶ Partnerships: We have fully embedded process to work 

differently with our providers and now utilise their internal 

meetings to support contractual assurance and support 

quality improvements, preventing duplication.  

¶ Gosport War Memorial Hospital: completion of the review 

undertaken by the Learning Assurance and Oversight Board 

with integrated care partnership identification of local 

priorities and actions. 

Hampshire And 
Isle Of Wight 
System 
 

¶ Developed a standardised and consistent approach to 

Quality Impact Assessments for change programmes.  

¶ Support to local integrated care partnership quality 

functions/groups continues to be provided.  

¶ The end of life group has been reconstituted and is 

working on better communication and involvement in end of 

life decision making.  

¶ The antimicrobial resistance plans have been refreshed, 

with a focus on public education and sepsis.  

 

Managing Patient Feedback, Complaints and Remedy 

The CCG closely monitors patient feedback and complaints, as this gives us insight 

into the quality of the services we commission, and helps us understand where 

things need to improve.  Our annual report for complaints in 2019-20 will be 

considered by our Quality, Performance and Finance Committee following the 

COVID-19 incident restrictions being lifted.  

The CCGsô complaint teams ensure that all complaints are dealt with in compliance 
with the NHS Complaints Regulations (2009), and that these are acknowledged 
within 3 working days of receipt. 19. Overall, the partnership complaints teams 
achieved a 97% compliance with acknowledging complaints within 3 working days.   

 

 
Lessons Learnt from Complaints 
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Summary of complaint Outcome ï Learning and Actions taken 
 

Client raised issues relating to changes 
made to the ordering system for continence 
and stoma products. 
 

To ensure that all stakeholders and patients are involved and 
informed of any changes to pathways, especially where this 
extends outside of the CCGôs boundaries. 

Carer raised concerns in regards to the 
length of time taken to be informed of the 
outcome decision for NHS Continuing Care.  
Incorrect contact details provided to carer to 
raise a complaint about the decision.  
They also highlighted that information had 
been shared with a clinician who is not 
involved in the patients care and treatment 
 

Highlighted to childrenôs commissioning team the need to send 
out the correct complaints team details. 
 
Acknowledged delays and advised of staffing issues within the 
team.   
 
Confirmed that quality check has now been introduced prior to 
letters being sent.  

Client raised concerns around delays 
regarding payment of invoices. 

Process put in place to ensure a responsible member of staff 
is issued sign-off authority during periods of extended 
absence. 

 

Principles of Remedy 

The CCG has policies for handling complaints and claims management (principles 

for remedy) that adhere to the six principles of good practice outlined in the HM 

Treasury Guidance on Managing Public Money (October 2007) as well as Health 

Services Parliamentary Ombudsman guidance on óPrinciples of Remedyô (2010). 

These are:  

V Getting it right; 

V Being customer focused;  

V Being open and accountable;  

V Acting fairly and proportionately;  

V Putting things right;  

V Seeking continuous improvement.  

 

This ensures that effective and timely investigations and response can be instigated 

for any claim, including allegations of negligence, public liability or personal injury 

and also works to reduce the occurrence of incidents and events, which may give 

rise to future claims. More information about the Principles for Remedy can be found 

on the Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsmanôs website.  

 

 

1.8 Engaging People and Communities (Patient and Public 

Involvement) 
 

We have a duty under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 (section 14Z2) to involve 

patients and members of the public in the planning, development and delivery of 
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services that we commission. We report back to our Community Engagement 

Committee on our engagement activity and plans to help us show how we have met 

this requirement in seeking peopleôs views and feedback on local health services. 

 

We are committed to continuing our dialogue with local people and sharing how we 

have listened to their feedback to improve local services and we are grateful to 

everyone who takes time to feed back their views to us, whether it is responding to 

one of our surveys, being a member of our committee or engaging with us in other 

ways. 

 

We support the recommendations set out in the Transforming Participation in Health 

and Care ï óThe NHS belongs to us allô, in letting local people know how we have 

gathered their views and taken them into account in our commissioning decisions. 

This not only applies to formal consultations on service changes, but to any activity 

where patients or the public are asked for their views on particular proposals or 

issues before a decision is made. We also recognise, and work to, the guidance in 

Patient and Public Participation in commissioning health and care: Statutory 

guidance for CCGs and NHS England published in April 2017. 

 

We have also been assessed as part of the NHS Englandôs assurance programme 

relating to our engagement with patients and the public, and we received a rating of 

ógreenô (good) against the Patient and Community Engagement indicator. This, 

essentially, looks at how well the CCG is engaging with local people and 

communities in relation to the commissioning of services. 

 

We recognise the importance of this assessment and will continue to try to meet the 

highest possible ratings as it evolves. 

 

Our local engagement practice has been developed to establish clear routes from 

the Patient Participation Groups run by each GP practice, through to our Partnership 

Board. 

 

Most of our member practices have a Patient Participation Group which patients 

from the practice are able to join and share their views on both their practice and 

wider health services. Each Patient Participation Group has representatives on 

Locality Patient Groups that cover the CCG area. 

 

The Locality Patient Groups have representatives on the CCGôs Communications 

and Engagement Committee. This is chaired by the local non-executive adviser. 

 

The committee has a range of representatives with the non-executive adviser acting 

as the conduit between the committee and the Partnership Board. 
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We also value our links with Healthwatch Hampshire who act as the independent 

champion for health and social care in the county making sure people can have their 

views and experiences heard by those who run, plan and watch over health and 

social care services. We have greatly appreciated the support and assistance 

offered by Healthwatch over the past year. 

 

This has been a busy year for us in terms of seeking the views of our patients and 

residents about local services. We regularly attend community events and forums, 

including district health and wellbeing meetings and safety partnerships, to share 

information about health services and highlight engagement activity being 

undertaken by the CCG. Much of the engagement work we undertake is conducted 

jointly with South Eastern Hampshire CCG and, where appropriate, Portsmouth CCG 

as well. This year our work has included: 

 

Engagement Programme 

 

Your Big Health Conversation ï GP Services 

 

The way in which local people can be provided with GP services is changing with the 

introduction of: 

 

¶ Integrated Primary Care Access Service ï Evening and weekend GP 

appointments for both routine and urgent issues 

¶ Same Day Access Services ï Urgent same day face to face or phone 

appointments 

¶ GP provided phlebotomy tests (blood taking) ï GP practices carrying out 

blood tests at their own practice or one nearby 

¶ Online access (eConsult and NHS app) ï Patients can contact their GP 

through the practice website by completing a simple form which is then looked 

at by a GP who will call or email the patient to give advice, arrange a 

prescription or book an appointment 

¶ Online appointment booking ï Patients can book or cancel GP or nurse 

appointments online 

¶ Online prescription requests ï Patients can order repeat prescriptions online 

¶ Long term condition clinics ï Where patients have all the different checks for 

their condition at the same time, in one place 

¶ Care navigators ï Trained staff who talk to patients to make sure they are 

directed to the right person or service to help them. 

 

We asked local people to share their views on the use of online services, travel, 

awareness of the services, and what would make them more likely to use the 

service so these can be taken into account as the services potentially develop.  
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To do this we developed an online survey, which we tested with some of our patient 

groups, which we promoted through social media, our websites, the media and 

partner websites including the voluntary sector and GP practices. We also went to a 

number of local meetings and venues to talk to people face to face. These included 

going to a shopping centre, Disability Action Group, Older Persons Forum, 

community cafe and a hospital Trust open day. 

 

Those who took part told us: 

 

¶ Awareness of the services is mixed 

¶ Those who have used the services would use them again 

¶ They would like more information about services - online or a guide 

¶ GP practices need to be better at promoting the services 

¶ They are happy to talk to care navigators but want to know why 

¶ Healthcare professionals being able to access medical records, being able to 

see the right person at the right time and travel need to be thought about as 

the Integrated Primary Care Access Service is developed 

¶ Online services need to be improved/simplified 

¶ Travel (transport and time) is important 

¶ The Integrated Primary Care Access Service needs to be renamed. 

 

We are working with practices to look at the feedback received and determine future 

actions which will include helping them promote the services. We are also working 

with the Integrated Primary Care Access Service to develop the future model which 

includes looking at transport and online access. 

 

Developing How NHS111 Helps You  

 

NHS111, ambulance services, GP services and community services are working 

even closer together to provide local people with the right care in the right place at 

the right time. 

 

Not everybody needs the same help when they call NHS111. One person may want 

to know where their local pharmacy is, another may need a community nurse and 

someone else may need to speak to a doctor. 

 

Working together we are developing access to healthcare professionals who can 

advise on the most appropriate clinical care, including callers with mental health 

problems, medication requirements and childrenôs health issues. 

 

We have also introduced NHS111 online as another way of using the service to 

make it easier for local people to get the urgent advice and support they need. 
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We asked local people for their views, through an online survey, to help us consider 

how we can deliver the best possible service. 

 

The key themes from this engagement programme were respondents: 

 

¶ Value receiving advice from a clinician, especially one who can provide the 

specialist advice they need 

¶ Think it is helpful to speak to a clinician before an ambulance is sent to them 

or they are advised to go to A&E, though a number of respondents raised 

concerns about this potentially delaying how quickly someone receives the 

care they need 

¶ The majority of respondents think it is important that NHS111 staff, with their 

consent, are able to access and update their medical records 

¶ The vast majority also think it is important that NHS111 can directly book an 

appointment with their GP or another NHS service 

¶ Just over half of respondents were aware of NHS111with just over half also 

saying they would use it in the future. 

 

The themes from this engagement are being taken into consideration as we develop 

the service and how we provide local people with care and advice when they need it 

urgently in the future. 

 

Getting End of Life Care Right 

 

During 2019/20 we and local NHS partners are looking at the way that patients (and 

their carers) are supported as they near the end of life. 

 

From diagnosis through to palliative care, services must work together to offer 

seamless care, advice and help at every stage. We want to involve patients and 

carers to help us deliver that and have had some early discussions with patient 

groups. We have also started to seek the views of local people through an online 

survey and will be organising events to address the issues raised through the survey 

in more detail. All of the feedback received will be used to help develop how care 

and support is provided. 

 

 

Non-Emergency Patient Transport Service Review 

 

The NHS is inviting service-users to take part in a survey of the Non-Emergency 

Patient Transport Service (NEPTS) in Hampshire. 

 

We are working with all of the CCGs across Hampshire to review the £11m a year 

Non-Emergency Patient Transport Service (NEPTS) to see if improvements can be 
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made to ensure it is being run in the most effective and efficient way for all the 

patients eligible to use it. 

 

All patients are normally expected to make their way to hospital or outpatient clinics 

for non-emergency appointments but the NEPTS service is provided free for the 

small minority of people registered with a GP practice in Hampshire who canôt travel 

to appointments independently on grounds of their medical condition only.  

 

We have sought the views of local people who use this valued service, or are a carer 

for someone who uses the service. We will be analysing and publishing the results 

early 2020/21 and the themes from these will be taken into consideration of the 

review work. 

 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Social Prescribing Network 

 

During 2019/20, along with all of the CCGs across Hampshire and the Isle of Wight, 

we have continued to fund the voluntary sector to plan and co-ordinate quarterly 

interactive Social Prescribing Network meetings. 

 

The purpose of the network is to support the development of social prescribing 

approaches. These can help local people to access local services that can provide 

the support and advice they need to improve their health and wellbeing. These are 

often voluntary sector organisations. 

 

The purpose of the network is to: 

 

¶ Share best practice and learning across Hampshire and Isle of Wight 

social prescribing and health and wellbeing projects and services 

¶ Develop effective working relationships and provide mutual support for 

providers including further improving understanding and relationships 

between health and voluntary, community and social enterprise sector 

partners 

¶ Highlight and find solutions to common issues including promoting local 

activities which have opportunities and potential for replication and 

expansion 

¶ Identify and undertake joint future working opportunities where appropriate 

¶ Share contact details and develop a platform for sharing information about 

what exists and where in relation to social prescribing activities 

¶ Inform and influence commissioners about the value and scale of social 

prescribing activity across the county and to promote social prescribing 

¶ Develop techniques and approaches to provide evidence that 

demonstrates the cost effectiveness and measures impact and value of 

social prescribing 
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¶ Influence the national and regional social prescribing networks and 

agenda  

¶ Create work streams to look at measuring and evidencing impact, quality 

assurance, funding and opportunities for collaborative working within and 

between social prescribing projects.  

 

Fareham and Gosport Voluntary Sector Health Forum 

 

We continue to work closely with the local voluntary sector and are members of the 

Fareham and Gosport Voluntary Sector Health Forum. The forum is a meeting point 

for the health services and more than 50 community groups in the CCGs area that 

support people with health conditions. 

 

The Forum allows patients to influence how health services meet their needs and 

become more effective. Its purpose is to engage, inform and support local health and 

disability groups in the area so that: 

 

¶ They can collectively have their say and influence decision making 

¶ Their work is known and valued by healthcare providers including GPs 

¶ They can put forward proposals to improve the health and wellbeing of 

patients with long term conditions and their families 

¶ They are informed about proposals for the development of health services by 

the CCG and can respond 

¶ They can provide feedback or raise concerns about health services for the 

specific needs of patients with particular conditions. 

 

Seeking the views of local people across Hampshire and the Isle of Wight 

 

As part of our commitment to involving local people in our work we recognise that 

there are issues that are common not just for our population but across the wider 

geography of Hampshire and the Isle of Wight. As such, we work with partners 

across the area to ensure involvement is joined up, that we share our learning from 

the work we undertake and learn from the experiences of people across Hampshire 

and Isle of Wight. 

 

Where there are pieces of work upon which we want to involve the wider population, 

we have historically struggled to comprehensively engage a representative sample 

of our population. To rectify this, during 2019/20 we worked together with colleagues 

across the area to establish Hampshire and Isle of Wight Voices. Voices is a virtual 

group of 3,000 local residents who registered their interest in providing feedback on 

health and care related topics. They accurately represent the Hampshire and Isle of 

Wight population in terms of age, gender, ethnicity, geography and other 

demographic details such as employment status. The group receives surveys via 
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email every two months and enables us to collect quantitative feedback on a variety 

of issues.  

 

Our most recent survey was on the theme of using technology to access care. The 

project findings suggested that there is an opportunity to increase online access to 

health and care services. Respondents were active users of online applications and 

services and showed a willingness to engage. They recognised that digital 

healthcare services can provide greater flexibility than traditional methods, enabling 

service access at times more suitable to themselves. Whilst people were keen to use 

the internet for the administration of records, appointments and routine ordering of 

prescriptions, receiving ongoing support or monitoring of healthcare issues online 

was seen as less acceptable. This has highlighted the need for us to speak to people 

in more depth on this issue. 

 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Voices therefore provides us with the ability to both 

sense check our in-depth engagement on a wider scale, ensuring themes are 

statistically sound across a larger population, whilst enabling us to undertake initial 

investigations into topics, identifying areas requiring more focused involvement. 

 

Acting on Patient Feedback  

 

The CCGôs Locality Patient Groups and Communications and Engagement 

Committee regularly feedback on issues which have been raised by patients and 

subsequently resolved. The CCG provides a óYou said we didô page on its website 

which is regularly updated to share progress 

 

https://www.farehamandgosportccg.nhs.uk/you_said_we_did.htm. 

 

Among the improvements we have been able to make in response to this are: 

 

¶ Working with the voluntary sector to develop how we work more closely with 

them to support local people 

¶ Updating our Urgent Care Guide to help local people understand the 

services available locally and when to use each one 

¶ Supporting our Primary Care Networks to engage with our Locality Patient 

Groups which has increased the awareness of local people and provided the 

networks with valuable insight for them to take into consideration as they 

develop their future plans. 

 

1.9 Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 
 

https://www.farehamandgosportccg.nhs.uk/you_said_we_did.htm
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Equality, diversity and inclusion are central to the work of the CCGs in ensuring 

equality of access to and treatment by the service that each CCG commissions on 

behalf of the populations they service. 

The CCGsô commitment to equality, diversity and inclusion is driven by the principles 

of the NHS Constitution, the Equality Act 2020, the Human Rights Act 1998, and the 

duty to reduce health inequalities, promote patient involvement and involve and 

consult with the public set out under Section 147 of the Health and Social Care Act 

2012. 

The specific duties of the Equality Act 2010 require public bodies to publish 

information by 31 January each year to demonstrate compliance with the general 

equality duty to have ñdue regardò to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation, advance equality of opportunity between different groups and 

foster good relations between different groups. 

Each CCGôs annual equalities reports have been presented to the Partnership 

Board.  A covering paper shows work on equality, diversity and inclusion developing 

across the Partnership and sets out key issues arising from individual CCG reports 

that will reinforce partnership working and align the equality, diversity and inclusion 

agenda across the Partnership.  The paper and individual reports are published on 

each CCGôs website. 

Our Workforce 

Each member of staff can self-administer their own record on the Electronic Staff 

Record (ESR) system, and is encouraged to do so. This is because the CCGs 

recognise that individual circumstances can change and people may begin or cease 

to identify with certain characteristics.  This may relate to pregnancy or maternity or 

because an individual has become disabled.   

The information is used collectively and anonymously to inform internal workforce 

monitoring and ensure no protected characteristic is disadvantaged in the 

experience of the workforce.   

Employee rights not to be discriminated against at work are governed by a range of 

human resources policies.  As individual CCG policies become due for review they 

are being replaced by policies for the Partnership of CCGs.  All policies are available 

on the Human Resources portal ConsultHR which may also be accessed via the 

Partnership CCG intranet site. 

Staff are required to complete essential training on equality and diversity on a three-

yearly basis. This training may be accessed online via ConsultOD, the CCGsô 

learning management system.  It is also available as a face-to-face session.  During 

2019 equality and diversity development sessions were delivered to support 

Partnership working.  A training needs analysis has supported development of an 

equality and diversity training action plan to be taken forward during 2020. 
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The results of each CCGôs annual assessment against the NHS Workforce Race 

Equality Standard (WRES) are not in the public domain due to low staff numbers.  

However, the combined results of the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of 

CCGs with an action plan may be found on each CCGôs website.   

A staff survey was undertaken during 2019 and included a question for staff to 

indicate employing CCG. Overall Partnership results were published in graph form 

on the Partnership Staff Intranet. 

An action plan was developed from survey results.  It focussed on areas of concern 

highlighted in individual CCG results.  Focus groups were held in each CCG area to 

review the findings in depth and develop a Partnership Improvement Plan to be 

delivered during 2020. 

Embedding Equality in our Work 

The CCGs have adopted an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) template used 

across the Partnership of CCGs and by West Hampshire CCG.  The Partnershipôs 

Equality and Diversity Manager supports individual members of staff on completion 

of EIAs on commissioning projects and plans. 

Each CCG has a project management framework which enables a centralised view 

of projects and reporting. The process that sits with the development of projects 

includes capturing all appropriate impact assessments including equality. 

The equalities lead also works with the West Hampshire CCG equalities lead and 

CCG colleagues on the inclusion of metrics relating to equity of access and non-

discrimination in provider contracts. Provider equality, diversity and inclusion reports 

are monitored jointly by the Partnership of CCGsô equalities lead and West 

Hampshire CCG equalities lead where they are mutual providers of care to our 

populations. 

During 2019 we have been looking to develop a system-wide approach to ensuring 

compliance with the NHS Accessible Information Standard. This work is being 

managed through the Hampshire and Isle of Wight STP Quality Board. 

 

Equality Objectives 

As part of annual equalities information reporting each CCG provides an update on 

achievement against equality objectives.  Review of each CCGôs equality objectives 

at least every four years, as specified under the Public Sector Equality Duty, has 

coincided with the development of joint working to deliver STP priorities. An action 

common to each CCG is therefore to develop new equality objectives that are 

relevant to each CCG and are aligned across the Partnership.   
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1.10 Health and Wellbeing Strategy  
 

Hampshireôs Health and Wellbeing Board brings together partners from local 

government, the NHS, other public services, and the voluntary and community 

sector. The Board aims to ensure that organisations plan and work together to 

improve the health and wellbeing of Hampshire residents. The Executive Director of 

Strategy and Transformation for the CCG, along with the Accountable Officer, sit on 

the Board and work to develop priorities and strategies for Health and Wellbeing 

across Hampshire. 

In 2019 the focus of the Board was to agree the new five-year draft strategy that sets 

out the vision and key priorities for the period from 2019-24. It looks at both short 

and longer-term goals, and how we will measure success. The draft strategy 

identifies four key priority areas, in addition to two óenablingô priority areas which 

span the whole strategy as follows: 

 
 

Individual Board members have been nominated as sponsors to drive individual 

sections of the strategy with the expectation that they agree appropriate performance 

measures and report back to the Board.  

 

Over 2019/20 the Board has adopted the business plan that has been collated to 

support the delivery of the new Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and outlining the 

key activities the Board will do, monitor and observe. 

 

The business plan has been developed with input from Public Health and from a 

number of other local authority and CCG colleagues. The involvement of Public 

Health colleagues has ensured that the plan aligns with the Joint Strategic Needs 

Assessment. The plan also complements the priorities in the NHS Long Term Plan.  

 

Within the CCG patch there are a number of District and Borough Councils that are 

promoting their own plans that align to Hampshire County Councilôs Joint Strategic 
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Needs Assessment. To help support the delivery of the overall strategic plan at 

District and Borough level Hampshire County Council and Hart District Council have 

offered to jointly fund a one year part-time project officer secondment and this has 

now been embedded.   

Over the next year the expectation is that the Board will look to sharpen its focus on 

the areas of the business plan where it can truly make a difference, as well as look to 

review its governance arrangements to ensure it plays a key role within the emerging 

Integrated Care System.  

 

1.11 Social Matters, Human Rights, Anti-Corruption, Anti-Bribery 

The CCG is committed to making progress on all social and environmental matters, 

and human rights and their associated regulations and guidance. The CCG is also 

committed to reducing the level of fraud, bribery and corruption within the NHS to an 

absolute minimum and maintaining it at that level. By doing this, valuable resources 

can then be used where they should be, delivering better patient care. 

The CCG is a GP-led organisation, responsible for planning, commissioning and 

designing many of the health services needed by the population in its own area.  

The CCG makes decisions about health services based on the feedback we receive 

from patients and carers. This ensures the services we purchase and re-design are 

the ones local residents inform us that they need and are able to access. 

The CCG is committed to making sure that there is equality and inclusion in 

everything that we do, but more specifically: 

¶ How we commission services on behalf of the population we serve 

¶ How we recruit and support the development of all of our staff 

¶ How we proactively engage and support everyone who uses our services, 

especially given the diversity of our population. 

Our work on embedding equality into the commissioning of health services is 

underpinned by regularly engaging with our stakeholders. We believe that 

engagement with, and drawing on the expertise of, residents, patients, services 

providers and third sector organisations, is critical.  This interaction helps us to 

shape top quality, value for money services that satisfy the needs of our diverse 

population. 

Anti-corruption and Bribery 

The CCG is committed to reducing the level of fraud, bribery and corruption within 

the NHS to an absolute minimum and keeping it at that level, freeing up public 
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resources for better patient care. The CCG has a zero tolerance policy of any fraud, 

bribery or corruption and aims to eliminate all such activity as far as possible. 

The Local Area Counter-Fraud Team is active in the prevention and deterrence of 

fraud, bribery and corruption through its attendance at the Audit and Risk 

Committee, involvement in policy-setting and sharing of information through 

newsletters and attendance at CCG meetings.  

The CCG has established a positive training and awareness culture to ensure all 

staff receive regular training and newsletters provided by the Local Counter-Fraud 

Team.  

There were nine new cases of fraud brought to the attention of the committee during 

the year. 

1.12 Emergency Preparedness Resilience and Response (EPRR) 
 

We plan for, and respond to, a wide range of incidents that could impact on health or 

patient care. These could be anything from a prolonged period of severe pressure on 

services, extreme weather conditions, outbreak of an infectious disease, a major 

transport accident or industrial action. In 2019/20 this included the local planning for 

the UKôs exit from the EU and coordination of the Hampshire and Isle of Wight health 

response to the CoVID-19 coronavirus pandemic. 

We share Emergency Preparedness Resilience and Response (EPRR) 

responsibilities across six CCGs (Portsmouth, South Eastern Hampshire, North 

Hampshire, Fareham & Gosport, Isle of Wight and West Hampshire).  

We work together (through a service level agreement) to deliver the CCGsô 

responsibilities as ócategory 2ô responders under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. 

We have 24/7 on call rotas and incident response plans which has been formally 

agreed by each organisation.  We are required to self-assess against the NHS core 

standards, including Business Continuity Plans, and this report forms part of our 

formal reporting process. 

Amongst the responsibilities we must fulfill collectively are: 

¶ Working with the Hampshire & Isle of Wight Local Health Resilience 

Partnership (LHRP).  This is a strategic emergency planning meeting of all the 

NHS organisations from across Hampshire and the Isle of Wight. It is co-

chaired by the Operations and Delivery director for NHS England South 

(South East) and the Hampshire Director of Public Health; the CCGs have 

attended meetings throughout the year. The LHRP has produced a strategy 

and work plan for the year and has carried out an annual review of progress 

¶ Participating in training and testing exercises which are used to test response 

plans 
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¶ Assisting with the local co-ordination of emergencies in partnership with NHS 

England South (South East) 

¶ Ensuring a 24 hour, seven days a week on-call system 

¶ Ensuring compliance with the national core standards for EPRR for both CCG 

and NHS funded healthcare providers. 

Together with our NHS provider organisations we completed a self-assessment of 

compliance with the NHS EPRR core standards. The CCGs have incident response 

plans in place, which are fully compliant with the NHS Commissioning Board 

Emergency Preparedness Framework 2015. The CCGs regularly review and make 

improvements to their plans and there is a programme for testing, the results of 

which are reported to the Governing Body.  

 

 

 

Maggie MacIsaac 

Accountable Officer 

23rd June 2020 
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SECTION 2. ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT 
 

Corporate Governance Report 

 2.1 Members Report  

 

This section of the report contains information about our membership, the way we 

work as a Partnership and some of our legal responsibilities. 

2.2 Member Profiles 

 
NHS Fareham and Gosport CCG covers a population of over 204,715 people 

registered at 17 GP practices. The CCG borders South Eastern Hampshire CCG, 

West Hampshire CCG and Portsmouth CCG. The geographical area covered by 

NHS Fareham and Gosport Clinical Commissioning Group is 40.7 square miles and 

is also covered by Hampshire County Council. The area, however, is broadly co-

terminus with Fareham Borough Council and Gosport Borough Council. 

2.3 Our Membership Body 

 

Each Practice (see Member Practices table below) is represented by a GP on the 

Clinical Assembly, which is the forum by which the views of the membership are 

articulated to the Governing Body. The Membership also elect a Clinical Chair to the 

Governing Body for their CCG. 

Member Practices of the CCG in 2019/20 

Practice Name Address(es) 

Brook Lane Surgery 233a Brook Lane, Sarisbury Green, Southampton, SO31 
7DQ 

Lockswood Surgery Centre Way, Locksheath, Southampton, SO31 6DX 
 

Stubbington Medical 
Centre 

The Surgery, Park Lane Stubbington, PO14 2JP 

Centre Practice Osborn Road, Fareham, PO16 7ER 
 

Westlands Medical 
Centre 

20B Westlands Grove, Portchester, Fareham, PO16 9AE 

Portchester Health 
Centre 

West Street, Portchester, Fareham, PO16 9TU 

Gudgeheath Lane 
Surgery 

187 Gudgeheath Lane, Fareham, PO15 6QA 

The Willow Group Mumby Road, Gosport, PO12 1BA 
 

Solent View Medical 
Practice 

Manor Way, Lee on Solent, Gosport, PO13 9JG 
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Gosport Medical 
Practice 

Bury Road, Gosport, PO12 3AQ 

Rowner Heath Centre 143 Rowner Lane, Rowner, Gosport, PO13 9SP 
 

Bridgemary Medical 
Centre 

2 Gregson Avenue, Bridgemary, PO13 0HR 

Bury Road Surgery Gosport War Memorial Hospital, Bury Road, Gosport, PO12 
3PW 

Brockhurst Medical 
Centre 

139-141 Brockhurst Road, Gosport, PO12 3AX 

The Highlands 
Practice 

102 Highlands Practice, Fareham, PO15 6JF 

Jubilee Surgery Barrys Meadow, High Street, Titchfield, PO14 4EH 
 

Whiteley Surgery Yew Tree Drive, Whiteley, Fareham, PO15 7LB 
 

 

2.4 Our Governing Body 

 

The Governing Body is constituted in accordance with the Health and Social Care 

Act 2012. The NHS Fareham and Gosport CCG Governing Body is the principle 

decision-making body in the commissioning and contracting of high-quality 

healthcare for our local community.  

The Governing Bodies of NHS Isle of Wight, NHS North Hampshire, NHS Fareham 

& Gosport and NHS South Eastern CCGs have come together as ócommittees in 

commonô. The committee is referred to as the óPartnership Boardô of the Hampshire 

and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs.   

The Board met in public 4 times in 2019/20 and rotated the meetings in public across 

the combined area of all the Partnership CCGs.   

Changes to Membership 
 
Maggie MacIsaac who is Accountable Officer and Chief Executive of NHS Fareham 

& Gosport CCG also became Accountable Officer and Chief Executive of NHS West 

Hampshire and NHS Southampton City CCG during 2019/20. 

 

Roshan Patel was Executive Director of Finance for NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG 

up until 8th September 2019.  From 9th September 2019 Roshan was appointed Chief 

Operating Officer and statutory Chief Finance Officer for the CCG. 

 

Jane Cole was appointed as interim Director of Finance of NHS Fareham and 

Gosport CCG from 1st October 2019.   

 

The above three roles cover all the CCGs within the Hampshire and Isle of Wight 

Partnership of CCGs. 



 

61 
 

Emma Boswell was the Executive Director of Quality and Nursing with a Frimley 

system focus for NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG until 30th November 2019. From 1st 

December 2019 Emma Boswell stood down as the Executive Director of Quality and 

Nursing for the CCG. 

 

Governing Body Lay Members 

The establishment of the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs resulted 

in a streamlined Lay Membership. In line with statutory guidance, the three Lay 

Member portfolios relate to (i) governance (ii) public and patient engagement and (iii) 

primary care commissioning.  All are focussed on supporting the Governing Bodies 

to work together to achieve their shared objectives, and acting as a senior 

representatives and ambassadors of the CCG Partnership with partnership 

organisations and regulators.  

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs 

 

Maggie MacIsaac is the single Chief Executive Officer across The Hampshire and 

Isle of Wight Partnership (óThe Partnershipô) of CCGs 

The Partnership consists of: 

¶ NHS Fareham and Gosport CCG 

¶ NHS Isle of Wight CCG 

¶ NHS North Hampshire CCG; and 

¶ NHS South Eastern Hampshire CCG  

While each CCG remains a statutory organisation and has a separate governing 

body, these governing bodies meet together as committees-in-common. A 

Committee-in-Common is an arrangement where the CCGs meet at the same time 

and place with the same agenda and business. This group is collectively known as 

The Partnership Board. 

The Partnership Board provides strategic leadership to the Hampshire and Isle of 

Wight Partnership of CCGs. It takes responsibility for the work that the CCGs 

undertake together, once, across the Partnership.  

The Partnership Board is made up of full members and associate members as 

shown below: 
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Membership of the Hampshire & Isle of Wight CCG Partnership Board  

(Governing bodies meeting as committees-in-common) 

 

Name Role 
Fareham & 

Gosport 
Isle of Wight 

North 

Hampshire 

South 

Eastern 

Hampshire 

Maggie MacIsaac* Chief Executive V V V V 

Peter Cruttenden 
Convenor of the Partnership 

Board 
V V V V 

Julia Barton 
Executive Director of Quality 

and Nursing 
V V V V 

Ros Hartley 
Executive Director of Strategy 

& Transformation 
V V V V 

Roshan Patel 
Statutory Chief Finance Officer 

and Chief Operating Officer  
V V V V 

Jane Cole Interim Director of Finance V V V V 

Fiona White 
Executive Director of People & 

Development 
V V V V 

Judy Venables 
Non-Executive Director of 

Governance 
V V V V 

Margaret Scott 
Non-Executive Director of 

Primary Care 
V V V V 

Carole Truman 
Non-Executive Director Patient 

& Public Engagement  
V V V V 

Ed Palfrey Secondary Care Clinician V V V V 

Dr Andy Whitfield Clinical Director V V V V 

Zara Hyde-Peters 

(until 25/11/19) 
Managing Director    V  

Ruth Colburn-
Jackson 
(from 20/01/20) 

Managing Director   V  

Dr Nicola Decker Clinical Chair   V  

Sara Tiller Managing Director V   V 

Dr Barbara Rushton Clinical Chair    V 

Dr David Chilvers Clinical Chair V    

Dr Michele Legg Clinical Chair  V   

Alison Smith  
(from 19/08/19) 

Isle of Wight  V   
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* Maggie MacIsaac is also Accountable Officer for West Hampshire and Southampton City CCGôs 

The Governing Bodies have met as committees in common on ten occasions during 

2019/20. 

Attendance 

Attendance for the governing body is as per the table section 2.11 

2.5 Committees in the Hampshire & Isle of Wight Partnership 

including the Audit and Risk Committee 

 
From November 2018 the voting members of the Hampshire and Isle of Wight 

Partnership of CCGs (North Hampshire, Isle of Wight, Fareham & Gosport and 

South Eastern Hampshire CCGs) have been working together in their sub-

committees as committees in common. This means the separate committees meet 

together in one place at the same time and with the same agenda to reach 

consensus.  

 

Audit and Risk Committees-in-Common  

The Committee is established and constituted in line with requirements of section 

14M of the NHS Act 2006 (Duty for the CCG Governing Body to have a properly 

constituted Audit and Risk Committee), the NHS Audit Committee Handbook and the 

NHS Codes of Conduct and Accountability. The Audit and Risk Committee will be a 

central means by which the Governing Body ensures effective internal control 

arrangements are in place. In addition, the Audit and Risk Committee provides an 

independent check upon the actions the Governing Body and has those executive 

powers specifically delegated by the Governing Body. 

The Audit and Risk Committees-in-Common met on five occasions during 2019/20. 

Membership  

¶ Peter Cruttenden, Non-Executive Director 

¶ Martyn Davies, Non-Executive Adviser 

¶ Judy Venables, Convenor and Non-Executive Director 

¶ Margaret Scott, Non-Executive Director 

Attendance 

Attendance is as per the table section 2.11 

 

Delegated Primary Care Commissioning Committees-in-Common  

The Delegated Primary Care Commissioning has delegated responsibility from NHS 

England for the commissioning of the highest possible standard of Primary Care for 
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the CCGôs population. It carries out the functions relating to the commissioning of 

primary medical services under section 83 of the NHS Act. 

The Committees in Common have met on ten occasions during 2019/20. 

 

Membership 

¶ Margaret Scott, Non-Executive Director 

¶ Carole Truman, Non-Executive Director 

¶ Jessamy Baird, Non-Executive Adviser 

¶ Dr Andy Whitfield, Medical Director and GP 

¶ Julia Barton, Executive Director of Nursing and Quality 

¶ Jane Cole, Partnership Director of Finance 

¶ Sara Tiller, Managing Director and Executive Lead for Primary Care  

¶ Ros Hartley, Executive Director of Strategy and Transformation 

¶ Clinical Chairs or their nominated deputies 

 

Attendance  

 

Attendance is as per the table section 2.11 

Partnership Clinical Delivery Group 

The Partnership Clinical Delivery Group co-ordinates the commissioning activities of 

the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs, dealing with those clinical and 

commissioning issues that are common and done once across the Partnership. 

The Group have met on six occasions. 

 

Membership 

¶ Ros Hartley, Executive Director of Strategy and Transformation 

¶ Julia Barton, Executive Director of Nursing and Quality 

¶ Dr Andy Whitfield, Clinical Director for the Partnership (Chair) 

¶ Clinical Chairs or their nominated deputies 

¶ Managing Directors or their representatives 

¶ Andy Wood, Director of Strategic Finance 

¶ Kirsten Lawrence, Associate Director of Transformation 

 

Attendance  

 

Attendance is as per the table section 2.11 
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Quality Performance and Finance Committee   

The main responsibilities of the Committee are to:  

¶ Fulfil the assurance function in relation to quality, operational and financial 

performance 

¶ Oversee the preparation and implementation of a delivery plan to ensure 

operational, quality and financial performance standards are achieved 

¶ Monitor performance and quality, taking proactive action to prevent 

deterioration, and taking action to restore performance and quality should it fall 

below acceptable levels 

¶ Allocate resources in line with the agreed plan. 

 

The Quality, Performance and Finance Committee met on nine occasions during 

2019/20. 

 

Membership 

¶ Jane Cole, Partnership Director of Finance 

¶ Julia Barton, Executive Director of Nursing and Quality 

¶ Ros Hartley, Executive Director of Strategy and Transformation 

¶ Carole Truman, Non-Executive Director 

¶ Judy Venables, Non-Executive Director 

¶ Nick Wilson, Non-Executive Advisor 

¶ Ed Palfrey, Secondary Care Doctor  

¶ Clinical Chairs  

¶ Managing Directors 

¶ Dr Matt Nisbet, GP Representative 

¶ Dr Andy Whitfield, Clinical Director for the Partnership 

 

Attendance 

Attendance is as per the table section 2.11 

Remuneration Committees-in-Common  

The Remuneration Committee oversees and monitors matters relating to the 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs staff and their development. A 

more detailed breakdown of the work of the Remuneration Committee can be found 

within the Remuneration Report. 

The Remuneration Committees-in-Common met on six occasions during the course 

of the year, including on one occasion in February 2020 where the committees met 

in common with West Hampshire CCG and Southampton City CCG. 
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Membership  

¶ Jessamy Baird, Non-Executive Adviser 

¶ Peter Cruttenden, Convenor 

¶ Margaret Scott, Non-Executive Director 

¶ Judy Venables, Non-Executive Director  

Attendance  

Attendance is as per the table section 2.11 

2.6 Register of Interests 

 

Declarations and the Register of Interests are reviewed by the Governing Body at 

each meeting. For details of declared conflicts of interest published on our website 

here: https://www.farehamandgosportccg.nhs.uk/about-us/lists-and-registers_3.htm 

2.7 Personal Data Related Incidents 

 
In 2019/20 there were no reported Serious Untoward Incidents relating to data 

security breaches. 

2.8 Statement of Disclosure to Auditors 

Each individual who is a member of the CCG at the time the Membersô Report is 

approved confirms: 

¶ So far as the member is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which 

the CCGôs auditor is unaware that would be relevant for the purposes of their 

audit report  

¶ The member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in order to 

make him or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish 

that the CCGôs auditor is aware of it. 

2.9 Modern Slavery Act 

All the CCGs within the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs fully 

support the Governmentôs objectives to eradicate modern slavery and human 

trafficking.  Slavery and Human Trafficking Statements are published within 

individual CCGs websites. 

 

 

Maggie MacIsaac 
Accountable Officer  
23rd June 2020 

https://www.farehamandgosportccg.nhs.uk/about-us/lists-and-registers_3.htm
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2.10 Statement of Accountable Officerôs Responsibilities 

The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each CCG shall 

have an Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be appointed by the NHS 

Commissioning Board (NHS England).  NHS England has appointed the Chief 

Executive to be the Accountable Officer of NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG. 

The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer are set out under the National Health 

Service Act 2006 (as amended), Managing Public Money and in the CCG 

Accountable Officer Appointment Letter.  They include responsibilities for:  

¶ The propriety and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable 

Officer is answerable, 

¶ For keeping proper accounting records (which disclose with reasonable 

accuracy at any time the financial position of the CCG and enable them to 

ensure that the accounts comply with the requirements of the Accounts 

Direction),  

¶ For safeguarding the CCGôs assets (and hence for taking reasonable steps for 

the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities). 

¶ The relevant responsibilities of accounting officers under Managing Public 

Money, 

¶ Ensuring the CCG exercises its functions effectively, efficiently and 

economically (in accordance with Section 14Q of the National Health Service 

Act 2006 (as amended)) and with a view to securing continuous improvement in 

the quality of services (in accordance with Section14R of the National Health 

Service Act 2006 (as amended)), 

¶ Ensuring that the CCG complies with its financial duties under Sections 223H to 

223J of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). 

 

Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS England has 

directed each CCG to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the 

form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The accounts are prepared 

on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

CCG and of its income and expenditure, Statement of Financial Position and cash 

flows for the financial year. 

In preparing the accounts, the Accountable Officer is required to comply with the 

requirements of the Government Financial Reporting Manual and in particular to: 

¶ Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England, including the relevant 

accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies 

on a consistent basis; 

¶ Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis; 
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¶ State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Government 

Financial Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any 

material departures in the accounts; and, 

¶ Prepare the accounts on a going concern basis; and 

¶ Confirm that the Annual Report and Accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and 

understandable and take personal responsibility for the Annual Report and 

Accounts and the judgements required for determining that it is fair, balanced 

and understandable. 

 

As the Accountable Officer, I have taken all the steps that I ought to have taken to 

make myself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that NHS 

Fareham & Gosport CCGôs auditors are aware of that information. So far as I am 

aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware. 

I also confirm that:  

As far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the CCGôs 

auditors are unaware, and that as Accountable Officer, I have taken all the steps that 

I ought to have taken to make myself aware of any relevant audit information and to 

establish that the CCGôs auditors are aware of that information.  

 

 

 

Maggie MacIsaac 
Accountable Officer  
23rd June 2020 
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2.11 Committee Attendance in the Hampshire & Isle of Wight 

Partnership- Tables 
 

Audit and Risk Committees-in-Common Attendance 

 
 
 
Voting members 

2
1

/0
5

/1
9 

0
4

/0
7

/1
9 

0
3

/1
0

/1
9 

1
4

/0
1

/2
0 

1
2/

0
3

/2
0 

Total 

Judy Venables (Convenor) 1 1 1 1 1 5 

Peter Cruttenden 1 1 1 1 1 5 

Martyn Davies 1 1 1 1 1 5 

Margaret Scott 1 1 1 1 1 5 

 

Partnership Clinical Delivery Group Attendance 

 
 
 
Voting members 

0
9
/0

5
/1

9 

0
4
/0

7
/1

9 

1
9/

0
9

/1
9 

1
4/

1
1

/1
9 

2
9/

0
1

/2
0 

0
5
/0

3
/2

0 
Total 

Dr Andy Whitfield 
(Chair) 1 1 1 1 1 A 5 

Julia Barton A 1 1 1 1 1 5 

Dr David Chilvers 1 1 A 1 A 1 4 

Ruth Colburn-
Jackson A A A A 1 A 1 

Dr Nicola Decker A A 1 1 1 1 4 

Ros Hartley 1 1 1 1 1 1 6 

Zara Hyde Peters 
(until December 
2019) A 1 A 1   2 

Kirsten Lawrence 1 1 1 A 1 A 4 

Dr Michelle Legg  1 1 1 1 1 1 6 

Dr Barbara 
Rushton 1 1 A A 1 A 3 

Alison Smith (from 
August 2019)   1 A 1 1 3 

Sara Tiller A A 1 1 A 1 3 

Andy Wood 1 1 1 1 1 A 5 
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Partnership Board (Governing bodies meeting as committees-in-common) 

Attendance 

 
 
 
Voting members 

2
5

/4
/1

9
 

2
3

/5
/1

9 

2
7

/6
/1

9 

1
8

/7
/1

9 

2
6

/9
/1

9 

2
4

/1
0

/1
9 

2
8

/1
1

/1
9 

3
0

/0
1

/2
0 

2
7

/0
2

/2
0 

2
6

/0
3

/2
0 

Total 

Peter Cruttenden 
(Convenor) 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 

Julia Barton 1 1 A 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 

Emma Boswell 
(associate member until 
30th November 2019) A 1 A A A A A    1 

Dr David Chilvers 1 A A 1 1 1 1 1 A A 6 

Ruth Colburn-Jackson 1 1 A A 1 A A 1 1 1 6 

Jane Cole 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 

Dr Nicola Decker 1 1 1 1 1 1 A 1 1 1 9 

Alison Edgington 1 1 A A A 1 A A 1 A 4 

Ros Hartley 1 1 1 A 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 

Zara Hyde-Peters (until 
December 2019) 1 1 1 1 A 1 A    5 

Dr Michele Legg 1 1 1 1 A 1 1 1 1 1 9 

Maggie MacIsaac 1 1 1 A A A 1 1 1 1 7 

Ed Palfrey A 1 A 1 1 1 1 1 A A 6 

Roshan Patel 1 1 1 1 1 A 1 1 1 1 9 

Dr Barbara Rushton 1 1 1 A 1 A 1 1 1 1 8 

Margaret Scott 1 1 1 1 1 1 A 1 1 1 9 

Alison Smith (from 
August 2019)     1 1 1 1 1 A 5 

Sara Tiller 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 A 1 1 9 

Carole Truman 1 1 1 1 1 A 1 A 1 1 8 

Judy Venables 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 

Fiona White 1 1 1 1 A 1 1 1 1 1 9 

Dr Andy Whitfield 1 1 A A 1 A A 1 A 1 5 
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Delegated Primary Care Commissioning Committees-in-Common Attendance 

 
 
 
Voting members 

0
4
/0

4
/1

9 

0
2
/0

5
/1

9 

3
0/

0
5

/1
9 

0
3
/0

7
/1

9 

0
5
/0

9
/1

9 

0
2
/1

0
/1

9 

0
7
/1

1
/1

9 

0
4
/1

2
/1

9 

0
9
/0

1
/2

0 

1
3/

0
2

/2
0 

Total 

Margaret Scott 
(Chair) 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 

Jessamy Baird 1 1 1 1 A 1 1 1 1 1 9 

Julia Barton 1 A 1 A A 1 1 1 1 1 7 

Dr David Chilvers 1 1 1 1 A A 1 A 1 A 6 

Dr Nicola Decker 1 1 1 A A 1 1 A 1 1 7 

Ros Hartley
1 

1 1 1 1 1 1 A 1 1 1 9 

Dr Michelle Legg  1 A A A 1 1 1 1 A A 5 

Dr Barbara 
Rushton 1 1 1 A A 1 A 1 A 1 6 

Sara Tiller 1 1 1 A 1 A 1 1 1 A 7 

Carole Truman 1 1 A 1 A A 1 1 A A 5 

Dr Andy Whitfield A A A A A A 1 1 1 1 4 
1 
Inclusive of attendances by deputy 

 

Remuneration Committees-in-Common Attendance 

 
 
 
Voting members 

1
6

/0
5

/1
9 

0
9

/0
7

/1
9 

0
8

/0
8

/1
9 

2
5

/0
9

/1
9 

0
3

/1
2

/1
9 

0
6

/0
2

/2
0 

Total 

Peter Cruttenden (Convenor) 1 1 1 1 1 1 6 

Judy Venables 1 1 1 1 1 1 6 

Margaret Scott 1 1 1 A A 1 4 

Jessamy Baird 1 1 1 1 1 1 6 
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Quality Performance and Finance Committee - Attendance 

 
 
 
Voting members 

2
5
/0

4
/1

9
 

1
6
/0

5
/1

9
 

2
0
/0

6
1
9

 

1
8
/0

7
/1

9
 

1
9
/0

9
1
9

 

1
7
/1

0
/1

1
9

 

2
8
/1

1
/1

9
 

1
6
/0

1
/2

0
 

2
0
/0

2
/2

0
 

Total 

Carole Truman 
(Chair) 1 1 1 1 A 1 A 1 1 7 

Julia Barton 1 1 1 1 1 1 A 1 1 8 

Dr David Chilvers 1 1 A A 1 A 1 A A 4 

Jane Cole  1 1 1 1 1 1 1 A 1 8 

Ros Hartley 1 1 1 A 1 A 1 1 1 7 

Zara Hyde-Peters 
(until 25

th
 

November 2019) 1 1 A 1 A 1 A   4 

Dr Michelle Legg A A 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 7 

Dr Matt Nisbet 1 A 1 1 1 1 1 1 A 7 

Ed Palfrey A A 1 1 1 1 1 A A 5 

Roshan Patel  1 1 1 A A 1 1 1 1 7 

Alison Smith (from 
19

th
 August 2019)     A A 1 1 1 3 

Judy Venables 1 1 A 1 1 1 1 1 A 7 

Dr Andy Whitfield 1 1 A A 1 A 1 1 1 6 

Nick Wilson 1 1 A 1 1 1 1 1 1 8 
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Governance Statement 
 

2.12 Introduction and Context 

 
NHS Fareham and Gosport CCG is a corporate body established by NHS England 

on 1 April 2013 under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended).  

The CCGôs statutory functions are set out under the National Health Service Act 

2006 (as amended).  The CCGôs general function is arranging the provision of 

services for persons for the purposes of the health service in England.  The CCG is, 

in particular, required to arrange for the provision of certain health services to such 

extent as it considers necessary to meet the reasonable requirements of its local 

population.   

As at 31st March 2020, the CCG is not subject to any directions from NHS England 

issued under Section 14Z21 of the National Health Service Act 2006. 

2.13 Scope of Responsibility 

 
As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of 

internal control that supports the achievement of the CCGôs policies, aims and 

objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I am personally 

responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me in Managing 

Public Money. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out under the National 

Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) and in my CCG Accountable Officer 

Appointment Letter. 

I am responsible for ensuring that the CCG is administered prudently and 

economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively, safeguarding 

financial propriety and regularity. I also have responsibility for reviewing the 

effectiveness of the system of internal control within the CCG as set out in this 

governance statement. 

2.14 Governance Arrangements and Effectiveness 

 
The main function of the governing body is to ensure that the group has made 

appropriate arrangements for ensuring that it exercises its functions effectively, 

efficiently and economically and complies with such generally accepted principles of 

good governance as are relevant to it. 

The CCG ensures a strong focus on effective governance is maintained through the 

observance of the governance framework which is set out in the CCGôs constitution.   
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The constitution requires that the CCG will at all times observe the principles of good 

governance in the way it conducts its business.  These principles include the Good 

Governance Standard for Public Services1, the Nolan Principles2, the seven key 

principles of the NHS Constitution3 and the Equality Act 2010.   

The CCG demonstrates its accountability to its members, local people, stakeholders 

and NHS England in a variety of ways, including by: 

¶ publishing its constitution  

¶ appointing independent lay members and non-GP clinicians to its Governing 

Body 

¶ holding Governing Body meetings in public;  

¶ discussing strategy and commissioning intentions with the public and 

stakeholders 

¶ publishing a commissioning plan 

¶ complying with Local Authority Health Overview and Scrutiny requirements as 

an attendee of the local Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

¶ producing annual accounts in respect of each financial year which are 

externally audited and publicly presented and published 

¶ having a clear complaints process 

¶ complying with the Freedom of Information Act 2000 

¶ providing information to NHS England as required.  

 

Embedded within the constitution are the CCGôs Standing Orders.  These Standing 

Orders, combined with the Scheme of Delegation and Prime Financial Policies, form 

the procedural governance framework. They set out the structure and arrangements 

for conducting the business of the CCG, the appointment of member practice 

representatives, and the procedures to be followed at meetings of the CCG, the 

process to delegate powers and the declaration of interests and standards of 

conduct.   

2.15 Attendance at Meetings 

 
Information about the Governing Body and its sub-committees, membership and 

attendance records can be found in the Memberôs Report at section 2. 

2.16 UK Corporate Governance Code 

 
NHS Bodies are not required to comply with the UK Code of Corporate Governance.  

                                                           
1
 The Good Governance Standard for Public Services, The Independent Commission on Good Governance in 

Public Services, Office of Public Management (OPM) and The Chartered Institute of Public Finance & 
Accountability (CIPFA), 2004 
2
 Committee of Standards in Public Life (1995) available at http://www.public-standards.gov.uk/ 

3
 The NHS Constitution: The NHS belongs to us all, March 2012 
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2.17 Discharge of Statutory Functions 
 

In light of recommendations of the 1983 Harris Review, the CCG has reviewed all of 

the statutory duties and powers conferred on it by the National Health Service Act 

2006 (as amended) and other associated legislative and regulations.  As a result, I 

can confirm that the CCG is clear about the legislative requirements associated with 

each of the statutory functions for which it is responsible, including any restrictions 

on delegation of those functions. 

Responsibility for each duty and power has been clearly allocated to a lead Director.  

Directorates have confirmed that their structures provide the necessary capability 

and capacity to undertake all of the CCGôs statutory duties. 

2.18 Risk Management Arrangements and Effectiveness  

The Governing Body Assurance Framework (GBAF) and the system of internal 

control are significant parts of the risk and control framework and are designed to 

manage risk and to provide reasonable assurance of effectiveness. The Governing 

Body Assurance Framework and the system of internal control are based on an 

ongoing process to identify and prioritise the management of risks which could 

impact upon the achievement of the CCGôs objectives, and to evaluate the likelihood 

of those risks being realised showing the impact should they be realised.  

The Risk Management Policy of the CCG identifies the roles and responsibilities of 

individuals for managing risk. It is important for every employee and clinical lead to 

understand the Governance Framework, the Risk Management Policy and in 

particular the benefits of ongoing identification and management of risk issues.  

Awareness and training continued to take place in 2019/20. The CCG believes that 

the risk culture is fully embedded into its day to day work. The CCG has a number of 

deterrents in place which include a Local Counter Fraud and Security Management 

Specialist and contractual clauses detailed in its contracts with healthcare providers.  

The agendas of the regular contract meetings look to identify and discuss activity, 

performance and quality risk in order to minimise the chance of the risk crystallising 

or, where it does, to secure improvement.  

2.19 Capacity to Handle Risk 

The risks faced by the CCG against its objectives are identified through various 

means, including risk assessments, audit, incident reports and complaints, through 

self-assessment and by NHS England. The CCG also identifies if any 

policies/business cases etc. will adversely impact upon a cohort of the population 

through its engagement with the public and by undertaking equality impact 

assessments. 
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The CCG Clinical Delivery Group has been established, where the Managing 

Director, clinicians and senior management team meet on a monthly basis. This 

provides the forum at which the senior team can maintain a local focus on risks. The 

Managing Director then escalates any significant risks to the Partnership Executive 

Team via the Partnership Corporate Governance Group.  

The Partnershipôs Quality, Performance and Finance Committee receives key 

assurance reports at each meeting highlighting significant risks across all the CCGs 

in the Partnership via: (1) an Integrated Performance Report and (2) quality report 

and (3) risk reports from each CCG. 

2.20 Risk Assessment  

 
The CCG has focused on the following significant risks: 
¶ Providers of commissioned services meeting constitutional targets, impacting 

patient care.  

¶ Delivery of planned financial control totals for 2019/20.  

¶ Continuous improvement in primary care and the development of Primary 

Care Networks. 

¶ Implementation of urgent care service models.  

¶ Leadership development to deliver our plans and support the development of 

Integrated Care Partnerships. 

¶ Alignment of CCG Partnership objectives and delivery plans with local 

systems and partners.  

The CCG has clearly articulated these risks on the Governing Body Assurance 

Framework which ensures full transparency and understanding of the risks facing the 

CCG at Board level. The Governing Body Assurance Framework also shows the 

direction of travel for each strategic risk and includes reports on the current actions 

taking place. To ensure transparency these papers are available to the public via the 

CCGôs website. 

The CCG continues to keep NHS England aware of all strategic risks as part of the 

regular dialogue and reporting arrangements with NHS England. 

2.21 Other Sources of Assurance  

 
Internal Control Framework 
 
Internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place in the CCG to ensure 

it delivers its policies, aims and objectives.  It is designed to identify and prioritise the 

risks, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should 

then be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
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The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a reasonable level rather 

than eliminating all risk; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 

assurance of effectiveness. 

My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the 

work of the internal auditors, the executive team and clinical leads within the CCG, 

who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control 

framework. I have drawn on performance information available to me. My review is 

also informed by comments made by external audit reports. 

Annual Audit of Conflicts of Interest Management  
 
The revised statutory guidance on managing conflicts of interest requires CCGs to 
undertake an annual internal audit of conflicts of interest management. To support 
CCGs to undertake this task, NHS England has published a template audit 
framework.  
 
During 2019/20 the CCG has worked with the other CCGs in the Hampshire & Isle of 

Wight CCG Partnership to share best practice, align a Risk Management 

Framework, and ensure it is compliant with the statutory guidance, which also 

included training and awareness for all staff. 

I am pleased with the progress made and the internal audit of conflicts of interest has 

given the CCG reasonable assurance on our management of conflicts of interest. 

Data Quality 
 
High quality data underpins every step of the commissioning cycle. It is only through 
the analysis of high-quality data that the CCG can move towards safe, effective, and 
equitable care for all. 
 
The CCG ensures data quality throughout the commissioning process and, although 

we rely on other NHS organisations and the CSU, we gain direct assurance from 

these organisations on a monthly basis and gain independent assurance from 

Internal Audit reports. 

Information Governance 

The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and procedures by 

which the NHS handles information about patients and employees, in particular 

personal identifiable information.  The NHS Information Governance Framework is 

supported by a Data Security and Protection Toolkit and the annual submission 

process provides assurances to the CCG, other organisations and to individuals that 

personal information is dealt with legally, securely, efficiently and effectively.  

We place high importance on ensuring there are robust information governance 

systems and processes in place to help protect patient and corporate information. In 
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2019/20 the CCG received substantial assurance from Internal Audit on the review of 

the Data Security and Protection Toolkit.  

This provides the assurance that the CCG has established an information 

governance management framework and developed robust information governance 

processes and procedures in line with the Information Governance Toolkit.  All staff 

undertake annual information governance training and a staff Information 

Governance Handbook has been produced to ensure staff are aware of their 

information governance roles and responsibilities. 

There are processes in place for incident reporting and investigation of serious 

incidents.  We are developing information risk assessment and management 

procedures and a programme will be established to fully embed an information risk 

culture throughout the organisation against identified risks.  

Business Critical Models 

An appropriate framework and environment is in place to provide quality assurance 

of business-critical models, in line with the recommendations in the Macpherson 

report. The business-critical models of the CCG primarily rely on activity and finance 

data produced by the CSU which is assured through their own processes.  

The work of the CSU and the validity of its data is subject to further independent 

internal audit scrutiny. As Accountable Officer, I receive assurance through the CSU 

service auditor reports that relevant controls are in place and have been operating 

throughout the year. NHS England undertakes a quarterly assurance review which 

covers the output from these business-critical models.  

All business-critical models have been identified and information about quality 

assurance processes for those models has been provided to the Audit and Risk 

Committee. 

Third Party Assurances 
 
The CCG business-critical models primarily rely on activity and finance data 

produced by the Commissioning Support Unit which is assured through the 

Commissioning Support Unit own processes. As Accountable Officer, I receive 

assurance through the Commissioning Support Unit service auditor reports that 

relevant controls are in place for business-critical models and have been operating 

throughout the year. 

 

The output of business-critical models is validated by NHS England through their 

quarterly assurance process of the CCG. 

2.22 Control Issues  

During the year, Internal Audit issued a number of audit reports which identified 

governance, risk management and/or control issues. The Head of Internal Audit 
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Opinion is informed by these reports and is set out within this annual report. I am 

pleased to have received an overall reasonable assurance rating.  

The CCG has not identified and control issues that might prejudice or undermine the 

integrity or reputation of the CCG and/or wider NHS. 

2.23 Review of Economy, Efficiency & Effectiveness of the Use of Resources 

 

I am confident the CCG actively promotes the three Eôs in all aspects of the CCGôs 

business. The Executive Team and the Quality, Performance and Finance 

Committee provide critical oversight on investments from both a clinical and financial 

perspective. All of the achievements of the CCG have been performed within 

resource limits set by NHS England.  

Recruiting the right people to the right posts has been a fundamental approach the 

CCG has taken forward as part of managing its resources throughout 2019/20. It has 

strong leadership with clinical leadership central to the areas that the CCG is 

responsible for commissioning.  

CCGs are statutory organisations responsible to their Governing Body for the 

delivery of both their statutory and constitutional duties and improvements in the 

health outcomes of their population. NHS England approaches assurance from the 

assumption that CCGs will deliver against these requirements.  

The process uses information derived from a variety of sources including, where 

necessary, face-to-face visits. The nature of the oversight, including the expected 

frequency of assurance meetings, is agreed between NHS England and individual 

CCGs. 

The assurance process introduces a more risk-based approach, which differentiates 

high performing CCGs, those whose performance gives cause for concern, and 

those in between. It consists of the following components: 

¶ Well-led organisation 

¶ Performance: delivery of commitments and improved outcomes 

¶ Financial management 

¶ Planning 

¶ Delegated functions 

2.24 Delegation of Functions 

On April 1, 2016 NHS Fareham and Gosport CCG assumed responsibility for 

commissioning local primary care services. The delegation of this role from NHS 

England to the CCG was an extremely important development in the planning of 

healthcare services provided to the local population. 

As the commissioner for local primary care the CCG works more closely with its 

member practices on planning the services provided to local people.  
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2.25 Counter Fraud Arrangements 

The Fraud and Security Management Team provide an active role in the prevention 

and deterrence of fraud, bribery and corruption through its attendance at the Audit 

and Risk Committee, involvement in policy-setting and sharing of information through 

newsletters and attendance at CCG meetings.  

The CCG has established a positive training and awareness culture to ensure all 

staff receive regular training and newsletters provided by the Local Counter-Fraud 

Team.  

Three cases of fraud were carried forward from 2018/19 and there were nine new 

cases brought to the attention of the Audit and Risk committee during the year. 

The Local Counter Fraud Specialist reports to the CCG Audit and Risk Committee (in 

common) and reports on progress against the Annual Plan. The plan, which is 

targeted to meet the NHS Counter Fraud Authority Standards for Commissioners 

2019/20 (Fraud, Bribery and Corruption), includes strategic governance, awareness 

of risk of fraud, prevention initiatives, detection and investigation. 

During 2019/20, the CCG completed the mandatory NHS Counter Fraud Authority 

Self Risk Tool assessment, which reviewed the CCG arrangements, the Quality 

Assessment of Compliance against NHS Counter Fraud Authority Standards for 

Commissioners.  The CCG was assessed as holding the highest overall rating as 

óGreenô.  
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2.26 Head of Internal Audit Opinion 

Introduction 

This is the 2019/20 Annual Report by TIAA on the internal control environment at 

NHS Fareham and Gosport CCG. The annual internal audit report summaries the 

outcomes of the reviews we have carried out on the organisationôs framework of 

governance, risk management and control. 

Limitations on our opinion arising from Covid-19  

The delivery of the internal audit work for 2019/20 has been impacted by the global 

Covid-19 pandemic which has taken hold during this accounting period. As a result, 

we were not able to fully complete the following reviews as they were paused. 

¶ HR Controls and Workforce arrangements - covering staff development and 

capacity. 

¶ Contract Management (NHS Providers). 

The following reviews were not started due to the impact of COVID-19 the time they 

were planned to commence. 

¶ Primary care GP IT-Health-check Review (review not started). 

¶ Complaints Review (review not started). 

Notwithstanding this, we have still provided enough internal audit coverage in order 

to be able to provide an opinion based on the work carried out to date. Not 

completing the review highlighted above has not impacted on our overall 

assessment.   

The consequences of this unprecedented event are expected to continue into the 

new financial year and will continue to pose significant risks to all organisations. The 

impact of ongoing events on NHS Fareham and Gosport CCGôs control systems, 

financial sustainability or operational performance have not been assessed and our 

opinion takes no account of this. This report is designed to assist the Governing 

Body in making its annual governance statement. 

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDITôS ANNUAL OPINION  

TIAA is satisfied that, for the areas reviewed during the year, NHS Fareham and 

Gosport CCG has reasonable and effective risk management, control and 

governance processes in place. Not having completed all of the planned work 

due to the global Covid-19 pandemic has not impacted on our overall 

assessment. 

This opinion is based solely on the matters that came to the attention of TIAA 

during the course of the internal audit reviews carried out during the year and 

is not an opinion on all elements of the risk management, control and 

governance processes or the ongoing financial viability or your ability to meet 

financial obligations which must be obtained by NHS Fareham and Gosport 
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CCG from its various sources of assurance. 

Internal Audit Planned Coverage and Output 

The 2019/20 Annual Audit Plan approved by the Audit Committee was for 110 days 

of internal audit coverage in the year. During the year there were the following 

changes to the Audit Plan which were reported to the Audit Committee. 

¶ The Procurement Arrangements Review and the Governance arrangements 

and effectiveness (focusing on Integration/Partnership Working) Reviews were 

deferred to Q2 and early Q1 of 2020/21 respectively. The scope of this review 

will also cover ICP Governance Arrangements. 

¶ The time originally planned for General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) 

Review and Cyber Security ï Maturity Assessment to be used to fund the Data 

Security Protection Toolkit review of the additional new requirements for GDPR 

and Cyber Security and the residual time transferred to contingency. 

The formal year-end Annual Opinion statement is set out in Annex A.  Other than the 

work which has either been paused due to COVID-19 or deferred to 2020/21 all the 

other planned work has been carried out and the reports have been issued (see 

Annex B for details). 

There was no work carried out which was in addition to the work set out in the Annual Audit Plan.  

Assurance 

TIAA carried out 13 reviews (including the Safeguarding Children Review of which 

the service is hosted by West Hampshire CCG), which were designed to ascertain 

the extent to which the internal controls in the system are adequate to ensure that 

activities and procedures are operating to achieve CCGôs objectives. For each 

assurance review an assessment of the combined effectiveness of the controls in 

mitigating the key control risks was provided. Details of these are provided in Annex 

B and a summary is set out below. 

CCG Specific Reviews 

Assurance Assessments Number of Reviews Previous Year 

Substantial Assurance 2 1 

Reasonable Assurance 2 3 

Limited Assurance 0 0 

No Assurance 0 0 
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Collaborative (Hosted Services) & Partnership Wide Reviews 

The figures in brackets related to the previous year 

Assurance 
Assessments 

Number of 
Collaborative 

(Hosted Services) 
Reviews 

Number of 
Partnership 

Reviews 

Substantial Assurance 0 (0) 2 (0) 

Reasonable Assurance 1 (3) 6 (2) 

Limited Assurance 0 (0) 0 (0) 

No Assurance 0 (0) 0 (0) 

 

The areas on which the assurance assessments have been provided can only 

provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss and 

their effectiveness is reduced if the internal audit recommendations made during the 

year have not been fully implemented. 

We made the following total number of recommendations on our audit work carried 

out in 2019/20 (excluding the recommendations for the Safeguarding Review for 

which the service is hosted by West Hampshire CCG). The numbers in brackets 

relate to 2018/19 recommendations 

Urgent Important Routine 

0 (0) 12 (9) 42 (12) 

 

Audit Summary 

Control weaknesses: There were no audit areas for the CCG reviewed by internal 

audit where it was assessed that the effectiveness of some of the internal control 

arrangements provided ólimited' or 'no assuranceô.  

Recommendations Made: We have analysed our findings/recommendations by risk 

area and these are summarised below. 

Risk Area Urgent Important Routine 

Directed 0 4 7 

Compliance 0 6 19 

Operational 0 2 14 
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Reputational 0 0 2 

 

Operational Effectiveness Opportunities: One of the roles of internal audit is to 

add value and during the financial year we provided advice on opportunities to 

enhance the operational effectiveness of the areas reviewed and the number of 

these opportunities is summarised below. 

Operational 

20 (10) 

 

Independence and Objectivity of Internal Audit 

There were no limitations or restrictions placed on the internal audit service which 

impaired either the independence or objectivity of the service provided. 

 

Performance and Quality Assurance 

The following Performance Targets were used to measure the performance of 

internal audit in delivering the Annual Plan. 

Performance Measure Target Attained 

Completion of Planned Audits 100% 77% 

Audits Completed in Time 
Allocation 

100% 100% 

Final report issued within 10 
working days of receipt of 
responses 

  100% 100% 

Compliance with Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards 

100% 100% 

 

Ongoing quality assurance work was carried out throughout the year, and we 

continue to comply with ISO 9001:2015 standards.  An independent external review 

was carried out in 2017 of our compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (PSIAS) which met the requirement for an independent 5 year review.  

The outcome confirmed full compliance with all the standards.  Our work also 

complies with the IIA-UK Professional Standards 
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The outcome (see Annex D) concluded that TIAA generally conforms with all 

standards and requirements of the PSIAS (see Annex D for the full report).  Our work 

also complies with the IIA-UK Professional Standards. 

Release of Report 

The table below sets out the history of this Annual Report. 

Date Report issued: 23rd April 2020 

Date final issued: 16th June 2020 
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Annex A 

Head of Internal Audit Opinion (HoIA) on the Effectiveness of the System of 

Internal Control for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 

The purpose of my annual HoIA Opinion is to contribute to the assurances available 

to the Accountable Officer and the Governing Body which underpin the Governing 

Bodyôs own assessment of the effectiveness of the organisationôs system of internal 

control. This Opinion will in turn assist the Governing Body in the completion of its 

Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 

My opinion is set out as follows: 

1. Overall opinion; 

2. Basis for the opinion;  

3. Matters that have had an impact on the opinion; and 

4. Commentary. 

1. My overall opinion is that Reasonable assurance can be given that there is a 

generally sound system of internal control, designed to meet the organisationôs 

objectives, and that controls are generally being applied consistently.  However, 

some weakness in the design and/or inconsistent application of controls, put the 

achievement of particular objectives at risk.   

2. The basis for forming my opinion is as follows: 

i. An assessment of the design and operation of the underpinning Assurance 

Framework and supporting processes; and 

ii. An assessment of the range of individual opinions arising from risk-based 

audit assignments, contained within internal audit risk-based plans that 

have been reported throughout the year. This assessment has taken 

account of the relative materiality of these areas and managementôs 

progress in respect of addressing control weaknesses. 

Additional areas of work that may support the opinion will be determined locally but 

are not required for NHS England and Improvement e.g. any reliance that is being 

placed upon Third Party Assurances. There are no matters to bring to your attention 

which have had an impact on the Head of Internal Audit Opinion. At the time of 

preparing this report the Shared Business Services Service and the Commissioning 

Support Services Auditor Reports had not yet been published. The Capita Type I 

Letter which is distributed to delegated CCGs and provides 3rd party assurance of 

primary care support services had not yet been received. Once received the third 

party assurances will be reflected in the final Head of Internal Audit Opinion for 

2019/20.  

It is noted that at the time of preparing this report that it is being reported that the 
CCG óremained on plan and was successful in receiving the final CSF payment of 
£2.8m in M12. This in addition to the previous £5.1m it received for Q1, Q2 and Q3 
has resulted in the CCG having a revised in year surplus control total of £0.020m. 
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The CCG has met this target and delivered (unaudited) a surplus of £0.028m as at 
31st March 2020ô. 

3. Commentary ï see Annex B for a summary of completed internal audit work.  
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Annex B 

Assurance assessments for completed audits 

Audit Status Assurance Assessment Comments 

CCG Specific Audits 

 GBAF and Risk Management (Internal Assurance) Final Report Reasonable Assurance  

 Key Financial Systems Final Report Substantial Assurance  

Service Transformation (QIPP Delivery)/FRP-Governance Arrangements   

and Delivery 

Draft Report Reasonable assurance 
 

Safeguarding Adultsï FGSE (local arrangements) Final Report Substantial assurance  

HIOW Partnership-wide Reviews 

NHS Mandated Conflict of Interest Review Final Report Reasonable Assurance  

Primary Care ï NHS England Mandated Review  Final Report Reasonable assurance  

NHS Data Security & Protection Toolkit 2019/20 Final Report Substantial Assurance  

CAMHS Review  Final Report Reasonable Assurance  

 Policies and Procedures Final Report Substantial Assurance  

 Children and Maternity Services Final Report Reasonable Assurance  

 GBAF and Risk Management Arrangements ï Partnership-wide Final Report Reasonable Assurance  

Restricted Treatment and Procedures (RTAP) Final Report Reasonable Assurance  

Collaborative Reviews (Hosted Services) 

Safeguarding Arrangementsï hosted by West Hampshire CCG (except for 

Adults for FGSE CCGs) 

Final Report Reasonable Assurance 
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Annex C                    Comparison of audit recommendations raised over the past four years by priority 

 

 

 

 

Follow up of audit recommendations 

Regular updates on the status of audit recommendations have been provided to the Audit Committee as part of our Internal Audit Progress Report. At the time of 

preparing this report there were no high priority overdue recommendations. Regular updates were provided to each meeting of the Audit and Risk Committees in Common 

and at the last meeting (March 2020) of the 2019/20 financial year there were no outstanding recommendations for both Fareham and Gosport and South Eastern 

Hampshire CCGs.  

2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17

Urgent 0 0 2 0

Important 12 9 31 8

Routine 42 12 16 27

54 21 49 35

Financial YearPriority of 

recommendations
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Annex D 

Summary ƻŦ ǘƘŜ Ψ9ȄǘŜǊƴŀƭ vǳŀƭƛǘȅ !ǎǎŜǎǎƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ¢L!!Ωǎ /ƻƳǇƭƛŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ tǳōƭƛŎ {ŜŎǘƻǊ LƴǘŜǊƴŀƭ !ǳŘƛǘ {ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘǎ όt{L!{ύΩ wŜǇƻǊǘ 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise the results of an external quality assessment of TIAAs compliance with PSIAS. The assessment template completed 

is that provided by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) for an external quality assessment.  The findings are drawn from a variety of evidence: policies and 

procedures, discussions with staff and a review of completed programmes and reports selected at random from clients where TIAA provides the internal 

audit service and are subject to PSIAS requirements.  

2. Background 

2.1 The PSIAS which came into effect in 2013, apply to all internal audit service providers including shared services, out-sourced and in house teams.  

2.2 Guidance states that an independent external validation should be completed at least every 5 years. This is the first full external validation completed for 

TIAA since the introduction of the PSIAS.  

2.3 An independent appraisal completed ǳǎƛƴƎ Ia ¢ǊŜŀǎǳǊȅ άLƴǘŜǊƴŀƭ !ǳŘƛǘ vǳŀƭƛǘȅ !ǎǎŜǎǎƳŜƴǘ CǊŀƳŜǿƻǊƪέ ŎƻƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ ¢L!! Ŧǳƭƭȅ ŎƻƴŦƻǊƳŜŘ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ 

requirements in 13 of the 14 areas under the headings: purpose and positioning, structure and resources and audit execution. In the remaining 1 area the 

assessment was of general compliance.  

2.4 ¢Ƙƛǎ ŜȄǘŜǊƴŀƭ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ǿŀǎ ŎƻƳǇƭŜǘŜŘ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ŘƛǊŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ¢L!!Ωǎ wŜƎƛƻƴŀƭ aŀƴŀƎƛƴƎ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊ tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ŀƴŘ vǳŀƭƛǘȅ ǘƻ ŘŜƳƻƴǎǘǊŀte compliance of the 

internal audit service provided by TIAA at its client base against PSIAS.  

2.5 The reviewer is a Chartered Member of the Institute of Internal Auditors (2002) and has significant senior level audit experience working across a number of 

different parts of the UK public sector. The reviewer confirms they are independent of TIAA.  

2.6 The IIA assessment has three levels of compliance: 

¶ Generally conforms 

¶ Partially conforms 

¶ Does not conform 

3. Opinion and Conclusion 

3.1 This assessment concludes that TIAA generally conforms with all standards and requirements of the PSIAS.   

3.2 The assistance and cooperation received from staff during this review is gratefully acknowledged.  
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2.27 Review of the effectiveness of governance, risk management 

and internal control 

My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the 

work of the internal auditors and the executive managers and clinical leads within the 

clinical commissioning group who have responsibility for the development and 

maintenance of the internal control framework. I have drawn on performance 

information available to me.  

My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their 

annual audit letter and other reports.  

The Board assurance framework itself provides me with evidence that the 

effectiveness of controls that manage risks to the clinical commissioning group 

achieving its principles objectives have been reviewed.  

I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the 

effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Governing Body and the Audit 

and risk committee and am satisfied a system to ensure continuous improvement is 

in place. 

Conclusion  

The 2019-20 Head of Internal Audit Opinion concluded, with the exception of the 

internal control issues that have been outlined in this Governance Statement, that 

the Clinical Commissioning Group has an adequate and effective framework for risk 

management, governance and internal control which is designed to meet and 

support the organisationôs objectives. The identified control issues have been or are 

being addressed and Internal Audit did not report any significant control issues. 

 

 

 

Maggie MacIsaac 

Accountable Officer  

23rd June 2020 
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SECTION 3. REMUNERATION AND STAFF 

REPORT 

Definition of senior manager 

The definition of ósenior managersô as per NHS England Annual Reporting guidance 

is:  

ñThose persons in senior positions having authority or responsibility for directing or 

controlling the major activities of the clinical commissioning group.ò  

This means those who influence the decisions of the clinical commissioning group as 

a whole rather than the decisions of individual directorates or departments. Such 

persons will include advisory or lay members.  

For the purpose of this remuneration report ósenior managersô constitute both voting 

and non-voting members of the CCG Governing Body. 

Remuneration Report   

3.1 Remuneration Committee  

It is a statutory requirement that a CCGôs governing body has a remuneration 

committee to determine and approve remuneration packages for the Chief 

Executive, Chief Finance Officer, Executive Directors and Board members. It will 

also approve policies relating to remuneration and the terms and conditions of 

employment for all CCG staff.  

Their role is to provide advice, guidance and workforce related data as required by 

the Committee. No committee member is present for discussions about their own 

remuneration or terms of service. 

For further details about the Remuneration committee please see Member report. 

  

Statement of Policy  

The Remuneration Committee has the responsibility to maintain awareness of 

statutory requirements, national guidance and directions in relation to remuneration 

and workforce matters and to ensure appropriate weight is given in its deliberations 

to the need to conserve public resources and deliver value for money.  

The Partnership Remuneration Committee is a Committees-in-Common of NHS 

Fareham and Gosport, NHS North Hampshire, NHS South Eastern Hampshire and 

NHS Isle of Wight CCGs (also included NHS North East Hampshire & Farnham CCG 

until 30th November 2019) and has those executive powers specifically delegated by 

each CCGsô Governing Bodies within the respective Schemes of Reservation and 

Delegation and in the Terms of Reference.  
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The Committee is authorised by the respective Governing Bodies to investigate any 

activity within its terms of reference through the Scheme of Reservation and 

Delegation as supported by section 14M of the NHS Act 2006 (Duty for the CCG 

Governing Body to have a properly constituted remuneration committee).  It is 

authorised to seek information it requires from any member, officer or employee.  

These CCGs meet as Committees-in-Common and conduct business as if working 

as a single group. 

 

3.2 Policy on the Remuneration of Senior Managers  

Executive remuneration fairly rewards an individualôs contribution to their 

organisationôs success and is designed to be sufficient to recruit, retain and motivate 

executives of sufficient calibre.  The Partnership uses benchmark information to 

ensure value for money in the use of public resources.  Executive remuneration is 

set through a process that is based on a consistent framework and independent 

decision-making based on accurate assessments of the weight of roles and 

individualsô performance in them. 

3.3 Remuneration of Very Senior Managers 

All Very Senior Managers remuneration is agreed and reviewed by the 

Remuneration Committee this enables the CCG to ensure that this remuneration is 

reasonable.  

 

The pensions disclosure calculations are based on officer service only and do not 

include any benefits in respect of practitioner service. 

 

3.4 Senior Manager Remuneration (including salary and pension 

entitlements) 

The table below shows the salaries and allowances paid to senior managers during 

2019/20.  

 

The figures shown under ñAll Pension Related Benefitsò in the table are a calculation 

of the increase in the senior managerôs accrued pension benefit at the beginning and 

the end of the financial year.  

 

The required formula for this item includes a factor of 20 to allow for the predicted 

value of the annual pension over an average period of 20 years. 
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Salary & 

Fees

Performance 

Pay and 

Bonuses

All Pension 

Related 

Benefits

TOTAL

(Bands of 

£5,000)

(Bands of 

£5,000)

(Bands of 

£5,000)

(Bands of 

£5,000)

(Bands of 

£2,500)

(Bands of 

£5,000)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Maggie MacIsaac i 165-170 15-20 25-30 0-5 0-2.5 30-35

Dr Peter Bibawy 100-105 0 0 0 0 0

Dr Nicola Decker 85-90 0 0 0 0 0

Dr David Chilvers 65-70 0 65-70 0 80-82.5 150-155

Dr Barbara Rushton 100-105 0 0 0 0 0

Dr Michele Legg 65-70 0 0 0 0 0

Ruth Colburn-Jackson ii
110-115 0 0 0 0 0

Zara Hyde-Peters iii 70-75 0 0 0 0 0

Sara Tiller iiii 110-115 0 55-60 0 20-22.5 75-80

Alison Smith v 85-90 0 0 0 0 0

Roshan Patel vi 135-140 0 25-30 0 10-12.5 40-45

Jane Cole vii
100-105 0 10-15 0 2.5-5 15-20

Emma Boswell viii
90-95 0 10-15 0 0-2.5 10-15

Julia Barton ix 105-110 0 25-30 0 0-2.5 25-30

Rosalind Hartley x 100-105 0 20-25 0 0-2.5 20-25

Fiona White xi 110-115 0 20-25 0 2.5-5 25-30

Alison Edgington xii 130-135 0 25-30 0 0-2.5 30-35

Jenny Erwin xiii 105-110 0 0-5 0 0-2.5 0-5

Andrew Whitfield xiv 65-70 0 10-15 0 0-2.5 15-20

Peter Cruttenden xv
30-35 0 0-5 0 0 0-5

Judy Venables xvi 10-15 0 0-5 0 0 0-5

Margaret Scott xvi 10-15 0 0-5 0 0 0-5

Carole Truman xvi 15-20 0 0-5 0 0 0-5

Dr Edward Palfrey xix 25-30 0 0-5 0 0 0-5

Nick Wilson xx
10-15 0 5-10 0 0 5-10

Lucy Docherty xxi
10-15 0 5-10 0 0 5-10

2019/20This table is subject to Audit

Clinical Chair - NHS North East Hampshire & Farnham CCG

Name

Full Salary 

& Fees

Performance 

Pay and 

Bonuses

Fareham and Gosport CCG

Chief Executive (Shared)

Title

Clinical Chair - NHS North Hampshire CCG

Clinical Chair - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG

Clinical Chair - NHS South Eastern Hampshire CCG

Clinical Chair - NHS Isle of Wight CCG

Managing Director for the North and Mid Hampshire system (Shared) and Managing 

Director for NHS North East Hampshire & Farnham CCG

Managing Director - NHS North Hampshire CCG

Managing Director - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG and South Eastern Hampshire CCG

Managing Director - NHS Isle of Wight CCG

Executive Director of Finance and Chief Operating Officer (Shared)

Interim Managing Director (NHS Isle of Wight CCG) and Interim Director of Finance 

(Shared)

Executive Director of Quality and Nursing (Shared) and Executive Director of 

Development and Improvement (Shared)

Executive Director of Quality and Nursing (Shared)

Convener of the Board for the HIOW Partnership of CCGs (Shared) and NHS North East 

Hampshire & Farnham CCG Lay Member

Non-Executive Director (Shared)

Executive Director of Strategy and Transformation (Shared)

Executive Director of People and Development (Shared)

Director of Delivery (Shared)

Director of Mental Health Transformation and Delivery (Shared)

Clinical Director (Shared)

Non Executive Advisor- NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG and NHS South Eastern 

Hampshire CCG

Non Executive Advisor- NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG and NHS South Eastern 

Hampshire CCG

Non-Executive Director (Shared)

Non-Executive Director (Shared)

Secondary Care Consultant (Shared)
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The senior managers full Salary & Fees and Performance Pay and Bonuses 
are shown in the first two columns, with the amount relative to the CCG 
disclosed in the following columns. 
 

i) Maggie MacIsaac started the year as the Joint Accountable Officer and 
Chief Executive Officer for NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG, NHS Isle of 
Wight CCG, NHS North Hampshire CCG, NHS North East Hampshire & 
Farnham CCG and NHS South Eastern Hampshire CCG. During the 
year she also became the Accountable Officer and Chief Executive 
Officer for NHS Southampton City CCG and NHS West Hampshire CCG, 
and later stepped down as the Accountable Officer and Chief Executive 
Officer for NHS North East Hampshire and Farnham CCG. The table 
below shows the CCGs which Maggie MacIsaac was Accountable 
Officer and Chief Executive Officer for during different date periods 
throughout the year. Her remuneration is split equally across the total 
number of CCGs shown for each date period. 

 

 Period 

1
st

 April 2019 - 

6
th

 June 2019 

7
th

 June 2019 ï 

16
th

 July 2019 

17
th

 July 2019 
ï 

30
th

 July 2019 

1
st

 December 
2019 ï 

31
st

 March 2020 

CCGs NHS Fareham 
and Gosport 

NHS Isle of 
Wight 

NHS North 
Hampshire 

NHS North East 
Hampshire & 
Farnham 

NHS South 
Eastern 
Hampshire 

NHS Fareham 
and Gosport 

NHS Isle of 
Wight 

NHS North 
Hampshire 

NHS North East 
Hampshire & 
Farnham 

NHS South 
Eastern 
Hampshire 

NHS 
Southampton 

NHS Fareham 
and Gosport 

NHS Isle of 
Wight 

NHS North 
Hampshire 

NHS North 
East 
Hampshire & 
Farnham 

NHS South 
Eastern 
Hampshire 

NHS 
Southampton 

NHS West 
Hampshire 

NHS Fareham 
and Gosport 

NHS Isle of Wight 

NHS North 
Hampshire 

NHS South 
Eastern 
Hampshire 

NHS 
Southampton 

NHS West 
Hampshire 

Number 
of 

CCGs 

5 6 7 6 

 

The Chief Executive received a retention payment which is split equally 
across the total number of CCGs shown above for each date period. She 
also received a performance related payment for the Hampshire and Isle 
of Wight Partnership of CCGs during 2018/19. This is split equally across 
NHS North East Hampshire and Farnham CCG, NHS North Hampshire 
CCG, NHS Fareham and Gosport CCG, NHS South Eastern Hampshire 
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CCGG and NHS Isle of Wight CCG. 

ii) Ruth Colburn-Jackson was the Managing Director for NHS North East 
Hampshire & Farnham CCG. She left the CCG on 19th January 2020. 
No funding was recharged for this role. Ruth was appointed Managing 
Director for the North and Mid Hampshire system which encompass both 
NHS North Hampshire CCG and NHS West Hampshire CCG on 20th 
January 2020. Her remuneration is split equally between both CCGs for 
this time period. 
 

iii) Zara Hyde-Peters was the Managing Director for NHS North Hampshire 
CCG. She left the CCG on 25th November 2019. No funding was 
recharged for this role. 
 

iv) Sara Tiller is the Managing Director for NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG 
and NHS South Eastern Hampshire CCG with her remuneration split 
equally across both CCGs. 
 

v) Alison Smith became the Managing Director for NHS Isle of Wight CCG 
on 19th August 2019. No funding is recharged for this role. 
 

vi) Roshan Patel was Executive Director of Finance for the five CCGs within 
the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs up until 8th 
September 2019, with his remuneration split equally across all five 
CCGs. From 9th September 2019 Roshan Patel was appointed Chief 
Operating Officer for the five CCGs within the Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Partnership of CCGs whilst remaining the statutory Chief Finance 
Officer for the 5 CCGs, with his remuneration split equally across all five 
CCGs. From 1st December 2019 Roshan Patel stepped down as the 
Chief Operating Officer and statutory Chief Finance Officer for NHS 
North East Hampshire and Farnham CCG and continued as Chief 
Operating Officer and Statutory Chief Finance Officer for the remaining 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight CCGs, with his remuneration split equally 
across all four CCGs. 
 

vii) Jane Cole was the interim Managing Director for NHS Isle of Wight CCG 
from 1st April 2019 to 17th August 2019. No funding was recharged for 
this role. From 1st October 2019 Jane Cole took on the Director of 
Finance responsibilities when she became interim Director of Finance for 
four of the CCGs within the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of 
CCGs (NHS North East Hampshire & Farnham CCG excluded), with her 
remuneration split equally across all four CCGs. 
 

viii) Emma Boswell was the Executive Director of Quality and Nursing with a 
Frimley system focus for the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of 
CCGs until 30th November 2019, with her remuneration split equally 
across all five CCGs. From 1st December 2019 Emma Boswell stood 
down as the Executive Director of Quality and Nursing for the Hampshire 
and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs, but remained the Executive 
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Director of Quality of Nursing for NHS North East Hampshire & Farnham 
CCG until 31st December 2019. On 1st January 2020 she was 
appointed to the role of Executive Director of Development and 
Improvement for the Frimley Commissioning Collaborative Board, with 
her remuneration split between NHS East Berkshire CCG (60%), NHS 
North East Hampshire & Farnham CCG (20%) and NHS Surrey Heath 
CCG (20%). 
 

ix) Julia Barton is the Executive Director of Quality and Nursing with a 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight focus for the Hampshire and Isle of Wight 
Partnership of CCGs, with her remuneration split equally across four of 
the CCGs (NHS North East Hampshire and Farnham CCG excluded). 
 

x) Rosalind Hartley was Executive Director of Strategy and Transformation 
for the five CCGs within the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of 
CCGs until 30th November 2019, with her remuneration split equally 
across all five CCGs. From 1st December 2019 Rosalind Hartley 
stepped down as the Executive Director of Strategy and Transformation 
for NHS North East Hampshire and Farnham CCG and continued as 
Director of Strategy and Transformation for the remaining Hampshire 
and Isle of Wight CCGs, with her remuneration split equally across all 
four CCGs. 
 

xi) Fiona White was the Executive Director of People and Development for 
the five CCGs within the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of 
CCGs until 30th November 2019, with her remuneration split equally 
across all five CCGs. From 1st December 2019 Fiona White stepped 
down as the Executive Director of People and Development for NHS 
North East Hampshire and Farnham CCG and continued as the 
Executive Director of People and Development for the remaining 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight CCGs, with her remuneration split equally 
across all four CCGs. 
 

xii) Alison Edgington was Director of Delivery for the five CCGs within the 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs until 30th November 
2019, with her remuneration split equally across all five CCGs. From 1st 
December 2019 Alison Edgington stepped down as Director of Delivery 
for NHS North East Hampshire and Farnham CCG and continued as the 
Director of Delivery for the remaining Hampshire and Isle of Wight 
CCGs, with her remuneration split equally across all four CCGs. 
 

xiii) Jenny Erwin was the Director of Commissioning, Mid Hampshire, for 
NHS West Hampshire CCG until 19 January 2020. Jenny was appointed 
Director of Mental Health Transformation and Delivery on 20 January 
2020 which is a shared role working across NHS West Hampshire CCG, 
NHS North Hampshire CCG, NHS Isle of Wight CCG, NHS South East 
Hampshire CCG and NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG. Her remuneration 
is split equally between all five CCGs for this time period 
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xiv) Andrew Whitfield was a Clinical Director for the five CCGs within the 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs until 30th November 
2019, with his remuneration split equally across all five CCGs. From 1st 
December 2019 Andrew Whitfield stepped down as Clinical Director for 
NHS North East Hampshire and Farnham CCG and continued as 
Clinical Director for the remaining Hampshire and Isle of Wight CCGs, 
with his remuneration split equally across all four CCGs. 
 

xv) Peter Cruttenden is the Convener (Chair) of the Board for the Hampshire 
and Isle Wight Partnership of CCGs, and a Lay Member for Governance 
for NHS North East Hampshire and Farnham CCG. His remuneration as 
a Lay Member for NHS North East Hampshire and Farnham CCG is fully 
attributable to the CCG.  His remuneration as the Convenor of the Board 
for the Hampshire and Isle Wight Partnership of CCGs was split equally 
across all five CCGs until 30th November 2019, and following NHS North 
East Hampshire and Farnham CCG's exit from the Hampshire and Isle 
Wight Partnership of CCGs on 1st December 2019 his remuneration was 
split equally across the remaining four Hampshire and Isle Wight 
Partnership of CCGs from this date. 
 

xvi) Judy Venables was a Non-Executive Director and Convenor (Chair) for 
the Audit and Risk Committee in Common for the Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Partnership of CCGs, with her remuneration split equally across all 
five CCGs until 30th November 2019. Following NHS North East 
Hampshire and Farnham CCG's exit from the Hampshire and Isle Wight 
Partnership of CCGs on 1st December 2019 Judy Venablesô 
remuneration was split equally across the remaining four Hampshire and 
Isle Wight Partnership of CCGs from this date. 
 

xvii) Margaret Scott is a Non-Executive Director and is the Chair for the 
Delegated Primary Care Commissioning Committee for the Hampshire 
and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs, as well as the Chair for NHS 
North East Hampshire and Farnham CCGôs Delegated Primary Care 
Commissioning Committee. Her remuneration is split equally across all 
five CCGs. 
 

xviii) Carole Truman was a Non-Executive Director for Public and Patient 
Engagement and Chair of the Quality Performance and Finance 
Committee for the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs, 
with her remuneration split equally across all five CCGs until 30th 
November 2019. Following NHS North East Hampshire and Farnham 
CCG's exit from the Hampshire and Isle Wight Partnership of CCGs on 
1st December 2019 Carole Truman's remuneration was split equally 
across the remaining four Hampshire and Isle Wight Partnership of 
CCGs from this date. Included in Carole's full salary and fees is an 
arrears payment relating to 2018/19. 
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xix) Dr Edward Palfrey is a Secondary Care Specialist Consultant for both 
NHS North East Hampshire & Farnham CCG and the four other 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs. His remuneration as 
a Secondary Care Specialist Consultant for NHS North East Hampshire 
and Farnham CCG is fully attributable to the CCG, with the remuneration 
relating to his role as a Secondary Care Specialist Consultant for the four 
other Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs split equally 
across all four CCGs. 
 

xx) Nick Wilson is a Non-Executive Advisor for the Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Partnership of CCGs with a NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG and 
NHS South Eastern Hampshire CCG focus. His remuneration is split 
equally between both CCGs. 
 

xxi) Lucy Docherty is a Non-Executive Advisor for the Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Partnership of CCGs with a NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG and 
NHS South Eastern Hampshire CCG focus. Her remuneration is split 
equally between both CCGs. 
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 Salary & Fees

Performance 

Pay and 

Bonuses

All Pension 

Related 

Benefits

TOTAL

(Bands of 

£5,000)

(Bands of 

£5,000)

(Bands of 

£5,000)

(Bands of 

£5,000)

(Bands of 

£2,500)

(Bands of 

£5,000)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Maggie MacIsaac Chief Executive (Shared) i 155-160 15-20 30-35 0-5 25-27.5 60-65

Dr Michele Legg Clinical Chair - NHS Isle of Wight CCG 50-55 0 0 0 0 0

Dr David Chilvers Clinical Chair - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG 65-70 0 65-70 0 0 65-70

Dr Barbara Rushton Clinical Chair - NHS South Eastern Hampshire CCG 100-105 0 0 0 0 0

Dr Peter Bibawy Clinical Chair - NHS North East Hampshire & Farnham CCG 100-105 0 0 0 0 0

Dr Nicola Decker Clinical Chair - NHS North Hampshire CCG 90-95 0 0 0 0 0

Martin Wakeley Interim Managing Director - NHS Isle of Wight CCG ii 125-130 0 0 0 0 0

Sara Tiller
Managing Director - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG and South 

Eastern Hampshire CCG iii
105-110 0 40-45 0 12.5-15 55-60

Ruth Colburn-Jackson Managing Director - NHS North East Hampshire & Farnham CCG iv 110-115 0 0 0 0 0

Zara Hyde-Peters Managing Director - NHS North Hampshire CCG v 110-115 0 0 0 0 0

Julia Barton Executive Director of Quality and Nursing (Shared) vi 100-105 0 35-40 0 5-7.5 40-45

Emma Boswell Executive Director of Quality and Nursing (Shared) vii 90-95 0 10-15 0 2.5-5 10-15

Rosalind Hartley Executive Director of Strategy and Transformation (Shared) viii 100-105 0 20-25 0 2.5-5 20-25

Fiona White Executive Director of People and Development (Shared) ix 105-110 0 20-25 0 7.5-10 30-35

Roshan Patel Executive Director of Finance (Shared) x 125-130 0 15-20 0 5-7.5 20-25

Peter Cruttenden
Convener of the Board for the HIOW Partnership of CCGs (Shared) 

and NHS North East Hampshire & Farnham CCG Lay Member
xi

30-35 0 0-5 0 0 0-5

Dr Paul Howden GP Elected Member - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG 65-70 0 65-70 0 15-17.5 85-90

Dr Ian Bell GP Elected Member - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG 30-35 0 30-35 0 0 30-35

Dr Sally Robins GP Elected Member - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG 45-50 0 45-50 0 27.5-30 75-80

Dr Simon Larmer GP Elected Member - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG 45-50 0 45-50 0 0 45-50

Dr Ian Reid GP Elected Member - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG xii 0-5 0 0-5 0 0 0-5

Dr Edward Palfrey Secondary Care Consultant (Shared) xiii 25-30 0 0-5 0 0 0-5

Judy Venables Non-Executive Director (Shared) xiv 10-15 0 0-5 0 0 0-5

Margaret Scott Non-Executive Director (Shared) xv 10-15 0 0-5 0 0 0-5

Carole Truman Non-Executive Director (Shared) xvi 10-15 0 0-5 0 0 0-5

Andrew Whitfield Clinical Director (Shared) xvii 80-85 0 15-20 0 0-2.5 15-20

Andrew Wood
Chief Finance Officer - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG and NHS 

South Eastern Hampshire CCG xviii
45-50 0 20-25 0 5-7.5 25-30

Alex Berry
Director of Transformation - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG and 

NHS South Eastern Hampshire CCG xix
15-20 0 5-10 0 40-42.5 50-55

Alison Edgington
Director of Delivery - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG and NHS 

South Eastern Hampshire CCG xx
50-55 0 25-30 0 135-137.5 160-165

Nick Wilson
Non Executive Advisor- NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG and NHS 

South Eastern Hampshire CCG xxi
10-15 0 0 0 0 0

Lucy Docherty
Non Executive Advisor- NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG and NHS 

South Eastern Hampshire CCG xxii
10-15 0 10-15 0 0 10-15

Patricia Shirley Lay Member - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG xxiii 15-20 0 15-20 0 0 15-20

Sarah Anderson Lay Member - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG xxiv 10-15 0 10-15 0 0 10-15

Dr June Thomson Secondary Care Specialist Doctor - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG
xxv

5-10 0 5-10 0 0 5-10

Title

Full Salary & 

Fees

Performance 

Pay and 

Bonuses

NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG

Name

This table is subject to Audit 2018/19
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All Very Senior Managers remuneration is agreed and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee this enables the CCG to ensure 
that this remuneration is reasonable.  

The pensions disclosure calculations are based on officer service only and do not include any benefits in respect of practitioner 
service. 

3.5 Pension Benefits  

The table below (subject to audit) illustrates the pension benefits for those members of the Governing Body who are a member of 
the pension scheme. 

 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h)

Real increase 

in pension at 

pension age

Real increase 

in pension 

lump sum at 

pension age

Total accrued 

pension at 

pension age at 

31 March 2020

Lump sum at 

pension age 

related to 

accrued 

pension at 31 

March 2020

Cash 

Equivalent 

Transfer Value 

at 1 April 2019

Real increase 

in Cash 

Equivalent 

Transfer Value

Cash 

Equivalent 

Transfer Value 

at 31 March 

2020

Employers 

contribution to 

stakeholder 

pension

(Bands of 

£2,500)

(Bands of 

£2,500)

(Bands of 

£5,000)

(Bands of 

£5,000)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Maggie MacIsaac Chief Executive (Shared) 0-2.5 (5)-(2.5) 70-75 175-180 1,397               25                    1,484               N/A

Dr Peter Bibawy Clinical Chair - NHS North East Hampshire & Farnham CCG 0-2.5 0-2.5 5-10 0-5 39                    10                    65                    N/A

Dr Nicola Decker Clinical Chair - NHS North Hampshire CCG 0-2.5 0-2.5 10-15 20-25 186                  17                    220                  N/A

Dr David Chilvers Clinical Chair - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG 2.5-5 10-12.5 25-30 70-75 461                  91                    573                  N/A

Dr Michele Legg Clinical Chair - NHS Isle of Wight CCG 2.5-5 2.5-5 10-15 25-30 201                  39                    255                  N/A

Ruth Colburn-Jackson

Managing Director for the North and Mid Hampshire system (Shared) 

and Managing Director for NHS North East Hampshire & Farnham CCG
0-2.5 (2.5)-0 25-30 50-55 334                  4                       361                  N/A

Zara Hyde-Peters Managing Director - NHS North Hampshire CCG 2.5-5 0-2.5 10-15 0-5 133                  33                    179                  N/A

Sara Tiller

Managing Director - NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG and South Eastern 

Hampshire CCG
0-2.5 0-2.5 30-35 65-70 559                  40                    628                  N/A

Alison Smith Managing Director - NHS Isle of Wight CCG 2.5-5 0-2.5 20-25 0-5 271                  38                    345                  N/A

Roshan Patel Executive Director of Finance and Chief Operating Officer (Shared) 2.5-5 0-2.5 30-35 60-65 421                  27                    477                  N/A

Jane Cole

Interim Managing Director (NHS Isle of Wight CCG) and Interim 

Director of Finance (Shared)
0-2.5 0-2.5 10-15 10-15 168                  16                    202                  N/A

Emma Boswell

Executive Director of Quality and Nursing (Shared) and           

Executive Director of Development and Improvement (Shared)
0-2.5 (2.5)-0 25-30 50-55 376                  12                    410                  N/A

Julia Barton Executive Director of Quality and Nursing (Shared) 0-2.5 2.5-5 20-25 65-70 495                  22                    543                  N/A

Rosalind Hartley Executive Director of Strategy and Transformation (Shared) 0-2.5 (2.5)-0 35-40 80-85 644                  14                    680                  N/A

Fiona White Executive Director of People and Development (Shared) 0-2.5 (2.5)-0 25-30 65-70 417                  7                       449                  N/A

Alison Edgington Director of Delivery (Shared) 0-2.5 (5)-(2.5) 40-45 100-105 820                  16                    874                  N/A

Jenny Erwin Director of Mental Health Transformation and Delivery (Shared) 0-2.5 0-2.5 20-25 40-45 327                  11                    361                  N/A

Andrew Whitfield Clinical Director (Shared) 0-2.5 0-2.5 25-30 75-80 573                  23                    615                  N/A

Name Title
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Certain members do not receive pensionable remuneration therefore there will be no 
entries in respect of pensions for them. For staff shared across the Hampshire and 
Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs and other CCGs 100% of their Pension benefits 
are reflected regardless of their proportion attributable to the CCG. Where an 
employee holds a Senior Manager position within another Organisation 100% of their 
Pension will also be disclosed in their report. 
 

3.6 Cash Equivalent Transfer Values  
A cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of 
the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The 
benefits valued are the memberôs accrued benefits and any contingent spouseôs 
pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension 
scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or 
arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the 
benefits accrued in their former scheme.  

The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a 
consequence of their membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a 
senior capacity to which disclosure applies. This may be for more than just their 
service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies (in which case this fact will be 
noted at the foot of the table). The CETV figures and the other pension details 
include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement which 
the individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also include any 
additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing 
additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are 
calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and 
Faculty of Actuaries. 
 

3.7 Real Increase in CETV 

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes 
account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the 
employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or 
arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the 
period.  
 
During the year there was a requirement from the government to adjust the 
indexation on part of the public service pension schemes, known as the Guaranteed 
Minimum Pensions (GMP). From August 2019 this affected the method used by NHS 
Pensions to calculate the CETV values, and therefore the method in force at 31 
March 2020 is different to the method used to calculate the value at 31 March 2019. 
The real increase in CETV may therefore have been impacted and could 
subsequently include any increase in CETV due to the change in GMP methodology 
 

3.8 Compensation on Early Retirement or for Loss of Office 

There have been no payments made for loss of office to any senior manager who 

was a member of the Governing Body during 2019/20. 
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3.9 Payments to Past Members 

 

The CCG made no payments to past members in 2019/20 

3.10 Pay multiples  

 
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration 
of the highest paid director or member of the organisation and the median 
remuneration of the organisationôs workforce.  

The banded remuneration of the highest paid director or member in The CCG in the 
financial year 2019/20 was £190K - £195K. (2018/19, £170K - £175K). This was 3.75 
times (2018/19 ï 3.81 times) the median remuneration of the workforce which was 
£50K to £55K. (2018/19, £45K - £50K). Figures are based on full time salaries and 
no adjustment is made for staff shared across the Hampshire and Isle of Wight 
Partnership of CCGs or other CCGs. 

In 2019/20 and 2018/19 no employees received remuneration in excess of the 
highest paid director or member. Remuneration ranged from £19K to £191K 
(2018/19 £9K to £173K).  

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance related pay and 
benefits in kind but not severance payments. It does not include employer pension 
contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions. 

 

Staff Report 

Under the Equality Act 2010 it is essential that the CCG collects and reports on its 

current relevant workforce information. To do this it is updated on a regular basis to 

ensure that current policies, practices and support mechanisms remain relevant to 

the needs and requirements of the workforce.  

 

The CCG employs permanent staff and also uses a limited amount of agency staff, 

classified as óotherô. It also buys in services from Commissioning Support Units and 

other CCGs. The following table sets out the staff costs for the permanent and 

agency staff for 2018/19:  

Note: This only reflects the headcount of staff on the CCGôs Payroll. 

3.11 Number of Senior Managers 

 

 

 

Permanent Other

Board Members 6 0

All other Senior Managers 5.5 0

Total Staff Numbers 11.5 0

Band
Number
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3.12 Staff Numbers and Costs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Permanent Other*

Salaries & Wages 3,972 0

Social security costs 208 0

NHS pension costs 248 0

Total Staff Costs 4,428 0

Description
Costs (£000's)

Permanent Other*

General Medical Practitioner 1.64 0.00

Senior Manager - Central Functions 12.31 0.00

Manager Clinical Support 50.31 0.00

Clerical & Administrative - Central Functions 1.77 0.00

Nurse Manager - Community Services 1.35 0.00

Chief Pharmacist 1.25 0.00

Scientist in Pharmacy 3.44 0.00

Technician in Pharmacy 4.88 0.00

Total Staff Numbers 76.95 0.00

*Includes Governing Body Executives, staff recharged by other NHS bodies, Agency & 

temporary staff

Description

Number
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3.13 Staff Composition 

 

 

3.14 Sickness Absence Data 

Details of the CCGôs Sickness absence data can be found within the NHS Digital 

Publication series at  NHS Sickness Absence Rates - NHS Digital 

3.15 Staff Policies 

We have a range of policies and procedures that we apply to govern our approach to 

staff management, recruitment, support and development. These include:  

¶ When a concern arises Policy 

¶ Freedom to Speak Up Policy 

¶ Leave and Flexible Working Policy 

¶ Maternity, Paternity, Adoption Leave & Shared Parental Leave and Pay 

Guidance 

¶ Organisational Change Policy 

¶ Recruitment and Exit Procedure 

¶ Travel and Expenses Policy 

¶ Staff Development Policy 

¶ Volunteering Policy 

¶ Probationary Policy 

¶ Performance Improvement Policy 

 

3.16 Trade Union Facility Time Reporting Requirements  

Public sector organisations are required to report on trade union facility time, which 

is the paid time off for union representatives to carry out trade union activities. During 

2019/20 no staff from Fareham & Gosport CCG have acted as Trade Union officials. 

 

 

 

Male Female

Board Members 2.00 4.00

All other Senior Managers 2.50 3.00

Other Employees 13.55 51.90

Total Staff Numbers 18.05 58.90

Band
Number

https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-sickness-absence-rates


 

106 
 

3.17 Other Employee Matters including employee consultation, forum, training 

 

Staff Training 

All staff are required to undertake statutory and mandatory training on a variety of 

topics to keep standards high, ensure compliance with regulations, and to keep you 

safe at work. 

The training staff are required to do will be specific to their role. Some training is 

required to be completed annually and others every three years. Training includes 

but is not limited to: 

¶ Display Screen Equipment 

¶ Fire Safety 

¶ Information Governance 

¶ Equality and Diversity 

¶ Health Safety and Wellbeing 

¶ Safeguarding Adults 

¶ Safeguarding Children 

¶ Fraud awareness 

¶ Prevent 

¶ Moving and Handling 

¶ Infection Control 

Equality  

We consider equality and diversity an important part of all our workforce policies. 

When employment policies are drafted and reviewed, they are subject to an equality 

impact assessment to identify positive and negative impacts for staff from protected 

characteristic groups. This includes the impact for prospective and existing staff with 

disabilities. Where necessary, policies are amended to minimise potential negative 

equality impacts and better advance equal opportunities for disabled employees, via 

reasonable adjustments.  

 

Disabled Employees 

Recruitment by the CCG is carried out in accordance with its recruitment policy. All 

candidatesô application forms are shortlisted anonymously and all applicants 

considered according to the same criteria. The organisation adheres to the Two Tick 

scheme in that the CCG guarantees to interview all applicants with a disability who 

meet the essential criteria for a job vacancy and to consider them on their abilities. 

Where an individual identifies a disability the CCG will make reasonable adjustments 

throughout the recruitment process. 

 

Employees who become disabled in the course of their employment will have a 

regular review with their manager to consider how to best utilise and develop their 

abilities. Any adjustments which are deemed reasonable, to their employment or 
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working conditions that would assist them in the performance of their duties should 

be considered. 

 

Staff Partnership Forum 

The Staff Partnership Forum was established to improve communication between 

managers and staff, as well as to improve the working environment within the CCG 

and thereby staff morale. The forum is made up of representatives nominated by 

each team within the CCG. It is chaired by the CCGôs Governing Body Lay Member 

for Patient and Public Engagement and is also attended by the CCGôs HR Manager. 

The forum is the CCGôs primary means of consulting staff on a range of work-related 

issues, such as: 

¶ Health and Wellbeing Activities 

¶ Organisational Development 

¶ Health and Safety 

¶ Equality Act 

¶ Organisational Policies and Procedures (changes to terms and 

conditions to be referred to South CCG Staff Partnership Forum) 

¶ Gender Pay Gap Data 

 

Forum members also consider suggestions made by colleagues on any aspect of 

working conditions or environment and take decisions or make recommendations to 

senior management accordingly. 

Forum meeting notes are shared with CCG colleagues by the nominated team 

representatives. The representatives also consult their team members on issues 

raised at the forum and feed their views back to the forum, as well as supporting and 

encouraging colleagues to put forward suggestions or ideas. 

Staff Consultation  

The CCG believes that by working in partnership with staff we can learn about 

peopleôs experiences and views, to help prioritise the best ways to support and work 

together, ultimately acting as a good employer, with strong, supported teams who 

share organisational learning to shape the delivery of high-quality care for all.  

The CCG continues to regularly communicate and engage with staff through regular 

team briefs ï a meeting where staff are informed of organisational change and are 

invited to be engaged and involved and through the staff intranet. Staff are also 

involved and invited to stakeholder events, where CCG priorities are debated and 

shaped, and regular communications are sent to staff via emails team meetings one-

to-one meetings are held with line managers on a frequent basis. Objective settings 

and personal development plans are written for staff to follow as part of their 

appraisal plans each year too which also have a mid -year review built into them. 

In addition, an annual staff survey is carried out with follow up focus groups and 

action planning. In consultation with staff a new set of values has been developed for 
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the HIOW partnership pf CCGôs.  There are also senior leaderôs forums that take 

place on a. weekly basis.  

3.18 Expenditure on Consultancy 

 

The CCG spent £0K on Consultancy Fees during the financial year.  This is 

compared to £2K in 2018/19. 

3.19 Off-payroll Engagements  

 

Table 1: Off-payroll engagements longer than 6 Months 

For all off-payroll engagements as at 31 March 2020 for more than £245 per day and that 

last longer than six months:  

  Number 

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2020 0 

Of which, the number that have existed:  

for less than one year at the time of reporting 0 

for between one and two years at the time of reporting 0 

for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting 0 

for between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting 0 

for 4 or more years at the time of reporting 0 

 

Table 2: New Off-payroll Engagements  

Where the reformed public sector rules apply, entities must complete Table 2 for all new off-

payroll engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between 1 April 2019 

and 31 March 2020, for more than £245 per day and that last for longer than 6 months: 

  Number 

Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months in 

duration, between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 
0 

Of which:  

Number assessed as caught by IR35 0 

Number assessed as not caught by IR35 0 
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Number engaged directly (via PSC contracted to department) and are 

on the departmental payroll 
0 

Number of engagements reassessed for consistency / assurance 

purposes during the year 
0 

Number of engagements that saw a change to IR35 status following 

the consistency review  
0 

 

Table 3: Off-payroll Engagements / Senior Official Engagements 

For any off-payroll engagements of Board members and / or senior officials with significant 

financial responsibility, between 01 April 2019 and 31 March 2020  

Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or 

senior officers with significant financial responsibility, during the 

financial year (1) 

0 

Total no. of individuals on payroll and off-payroll that have been 

deemed ñboard members, and/or, senior officials with significant 

financial responsibilityò, during the financial year. This figure should 

include both on payroll and off-payroll engagements. (2) 

18 

Note 

(1) There should only be a very small number of off-payroll engagements of 

board members and/or senior officials with significant financial responsibility, 

permitted only in exceptional circumstances and for no more than six months 

(2) As both on payroll and off-payroll engagements are included in the total 

figure, no entries here should be blank or zero. 

In any cases where individuals are included within the first row of this table the 

department should set out: 

¶ Details of the exceptional circumstances that led to each of these 

arrangements. 

¶ Details of the length of time each of these exceptional engagements lasted. 
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3.20 Exit Packages, Including Special (Non-Contractual) Payments 

 

Table 1: Exit Packages  

Exit package 
cost band 
(inc. any 
special 

payment 
element 

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Cost of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed 

Cost of other 
departures 

agreed 

Total 
number of 

exit 
packages 

Total cost of 
exit packages 

Number of 
departures 

where special 
payments 
have been 

made 

Cost of special 
payment 
element 

included in exit 
packages 

 WHOLE 
NUMBERS 

ONLY £s 

WHOLE 
NUMBERS 

ONLY £s 

WHOLE 
NUMBERS 

ONLY £s 

WHOLE 
NUMBERS 

ONLY £s 

Less than 
£10,000 

  1 £3,290     

£10,000 - 
£25,000 

        

£25,001 - 
£50,000 

        

£50,001 - 
£100,000 

        

£100,001 - 
£150,000 

        

£150,001 ï
£200,000 

        

>£200,000         

TOTALS    Agrees to A 
below 

    

Redundancy and other departure cost have been paid in accordance with the provisions of NHS Agenda for Change Terms and Conditions. 

Exit costs in this note are accounted for in full in the year of departure. Where the CCG has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are 

met by the CCG and not by the NHS Pensions Scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pensions Scheme and are not included 

in the table.  
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Table 2: Analysis of Other Departures 

 Agreements Total Value of 
agreements 

Voluntary redundancies 
including early retirement 
contractual costs 

  

Mutually agreed 
resignations (MARS) 
contractual costs 

  

Early retirements in the 
efficiency of the service 
contractual costs 

  

Contractual payments in 
lieu of notice* 

1 £3,290 

Exit payments following 
Employment Tribunals or 
court orders 

  

Non-contractual payments 
requiring HMT approval** 

  

TOTAL  A ï agrees to total in 
table 1 

As a single exit package can be made up of several components each of which will 

be counted separately in this Note, the total number above will not necessarily match 

the total numbers in Note ñTBCò which will be the number of individuals. 

*any non-contractual payments in lieu of notice are disclosed under ñnon-contracted 

payments requiring HMT approvalò below.  

**includes any non-contractual severance payment made following judicial 

mediation, and X (list amounts) relating to non-contractual payments in lieu of notice.  

No non-contractual payments were made to individuals where the payment value 

was more than 12 monthsô of their annual salary.  

3.21 Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report 

The CCG is not required to produce a Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report. 

Disclosures on remote contingent liabilities, losses and special payments, gifts, and fees and 

charges are included as notes in the Financial Statements of this report. An external audit 

certificate and report is also included in this annual report. 
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SECTION 4. FINANCE REPORT  

 

4.1 Financial Overview  

The CCG met its financial and administrative financial duties in 2019/20. The full 

results are set out within the CCGs Annual Accounts and notes to the accounts at 

the end of this document.  The key results are: 

¶ An in-year revenue surplus of £0.028m against an in-year revenue 

resource limit of £301.647m (including running costs allowance) - target 

met. 

¶ A cumulative revenue deficit of £20.555m against a total revenue resource 
limit of £281.064m ï target met. 

¶ The cash balance at year-end was £57.072k which was within the target 

set by NHS England ï target met. 

¶ Capital expenditure amounted to £0k against at total capital limit of £0k ï 

target met. 

 

4.2 Review of the Financial Year  

The CCG was required to set its 2019/20 Financial Plan in accordance with the 

planning rules and requirements set out by NHS England, which included achieving 

an £7.880m deficit control total. (This reduced to an in year surplus of £0.020m due 

to CSF payments). The CCG successfully achieved this. 

The CCGs cumulative deficit decreased from £20.583m to £20.555m during the 

financial year. 

The CCG received a total revenue allocation of £281.064m, which included the 

cumulative deficit from 2018/19 of £20.583m and a running costs allocation of 

£4.483m.  Revenue expenditure for the year amounted to £301.619m, which 

provided an in-year surplus of £0.028m. The charts show how the CCG applied this 

across the various commissioning areas, together with a breakdown of the amount 

spent per head of population.  
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Breakdown of Commissioning Spend 2019/20 

 

Spend per head of population 2019/20 



 

114 
 

  

 

 

During the financial year, the CCG achieved break-even for the first time since the 

financial year 2013/14. This was achieved despite having to invest significantly more 

than planned into winter preparedness. 

 

4.3 Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP)  

 

The NHS as a whole has to improve efficiency to offset the rising cost of healthcare 

from new technologies, population growth and complexity of need, inflation and other 

pressures.  
The national programme is now well established to release savings by improving 

quality, driving innovation in healthcare, improving productivity and preventing ill-

health.  
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The CCG was required to deliver savings of £11.268m (3.74% of overall allocation) 

during the year in order to achieve its break-even control total. The CCG achieved 

£9.213m, slippage in the plan was mitigated. 

 

4.4 Running Costs 
 

Each CCG is set a limit on how much it can spend on its administrative costs. For 

our CCG, this limit is £4.483m, which equates to £21.76 per head of population.  The 

CCG remained within the £4.483m limit for 2019/20. 

 

4.5 Cash 
 

NHS England set a cash target for each CCG, insofar as cashbook balances held 

should not exceed 1.25% of the CCGs cash drawdown for March 2020.  The CCGs 

target equated to a maximum cashbook balance of £268.750k, the actual cashbook 

balance of £57.071k was within the threshold. 

 

4.6 Better payment practice code 
 

The Better Payment Practice Code (BPPC) requires CCGs to aim to pay all valid 

invoices by the due date, or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice.  For Non-

NHS invoices, we paid 99.44% of the number of invoices in line with the BPPC 

(99.93% of the value), and for NHS invoices, we paid 98.78% of the number of 

invoices in line with the BPPC (99.96% of the value). 

NHS organisations are deemed to have complied with this measure if at least 95% of 

invoices are paid within 30 days or within contract terms. 

 

4.7 Fees and charges 

 

The CCG is able to charge a fee to individuals who exercise their right to obtain a 

copy of the information that the CCG holds about them. This is known as a Subject 

Access Request.  The CCG operated in compliance with the cost allocation and 

charging requirements set out in HM Treasury guidance. The CCG received no fees 

and charges in this respect during 2019/20. 

 

4.8 Financial plan 2020/21 

 

The CCG has submitted a draft plan to NHS England in March 2020, however due to 

the Covid response finalising the plan has been paused. 

Going concern 
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These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of 

the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as evidenced by inclusion of 

financial provision for that service in published documents. 

Where a clinical commissioning group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its 

services will continue to be provided (using the same assets, by another public 

sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final 

set of financial statements. If services will continue to be provided the financial 

statements are prepared on the going concern basis.  

NHS Fareham and Gosport CCG was established on 1st April 2013 as a statutory 

body. The CCG has an agreed Governance Framework and continuing Operational 

Plan and is operating within its constitution to govern its activities. 

Due to the existence of plans going forward it is concluded that under the 

Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) NHS Fareham and Gosport Clinical 

Commissioning Group is a going concern for financial reporting purposes.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

117 
 

 

SECTION 5.  
 

Independent auditor's report to the members of the Governing Body of NHS 

Fareham & Gosport  CCG 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion  

We have audited the financial statements of NHS Fareham & Gosport (the óCCGô) for the year ended 
31 March 2020, which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, the Statement of 
Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial 
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as interpreted and 
adapted by the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2019 to 2020. 
In our opinion, the financial statements: 

¶ give a true and fair view of the financial position of the CCG as at 31 March 2020 and of its expenditure and 
income for the year then ended; and 

¶ have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as 
adopted by the European Union, as interpreted and adapted by the Department of Health and Social Care 
Group Accounting Manual 2019 to 2020; and  

¶ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Health and Social Care Act 2012. 

Basis for opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the óAuditorôs 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementsô section of our report. We are independent of 
the CCG in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in the UK, including the FRCôs Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The impact of macro-economic uncertainties on our audit  

Our audit of the financial statements requires us to obtain an understanding of all relevant 
uncertainties, including those arising as a consequence of the effects of macro-economic 
uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of 
estimates made by the Accountable Officer and the related disclosures and the appropriateness of 
the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on 
assessments of the future economic environment and the CCGôs future operational arrangements. 
Covid-19 and Brexit are amongst the most significant economic events currently faced by the UK, and 
at the date of this report their effects are subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty, with the full 
range of possible outcomes and their impacts unknown. We applied a standardised firm-wide 
approach in response to these uncertainties when assessing the CCGôs future operational 
arrangements. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible 
future implications for an entity associated with these particular events. 

Conclusions relating to going concern  

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require 
us to report to you where: 
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¶ ǘƘŜ !ŎŎƻǳƴǘŀōƭŜ hŦŦƛŎŜǊΩǎ ǳǎŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƎƻƛƴƎ ŎƻƴŎŜǊƴ basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements is not appropriate; or 

¶ the Accountable Officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties 
ǘƘŀǘ Ƴŀȅ Ŏŀǎǘ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘ Řƻǳōǘ ŀōƻǳǘ ǘƘŜ //DΩǎ ŀōƛƭƛǘȅ ǘƻ continue to adopt the going concern basis of 
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are 
authorised for issue. 

In our evaluation of the Accountable Officerôs conclusions, and in accordance with the expectation set 
out within the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2019 to 2020 that the 
CCGôs financial statements shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the risks 
associated with the CCGôs operating activities, including effects arising from macro-economic 
uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit. We analysed how those risks might affect the CCGôs 
financial resources or ability to continue operations over the period of at least twelve months from the 
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. In accordance with the above, we have 
nothing to report in these respects.  
However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in 
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the 
absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the CCG 
will continue in operation. 

Other information  

The Accountable Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditorôs report 
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to 
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.  
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are 
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a 
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that 
fact.  
We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice  

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2015 on behalf of the 
Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the 
Governance Statement does not comply with the guidance issued by the NHS Commissioning Board 
or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not 
required to consider whether the Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks 
are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.       
We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice  

In our opinion:  

¶ the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance 
with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, as interpreted and adapted by the Department of Health 
and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2019 to 2020 and the requirements of the Health and Social 
Care Act 2012;  and 

¶ based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our knowledge of 
ǘƘŜ //D ƎŀƛƴŜŘ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ ƻǳǊ ǿƻǊƪ ƛƴ ǊŜƭŀǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ //DΩǎ ŀǊǊŀƴƎŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŦƻǊ ǎŜŎǳǊƛƴƎ ŜŎƻƴƻƳȅΣ ŜŦŦƛŎƛŜƴŎȅ 
and effectiveness in its use of resources, the other information published together with the financial 
statements in the Annual Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is 
consistent with the financial statements. 

Opinion on regularity required by the Code of Audit Practice  

In our opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income recorded in the financial 
statements have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions 
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in the financial statements conform to the authorities which govern them. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception  

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if: 

¶ we issue a report in the public interest under Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in 
the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

¶ we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under Section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
because we have reason to believe that the CCG,  or an officer of the CCG, is about to make, or has made, a 
decision which involves or would involve the body incurring unlawful expenditure, or is about to take, or 
has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to 
cause a loss or deficiency; or 

¶ we make a written recommendation to the CCG under Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters. 

Responsibilities of the Accountable Of ficer and Those Charged with Governance for the financial 

statements  

As explained more fully in the Statement of Accountable Officer's responsibilities, set out on pages 67 
to 68, the Accountable Officer, is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in the 
form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Directions, for being satisfied that they give a true and 
fair view, and for such internal control as the Accountable Officer determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.  
In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is responsible for assessing the CCGôs 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless they have been informed by the relevant national 
body of the intention to dissolve the CCG without the transfer of its services to another public sector 
entity. 
The Accountable Officer is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income in the 
financial statements. 
The Audit and Risk Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those Charged with Governance 
are responsible for overseeing the CCGôs financial reporting process. 

!ÕÄÉÔÏÒȭÓ ÒÅÓÐÏÎÓÉÂÉÌÉÔÉÅÓ ÆÏÒ ÔÈÅ ÁÕÄÉÔ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ ÆÉÎÁÎÃÉÁÌ ÓÔÁÔÅÍÅÎÔÓ 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditorôs report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 
Financial Reporting Councilôs website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description 
forms part of our auditorôs report. 
We are also responsible for giving an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in the 
financial statements in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements ς Conclusion on the //DΩǎ ŀǊǊŀƴƎŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŦƻǊ ǎŜŎǳǊƛƴƎ 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

Matter on which we are required to report by exception - ##'ȭÓ ÁÒÒÁÎÇÅÍÅÎÔÓ ÆÏÒ ÓÅÃÕÒÉÎÇ 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources  

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion we have not been 
able to satisfy ourselves that the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020.   
We have nothing to report in respect of the above matter. 

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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Responsibilities of the Accountable Officer  

As explained in the Governance Statement, the Accountable Officer is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of the CCG's 
resources. 

!ÕÄÉÔÏÒȭÓ ÒÅÓÐÏÎÓÉÂÉÌÉÔÉÅÓ ÆÏÒ ÔÈÅ ÒÅÖÉÅ× ÏÆ ÔÈÅ ##'ȭÓ ÁÒÒÁÎÇÅÍÅÎÔÓ ÆÏÒ ÓÅÃÕÒÉÎÇ ÅÃÏÎÏÍÙȟ 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources  

We are required under Section 21(1)(c) and Schedule 13 paragraph 10(a) of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and to report where we have not been 
able to satisfy ourselves that it has done so. We are not required to consider, nor have we 
considered, whether all aspects of the CCG's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively. 
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the 
guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2020, as to 
whether in all significant respects, the CCG had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly 
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for 
taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that 
necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the 
CCG put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use 
of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020, and to report by exception where we are not 
satisfied.    
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, 
we undertook such work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the CCG has put in place 
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements ɀ Certificate  

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of NHS Fareham and Gosport 
CCG in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the 
Code of Audit Practice. 

Use of our report  

This report is made solely to the members of the Governing Body of the CCG, as a body, in 
accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the members of the Governing Body of the CCG those matters 
we are required to state to them in an auditorôs report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the CCG and the 
members of the Governing Body of the CCG, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 
opinions we have formed. 
 
          

Key Audit Partner 

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor 

 

London 

25 June 2020 
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SECTION 6. ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 
 

NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG ï Annual 

Accounts 2019-20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG - Annual Accounts 2019-20

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended

31 March 2020

2019-20 2018-19

Note £'000 £'000

Income from sale of goods and services 2 (2,674) (1,082)

Other operating income 2 - -

Total operating income (2,674) (1,082)

Staff costs 4 4,427 3,936

Purchase of goods and services 5 299,593 287,642

Provision expense 5 19 124

Other Operating Expenditure 5 213 187

Total operating expenditure 304,252 291,889

Total Net Expenditure for the Financial Year 301,577 290,806

Comprehensive Expenditure for the year 301,577 290,806

The notes on pages 125 to 144 form part of this statement

NB: Due to roundings, this schedule, and all following schedules and notes may contain casting differences.
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Maggie MacIsaac 

Accountable Officer 

23rd June 2020 

 

 

 

NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG - Annual Accounts 2019-20

Statement of Financial Position as at

31 March 2020

2019-20 2018-19

Note £'000 £'000

Current assets:

Trade and other receivables 9 2,255 1,872

Cash and cash equivalents 10 57 107

Total current assets 2,312 1,979

Total current assets 2,312 1,979

Total assets 2,312 1,979

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 11 (17,702) (19,522)

Provisions 14 (140) (130)

Total current liabilities (17,842) (19,652)

Non-Current Assets plus/less Net Current Assets/Liabilities (15,530) (17,673)

Assets less Liabilities (15,530) (17,673)

Financed by Taxpayersô Equity

General fund (15,530) (17,673)

Total taxpayers' equity: (15,530) (17,673)

The notes on pages 125 to 144 form part of this statement

The financial statements on pages 121 to 124 were approved by the Governing Body on 23rd June 2020 and signed on its behalf by:



 

123 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG - Annual Accounts 2019-20

Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity

31 March 2020

General 

fund

Total 

reserves

£'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayersô equity for 2019-20

Balance at 01 April 2019 (17,673) (17,673)

Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group balance at 31 March 2019 (17,673) (17,673)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayersô equity for 2019-20

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (301,619) (301,619)

Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial  Year (301,619) (301,619)

Net funding 303,763 303,763

Balance at 31 March 2020 (15,530) (15,530)

General 

fund

Total 

reserves

£'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayersô equity for 2018-19

Balance at 01 April 2018 (13,472) (13,472)

Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group balance at 31 March 2018 (13,472) (13,472)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayersô equity for 2018-19

Net operating costs for the financial year (290,806) (290,806)

Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial  Year (290,806) (290,806)

Net funding 286,605 286,605

Balance at 31 March 2019 (17,673) (17,673)

The notes on pages 125 to 144 form part of this statement
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NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG - Annual Accounts 2019-20

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended

31 March 2020

2019-20 2018-19

Note £'000 £'000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (301,619) (290,806)

(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables 9 (384) 460

Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 11 (1,820) 4,011

Provisions utilised 14 (8) (312)

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 14 19 124

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating Activities (303,813) (286,524)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing (303,813) (286,524)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Grant in Aid Funding Received 303,763 286,605

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities 303,763 286,605

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 10 (50) 81

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year 107 26

Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of the Financial Year 57 107

The notes on pages 125 to 144 form part of this statement



 

125 
 

 

 

 

NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG - Annual Accounts 2019-20

Notes to the Financial Statements

1             Accounting Policies

1.1       Going Concern 

1.2 Accounting Convention

1.3        Joint Arrangements

Pooled Budgets

If the clinical commissioning group is in a ñjointly controlled operationò, the clinical commissioning group recognises:

·                The assets the clinical commissioning group controls;

·                The liabilities the clinical commissioning group incurs;

·                The expenses the clinical commissioning group incurs; and

Ŀ                The clinical commissioning groupôs share of the income from the pooled budget activities.

Ŀ                The clinical commissioning groupôs share of the jointly controlled assets (classified according to the nature of the assets);

Ŀ                The clinical commissioning groupôs share of any liabilities incurred jointly; and

Ŀ                The clinical commissioning groupôs share of the expenses jointly incurred.

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.  Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the 

continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in 

published documents.

NHS England has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning groups shall meet the accounting requirements of 

the Group Accounting Manual issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. Consequently, the following financial statements 

have been prepared in accordance with the Group Accounting Manual 2019-20 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. 

The accounting policies contained in the Group Accounting Manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that 

they are meaningful and appropriate to clinical commissioning groups, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the 

Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the Group Accounting Manual permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting 

policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the clinical commissioning group for the purpose of 

giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the clinical commissioning group are described below. 

They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

Where a clinical commissioning group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided (using the 

same assets, by another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of financial 

statements.  If services will continue to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG was established on 1st April 2013 as a statutory body.  The clinical commissioning group has an 

agreed Governance Framework and continuing Operational Plan and is operating within its constitution to govern its activities.  The 

clinical commissioning group has been allocated funds from NHS England (NHSE) up until 2023-24 in line with the Government's Five 

Year Forward View. Alongside this the CCG has submitted financial plans to the Governing Body and NHSE up until 31 st March 2021.  

Included within the operating plans are efficiency savings to the value of £8.758m to offset financial pressures otherwise not covered by 

allocation; these savings have been fully identified within operational budgets and provider contracts. Due to the existence of plans 

going forward and the mitigation of all financial risk it is concluded that under the Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) NHS 

Fareham & Gosport CCG is a going concern for financial reporting purposes. The unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic has presented 

NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG with a challenge, but a commitment to provide funding to cover any costs has been given by the 

government and so it is not considered a risk to the going concern basis of the CCG.

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and 

equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

The clinical commissioning group has entered into a pooled budget arrangement with Hampshire County Council in accordance with 

section 75 of the NHS Act 2006. Under the arrangement, funds are pooled for joint health and social care provision and Note 20 

provides details of the income and expenditure.

The pool is hosted by Hampshire County Council. The clinical commissioning group accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, 

income and expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled budget, identified in accordance with the pooled budget agreement.

If the clinical commissioning group is involved in a ñjointly controlled assetsò arrangement, in addition to the above, the clinical 
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1.4 Operating Segments

1.5 Revenue

In the application of IFRS 15 a number of practical expedients offered in the Standard have been employed. These are as follows;

Å Where income is received for a specific performance obligation that is to be satisfied in the following year, that income is deferred.

Å Payment terms are standard reflecting cross government principles.

1.6 Employee Benefits

1.6.1 Short-term Employee Benefits

1.6.2 Retirement Benefit Costs

The schemes are subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years and an accounting valuation every year.

1.7 Other Expenses

1.8 Grants Payable

Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured 

at the fair value of the consideration payable.

Where grant funding is not intended to be directly related to activity undertaken by a grant recipient in a specific period, the clinical 

commissioning group recognises the expenditure in the period in which the grant is paid. All other grants are accounted for on an 

accruals basis.

Upon a thorough review of IFRS 15 it became clear that the standard has no material impact on the 2019-20 accounts for NHS 

Fareham & Gosport CCG.

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments, including payments arising from the apprenticeship levy, are recognised in the 

period in which the service is received from employees, including bonuses earned but not yet taken.

The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent 

that employees are permitted to carry forward leave into the following period.

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Schemes. These schemes are unfunded, defined 

benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State 

in England and Wales. The schemes are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the 

underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the schemes are accounted for as though they were defined contribution schemes: 

the cost to the clinical commissioning group of participating in a scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme 

for the accounting period.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount 

of the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the clinical commissioning group commits itself to the 

retirement, regardless of the method of payment.

Å The main source of funding for the Clinical Commissioning Group is from NHS England. This is drawn down and credited to the 

general fund. Funding is recognised in the period in which it is received.

Income and expenditure are analysed in the Operating Segments note and are reported in line with management information used 

within the clinical commissioning group.

Å As per paragraph 121 of the Standard the clinical commissioning group will not disclose information regarding performance 

obligations part of a contract that has an original expected duration of one year or less.

Å The FReM has mandated the exercise of the practical expedient offered in C7(a) of the Standard that requires the clinical 

commissioning group to reflect the aggregate effect of all contracts modified before the date of initial application.

Å Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by transferring promised 

services to the customer, and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated to that performance obligation.
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1.9 Leases

1.9.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.10 Cash & Cash Equivalents

1.11 Provisions

1.12 Clinical Negligence Costs

Å A nominal long-term rate of 1.99% (2018-19: 1.99%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows over 10 years and up to and including 

40 years from the Statement of Financial Position date.

Å A nominal very long-term rate of 1.99% (2018-19: 1.99%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows exceeding 40 years from the 

Statement of Financial Position date.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable 

is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be 

measured reliably.

NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to NHS 

Resolution, which in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although NHS Resolution 

is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with clinical commissioning group.

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash 

equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known 

amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

Provisions are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 

event, it is probable that the clinical commissioning group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made 

of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 

obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the 

cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasuryôs 

discount rate as follows:

Å Early retirement provisions are discounted using HM Treasuryôs pension discount rate of negative 0.50% (2018-19: positive 0.29%) in 

real terms. All general provisions are subject to four separate discount rates according to the expected timing of cashflows from the 

Statement of Financial Position date:

Å A nominal short-term rate of 0.51% (2018-19: 0.76%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows up to and including 5 years from 

Statement of Financial Position date.

Å A nominal medium-term rate of 0.55% (2018-19:1.14%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows over 5 years up to and including 10 

years from the Statement of Financial Position date.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that 

form an integral part of the clinical commissioning groupôs cash management.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All 

other leases are classified as operating leases.

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, 

at the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments 

are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the 

remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in calculating the clinical commissioning groupôs surplus/deficit.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised 

initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they 

are operating or finance leases.
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1.13 Non-clinical Risk Pooling

1.14 Contingencies

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.

1.15 Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

·                Financial assets at amortised cost;

·                Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income; and

·                Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.

A thorough review of IFRS 9 has been performed and there is no material impact to NHS Fareham & Gosport CCG accounts.

1.15.1 Impairment

1.16  Financial Liabilities

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the clinical commissioning group. A contingent asset 

is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

The clinical commissioning group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are 

risk pooling schemes under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Resolution and, in return, 

receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of 

particular claims are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the clinical commissioning group, 

or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the 

amount of the obligation cannot be measured sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment 

is remote.

Financial assets are recognised when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the 

case of trade receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual 

rights have expired or the asset has been transferred.

The classification is determined by the cash flow and business model characteristics of the financial assets, as set out in IFRS 9, and 

is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the 

contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. 

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income (except equity instruments 

designated at fair value through other comprehensive income), lease receivables and contract assets, the clinical commissioning group 

recognises a loss allowance representing the expected credit losses on the financial asset.

The clinical commissioning group adopts the simplified approach to impairment in accordance with IFRS 9, and measures the loss 

allowance for trade receivables, lease receivables and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.  For other 

financial assets, the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial 

instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition (stage 2) and otherwise at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit 

losses (stage 1).

HM Treasury has ruled that central government bodies may not recognise stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against other government 

departments, their executive agencies, the Bank of England, Exchequer Funds and Exchequer Funds assets where repayment is 

ensured by primary legislation.  The clinical commissioning group therefore does not recognise loss allowances for stage 1 or stage 2 

impairments against these bodies.  Additionally, Department of Health and Social Care provides a guarantee of last resort against the 

debts of its arm's lengths bodies and NHS bodies and the clinical commissioning group does not recognise allowances for stage 1 or 

stage 2 impairments against these bodies.

For financial assets that have become credit impaired since initial recognition (stage 3), expected credit losses at the reporting date 

are measured as the difference between the asset's gross carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows 

discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.  Any adjustment is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain 

or loss.

Upon a thorough review of IFRS 9 it became clear that the standard has no material impact on the 2019-20 accounts for NHS Fareham 

& Gosport CCG.
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1.17  Value Added Tax

1.18  Losses & Special Payments

1.19 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

1.19.1 Critical accounting judgements in applying accounting policies

1.19.2 Sources of estimation uncertainty

There are no sources of estimation uncertainty in the Clinical Commissioning Groupôs accounts for 2019-20.

1.20 Gifts

1.21 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the accounts for 2019-20, were they applied in that 

year.

Gifts are items that are voluntarily donated, with no preconditions and without the expectation of any return. Gifts include all 

transactions economically equivalent to free and unremunerated transfers, such as the loan of an asset for its expected useful life, and 

the sale or lease of assets at below market value.

The Department of Health and Social Care GAM does not require the following IFRS Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 

2019-20. These Standards are still subject to HM Treasury FReM adoption, with IFRS 16 being for implementation in 2020-21, and the 

government implementation date for IFRS 17 still subject to HM Treasury consideration.

ǒ IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts ï Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, but not yet adopted 

by the FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses 

which would have been made good through insurance cover had the clinical commissioning group not been bearing its own risks (with 

insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure).

In the application of the clinical commissioning group's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates 

and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  The estimates 

and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.  Actual results 

may differ from those estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed.  Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the 

revision and future periods if the revisions affects both current and future periods.

Other than Going Concern (as per note 1.1), the Clinical Commissioning Group has not applied any material critical judgements whilst 

adhering to accounting policies in 2019-20.

Most of the activities of the clinical commissioning group are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and 

input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the 

capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of 

VAT.

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or 

passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures 

compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are 

handled.

The CCG has commenced the assessment of the application of IFRS 16 to its financial statements.  This commenced with work to 

identify leases which are currently operating leases and should be reclassified as finance leases, as well as a broader review of 

recurring expenditure streams where right to use assets may be embedded in contracting arrangements.  The work has progressed to 

March 2020, when the CCG revised it's operational priorities and working patterns to deal with the COVID-19 pandemic. This combined 

with the decision to defer the implementation of IFRS 16 in the NHS to 1 April 2021 means that it has not been practical to complete 

this work or present it for Audit.  The work to identify the impact of this standard is expected to recommence in Autumn 2020, but from 

the review and the work that has been done to date suggests that the standard will not have a material impact on the CCG's accounts.

ǒ IFRS 16 Leases ï The Standard was due to be effective  on the 1 April 2020, as adapted and interpreted by the FReM, but has now 

been deferred for a further year until 1st April 2021 following the COVID-19 pandemic.
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